
      

DYDD LLUN, 4 CHWEFROR 2019

PWYLLGOR AR Y CYD ERW
Y LLWYFAN, COLLEGE ROAD, CARMARTHEN AM  10.00 AM,

AR DYDD GWENER, 8FED CHWEFROR, 2019

A G E N D A  

1. YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB 

2. DATGAN BUDDIANNAU PERSONOL 

3. LOFNODI FEL COFNOD CYWIR COFNODION CYFARFOD Y 
PWYLLGOR AR Y CYD A GYNHALWYD AR Y 12 HYDREF 2018 

3 - 8

4. MATERION SY'N CODI O'R COFNODION 

5. DIWEDDARIAD GAN Y PRIF WEITHREDWR ARWEINIOL A LOG 
PENDERFYNIADAU 

9 - 20

6. GOHEBIAETH 21 - 28

7. ADRODDIADAU CYLLID: 

7 .1 ADRODDIAD MONITRO CYLLID 29 - 56
7 .2 RHEOLIADAU ARIANNOL A RHEOLAU GWEITHDREFNAU 

CONTRACT
57 - 140

7 .3 RHAGLEN WAITH AWDIT MEWNOL 2018-19 141 - 146
8. COFRESTRE RISG 147 - 182

9. SWYDDOGAETHIAU ARWEINIOL / CLG 183 - 188

10. CYNNIG AR ADOLYGU AC ADNEWYDDU ERW 189 - 208

11. CYLLIDEB 2019-2020 209 - 224

Pecyn Dogfennau



          

12. UNRHYW FATER ARALL Y GALL Y CADEIRYDD OHERWYDD 
AMGYLCHIADAU ARBENNIG, BENDERFYNU EI YSTYRIED YN FATER 
BRYS YN UNOL AG ADRAN 100B(4)(B) DEDDF LLYWODRAETH LEOL 
1972 

13. ADRODDIADAU NAD YDYNT I'W CYHOEDDI 
WEDI YSTYRIED HOLL AMGYLCHIADAU'R ACHOS AC WEDI CYNNAL PRAWF 
BUDD Y CYHOEDD GALL YR PWYLLGOR AR Y CYD ERW FARNU NAD YW'R 
EITEMAU CANLYNOL I'W GYHOEDDI AM EI FOD YN CYNNWYS GWYBODAETH 
EITHRIEDIG FEL Y'I DIFFINNIR YM MHARAGRAFF 12, 13 A 15 O RAN 4 O 
ATODLEN 12A I DDEDDF LLYWODRAETH LEOL 1972, FEL Y'I NEWIDIWYD GAN 
ORCHYMYN LLYWODRAETH LEOL (MYNEDIAD AT WYBODAETH) (AMRYWIO) 
(CYMRU) 2007.

14. CYNNIG AR ADOLYGU AC ADNEWYDDU ERW 225 - 234

15. GWYBODAETH ARIANNOL A STAFFIO 235 - 242



Cyd-Bwyllgor ERW
Dydd Gwener, 12fed Hydref, 2018

Y Llwyfan, College Road, Carmarthen 
10.00  - 11.00 am

YN BRESENNOL: Y Cynghorydd Ellen ap Gwynn [Cadeirydd] Cyngor Sir Ceredigion

 Y Cynghorydd Emlyn Dole Cyngor Sir Caerfyrddin
 Y Cynghorydd Rosemarie 
Harris

Cyngor Sir Powys

 Y Cynghorydd Peter Rees Cyngor Castell-nedd Port Talbot
 Y Cynghorydd David Simpson Cyngor Sir Penfro
 Y Cynghorydd Rob Stewart Cyngor Dinas Abertawe

 Mr Phil Roberts Y Prif Weithredwr Arweiniol 
ERW a Dinas a Sir Abertawe

 Mr Eifion Evans Cyngor Sir Ceredigion

 Mr Ian Westley Cyngor Sir Penfro

 Y Cynghorydd Jen Raynor Cyngor Dinas Abertawe
 Mr Ian Budd Cyngor Sir Powys – Cyfarwyddwr Arweiniol ERW
 Mr Aled Evans Cyngor Castell-nedd Port Talbot
 Mr Gareth Morgans Cyngor Sir Caerfyrddin
 Mr Geraint Rees Tîm Uwch-arweinwyr ERW
 Mr Jonathan Haswell Cyngor Sir Penfro 

(ERW -  Swyddog Adran 151)
 Mr Ian Eynon Cyngor Sir Penfro 

(Dirprwy Swyddog Adran 151)
 Ms Elin Prysor Cyngor Sir Ceredigion (ERW - Swyddog Monitro)

 Mr Chris Llewellyn Cymdeithas Llywodraeth Leol Cymru

 Ms. Ruth Conway Llywodraeth Cymru

 Mr Ceri Davies Cyngor Sir Penfro 

 Ms Rhona Edwards ESTYN

 Mr Martin S. Davies Cyngor Sir Caerfyrddin (Gwasanaethau Democrataidd)

Tudalen 3

Eitem Rhif  3



1. YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB
Cafwyd ymddiheuriad am absenoldeb gan y Cynghorydd Rob Jones [Cyngor 
Castell-nedd Port Talbot]. 
Mynegodd y Cadeirydd ei llongyfarchiadau i Chris Llewelyn ar gael ei benodi'n Brif 
Weithredwr Cymdeithas Llywodraeth Leol Cymru yn ddiweddar. 

2. DATGAN BUDDIANNAU PERSONAL
Ni ddatganwyd unrhyw fuddiannau personol.

3. COFNODION - 16 GORFFENNAF 2018

CYTUNWYD i lofnodi cofnodion y cyfarfod a gynhaliwyd ar 16 Gorffennaf 
2018 gan eu bod yn gywir.

4. MATERION SY'N CODI O'R COFNODION

Cofnod 7.2 - Datganiad Cyfrifon 2017-18 ac Adroddiad Safon Ryngwladol ar 
Archwilio 260 Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru 
Cyfeiriodd y Cynghorydd Peter Rees at ei ymholiad a nodwyd yn y cofnod uchod 
mewn perthynas â'r cynnydd sylweddol mewn ffioedd ymgynghoriaeth a 
dywedodd nad oedd y wybodaeth a oedd wedi'i chael ers hynny wedi ateb ei 
gwestiwn ynghylch pam yr oedd y ffioedd wedi cynyddu cymaint. Esboniodd y 
Swyddog Adran 151 nad oedd newid o bwys wedi bod yn y ffioedd, ond fod y 
codio ariannol wedi'i ailddosbarthu.  Ymatebodd y Cynghorydd Rees drwy ddweud 
ei fod yn parhau i fod yn anfodlon ar yr esboniad ac yr oedd yn dymuno bod ei 
bryder yn cael ei nodi yn y cofnodion.

5. DIWEDDARIAD GAN Y PRIF WEITHREDWR ARWEINIOL AC LOG 
GWEITHREDU
Cafodd y Cyd-bwyllgor Adroddiad Sicrwydd wedi'i ddiweddaru, a oedd yn cynnwys 
tabl â chynllun gweithredu, cynnydd a manylion y swyddogion sy'n gyfrifol. 

Dywedodd y Prif Weithredwr Arweiniol y byddai ef a'r Cadeirydd yn mynd gerbron 
y Grŵp Cynghorwyr - Craffu ar ERW ym mis Ionawr 2019 [gweler hefyd gofnod 
6.3 isod] ac y byddai copi o'u cyflwyniad yn cael ei anfon at aelodau'r Cyd-bwyllgor 
maes o law.
Diolchodd Cyfarwyddwr Arweiniol ERW a'r Cadeirydd i bawb a oedd wedi cymryd 
rhan yn y gwaith o lunio'r Cynllun Busnes.

CYTUNWYD i dderbyn adroddiad diweddaru'r Prif Weithredwr Arweiniol.

6. GOHEBIAETH

6.1. LLYWODRAETH CYMRU - ADOLYGIADAU O'R GRANT GWELLA 
ADDYSG A'R GRANT DATBLYGU DISGYBLION

Roedd llythyr dyddiedig 18 Medi 2018 oddi wrth Steve Davies, Cyfarwyddwr 
Addysg, Llywodraeth Cymru, wedi'i ddosbarthu i'r Cyd-bwyllgor, a oedd mewn 
perthynas ag adolygiadau arfaethedig ym mhob yn o'r 4 consortiwm o ran y Grant 
Gwella Addysg, ac elfen y plant sy'n derbyn gofal o'r Grant Datblygu Disgyblion.  

Tudalen 4



Dywedodd Prif Weithredwr Arweiniol Castell-nedd Port Talbot y dylai'r adolygiadau 
hefyd ystyried ansawdd yr hyn a ddarperir gan ERW yn ogystal ag adroddiadau 
ESTYN. Roedd y Cadeirydd yn cydsynio â'r sylw hwn ac ychwanegodd y dylid 
barnu pob consortiwm yn ôl sut yr oedd wedi helpu i wella perfformiad y plant. 

Gofynnodd y Cadeirydd a oedd yr adroddiad ar archwiliad ariannol Rod Alcott ar 
gael, gan y gofynnwyd amdano yn y cyfarfod Adolygu a Herio diwethaf. Mewn 
ymateb, cytunodd Ruth Conway i gadarnhau'r sefyllfa gan na chafwyd unrhyw 
adborth.

NODWYD.

6.2. LLYWODRAETH CYMRU - GRANT GWELLA YSGOLION Y CONSORTIA 
RHANBARTHOL 2018-19

Roedd llythyr dyddiedig 14 Medi 2018 gan Lywodraeth Cymru wedi'i ddosbarthu i'r 
Cyd-bwyllgor, a oedd yn nodi ei chynnig diwygiedig, sef £40,971,102.00 ar gyfer y 
Grant yn ystod 2018-19. Dywedodd y Swyddog Adran 151 fod llythyr wedi'i anfon i 
Lywodraeth Cymru i dderbyn y cyllid ond hyd yn hyn nad oedd dim cyllid wedi dod 
i law. Yn unol ag un o'r rhag-amodau cyllid roedd angen cadarnhau'r dyddiadau 
arfaethedig pryd y byddai'r taliadau'n cael eu gwneud gan bob un o'r 6 awdurdod 
lleol, ac roedd swyddogion yn parhau i geisio datrys y mater mewn perthynas â 
chyfraniad Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Castell-nedd Port Talbot, fel y codwyd yn y 
cyfarfod diwethaf [gweler cofnod 7.4].   

NODWYD.

6.3. GRŴP CYNGHORWYR - CRAFFU AR ERW
Roedd llythyr dyddiedig 4 Hydref 2018 gan Gadeirydd y Grŵp Cynghorwyr - Craffu 
ar ERW wedi'i ddosbarthu i'r Cyd-bwyllgor a oedd yn manylu ar faterion a godwyd 
yng nghyfarfod y Grŵp Cynghorwyr - Craffu ar ERW ar 10 Medi 2018. Nodwyd 
bod y llythyr yn cyfeirio at wahoddiad a estynnodd i Gadeirydd ERW a'r Prif 
Weithredwr Arweiniol i ddod i gyfarfod y Grŵp Cynghorwyr - Craffu a gynhelir ym 
mis Ionawr 2019 [gweler hefyd gofnod 5 uchod].

NODWYD.

7. ADRODDIAD CYLLID

Cafodd y Pwyllgor y wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am y sefyllfa ariannol ar gyfer 2018-
19 a oedd yn rhoi gwybodaeth fanwl a phenodol am y canlynol:

 Cyllideb y Tîm Canolog 2018-19 
 Cytundebau Lefel Gwasanaeth
 Dyraniadau Grant 2018-19
 Grantiau 2018-19 - Plant sy'n derbyn gofal/Grant Datblygu Disgyblion
 Grantiau 2018-19 - Grant Gwella Ysgolion y Consortia Rhanbarthol 
 Blaenoriaethau Cynllun Busnes ERW 2018-19
 Rhaglen Adolygu a Diwygio ERW
 Risgiau
 Cronfeydd wrth gefn.

Tudalen 5



Ailadroddodd y Swyddog Adran 151 nad oedd Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Castell-
nedd Port Talbot wedi talu ei gyfraniad o £40k hyd yn hyn, ac os na fydd hyn yn 
dod i law byddai rhaid i'r Cyd-bwyllgor ystyried sut y gyflawni cyllideb gytbwys. 
Dywedodd Cyfarwyddwr Arweiniol CNPT fod Arweinydd CBS CNPT wedi 
ysgrifennu at yr Arweinwyr eraill yn y consortiwm gan amlinellu ei bryderon 
ynghylch rheolaeth a'r cynllun busnes, tryloywder y cyllid, defnydd yr adnoddau, 
atebolrwydd, a'r diffyg cynnydd o ran gwelliannau i'r trefniadau llywodraethu. 
Ychwanegodd fod yr Arweinydd, y Prif Weithredwr ac ef ei hun yn credu na fyddai 
Castell-nedd Port Talbot yn gallu cadarnhau ei gyfraniad oni bai bod gwelliant yn y 
meysydd hyn. Dywedodd y Prif Weithredwr Arweiniol, er ei fod yn cydsynio i ryw 
raddau â dadansoddiad Castell-nedd Port Talbot o'r sefyllfa, ei fod yn credu y 
gallai eu hamharodrwydd i gyfrannu ar hyn o bryd gael effaith negyddol ar ERW a'r 
rheiny sy'n cynorthwyo. Roedd y Cyd-bwyllgor yn cytuno â sylwadau'r Prif 
Weithredwr Arweiniol a mynegodd y safbwynt na ddylai unrhyw barti sy'n rhan o'r 
cytundeb, a luniwyd ar sail cydweithio, wrthod talu ei gyfraniad.   
Mynegodd y Cadeirydd y safbwynt cadarnhaol bod datblygiadau diweddar, â 
chymorth Llywodraeth Cymru a ddiolchwyd ganddi, wedi paratoi'r ffordd ymlaen a'r 
gobaith oedd y byddai CBS CNPT yn gallu gwneud ei gyfraniad cyn bo hir.

CYTUNWYD 

7.1 nodi cyllideb y Tîm Canolog ar gyfer 2018-19 a chostau disgwyliedig y llety 
a chyfleusterau ychwanegol yn y dyfodol; 

7.2 cyflwyno adroddiad arall i nodi'r cam gweithredu y gellir ei gymryd pe na 
fyddai Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Castell-nedd Port Talbot yn talu ei gyfran 
o'r Cyfraniad Awdurdodau Lleol (£250k) ar gyfer 2018-19; 

7.3 nodi'r dyraniadau grant diwygiedig ar gyfer 2018-19 (Atodiad 2) a'r 
materion presennol o ran cydymffurfio â rhai o amodau a thelerau Grant 
Gwella Ysgolion y Consortia Rhanbarthol; 

7.4 nodi dyraniad dros dro o'r Grant Gwella Ysgolion i flaenoriaethau Cynllun 
Busnes ERW 2018-19, a'r ffaith y bydd angen gwneud gwaith pellach; 

7.5 cymeradwyo'r dyraniad o weddill y cyllid £250k gan Lywodraeth Cymru 
ar gyfer y Rhaglen Adolygu a Diwygio;

7.6  peidio ag ystyried penderfynu sut i gyflenwi Cronfeydd wrth Gefn ERW 
ar hyn o bryd.

8. CYNLLUN BUSNES ERW
Bu'r Cyd-bwyllgor yn ystyried Cynllun Busnes ERW 2018-19 diwygiedig a oedd 
wedi'i lunio gan Gyfarwyddwyr ERW, Pen-ymgynghorwyr Her yr Awdurdodau Lleol 
a Thîm Uwch-arweinwyr ERW yn dilyn y cyfarfod diwethaf [gweler cofnod 6.7]. 
Roedd y Cynllun yn canolbwyntio ar bedwar amcan allweddol a oedd wedi deillio o 
Genhadaeth ein Cenedl Llywodraeth Cymru:-

 Datblygu proffesiwn addysg o ansawdd uchel;
 Sicrhau bod arweinwyr ysbrydoledig yn cydweithio i godi'r safonau;

Tudalen 6



 Cynorthwyo ein hysgolion i fod yn rhai cryf a chynhwysol sydd wedi 
ymrwymo i ragoriaeth, tegwch a llesiant;

 Sicrhau trefniadau cadarn o ran asesu, gwerthuso a bod yn atebol sy'n 
cefnogi system sy'n gwella ei hun.

CYTUNWYD i gymeradwyo'r Cynllun Busnes wedi'i ailddrafftio i'w 
ddosbarthu.

9. COFNOD RISG CORFFORAETHOL (BYGYTHIADAU) 2018-19
Gan gyfeirio at gofnod 8 o'r cyfarfod diwethaf, cafodd y Cyd-bwyllgor y fersiwn 
ddrafft o'r Gofrestr Risg Gorfforaethol ar gyfer 2018-19, a oedd wedi'i hailddrafftio 
yn sgil cyngor gan y Swyddog Adran 151. Ymysg y newidiadau yr oedd y cynnwys 
a'r fformat adrodd, ynghyd â ffocws ar y Gofrestr Ganolog ac Ariannol. Nodwyd 
bod yna risgiau sylweddol, ac roedd llawer ohonynt yn rhai hirdymor nad oedent 
wedi cael eu lleihau er gwaethaf y camau gweithredu.  

CYTUNWYD i gymeradwyo'r lefelau goddefgarwch a derbyn y gofrestr risg 
wedi'i hailddrafftio.

10. ADRODDIAD AWDIT MEWNOL
Cafodd y Cyd-bwyllgor Adroddiad Archwiliad Mewnol ERW 2017-18 ynghyd â'r 
wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am ymatebion y rheolwyr.
Roedd Prif Weithredwr Cyngor Sir Ceredigion am gofnodi ei fod yn anfodlon ar 
'Ymateb y Rheolwyr' i'r 'Trefniadau Disgwyliedig (Rheoli)' mewn perthynas â 
gweithredu'r cerdyn prynu. Dywedodd y Swyddog Adran 151 nad oedd y mater 
wedi'i gategoreiddio'n 'goch' yn y Dyfarniadau Argymell, ond roedd o fewn Gradd 
Weithredu 'Digonol ac effeithiol yn rhannol', er y cydnabuwyd ganddo fod yna 
faterion rheoli mewnol yr oedd angen mynd i'r afael â nhw. Atgoffwyd yr aelodau 
gan y Cyfarwyddwr Arweiniol fod yr adolygiad diweddar o ERW wedi pwysleisio'r 
ffaith bod cyfrifoldeb am dreuliau yn peri pryder. Pwysleisiodd y Cadeirydd pa mor 
bwysig yw atebolrwydd am unrhyw wariant.

CYTUNWYD i nodi'r adroddiad ac Ymatebion diwygiedig y Rheolwyr.

________________________ __________________
CADEIRYDD DYDDIAD

Tudalen 7



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



ERW JOINT COMMITTEE 

8TH FEBRUARY 2019

LEAD CHIEF EXECUTIVE UPDATE AND ACTION LOG

Purpose: 
This item allows the Lead Chief Executive to provide Joint Committee with an update on 
progress against actions from previous meetings. 

RECOMMENDATIONS / KEY DECISIONS REQUIRED:

To receive the report

REASONS: 

Adherence to process following Joint Committee meetings

Report Author:

Phil Roberts

Designation:

Lead Chief Executive

Tel No.

E. Mail:

Tudalen 9

Eitem Rhif  5



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

ERW JOINT COMMITTEE

8TH FEBRUARY 2019

LEAD CHIEF EXECUTIVE UPDATE AND ACTION LOG 

BRIEF SUMMARY OF PURPOSE OF REPORT

The update will focus on:

1. Updated Joint Committee Action Log
 

This is attached in the body of the report.

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? YES

Tudalen 10



IMPLICATIONS

Policy, Crime & 
Disorder and 
Equalities

Legal Finance Risk Management Issues Staffing Implications

NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE

CONSULTATIONS

Details of any consultations undertaken are to be included here

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THERE ARE NONE

Tudalen 11



ERW JOINT COMMITTEE

8TH FEBRUARY 2019

Supporting / Additional information from ERW Executive Board

N/A

Supporting / Additional Information from ERW Advisory Board

N/A

Tudalen 12



Page 1 of 9

Assurance Report for ERW Joint Committee

12.10.18 Budget Report

“that the issue of what action can be taken in 
the event of Neath Port Talbot County 
Council not paying its share of the £250k 
Local Authority Contribution for 2018-19 to be 
left in abeyance. NPT CBC’s position to be 
noted.

 Noted in Advisory Board 21.1.19. 

16/7/18 Non Compliance Report:

Agreed 

That this matter be deferred to a future Joint 
Committee meeting following the 
endorsement of the ERW Business Plan (by 
Welsh Government), in the meantime;

Officer to continue with the current funding 
formula for all schools;

To instruct the Managing Director to 
negotiate interim arrangements with Welsh 
Government whilst the development work is 
put in place in order to access grant for 
schools’

ERW Business Plan now endorsed by Joint Committee 
and Welsh Government.

Grant has now been released, funding released to 
schools. T

udalen 13



Page 2 of 9

Schools to be informed by individual LA S151 
Officers. 

LA S151 Officers notified, schools informed. Grant 
release issue now resolved.

16/7/18 Reviewing the SLAs and In-Kind 
Arrangements

Agreed that:

A report providing information on insurance 
matters be brought to the next Joint 
Committee

Until then, the present SLAs and in-kind 
arrangements are to continue

Expressions of interest for in-kind 
arrangements / statutory officers, and SLAs 
to be invited from all LAs from September 
2018

Raised at Executive Board, to be revisited following the 
ERW Reform Programme once a more concrete idea has 
been obtained of what needs to be insured. 

Paper tabled for 8.2.19 Joint Committee as a reminder of 
current SLAs and in-kind arrangements. 

Preliminary discussions initiated by Lead Chief Executive 
via e-mail?  Following ERW Review and Reform 
Programme, there will be a need for a formal period of 
submission of Expressions of Interest.

Pembs Finance / 
Advisory Group 

T
udalen 14



Page 3 of 9

16/7/2018 HR Proposals

Agreed that the proposal to create the 
following 3 posts:

- Business and Finance Manager
- Head of School Performance and Leadership
- Head of Support and Curriculum

Be approved subject to 

i) the posts for Head of School Performance 
& Leadership and Head of Support and 
Curriculum be amended to state “the ability 
to work through the medium of Welsh is 
Essential and at a proficient level on 
appointment.

ii) The Job Descriptions and Job Specifications 
being considered further by Directors, 
Section 151 Officer and the HR Group (x6 one 
from each LA). 

See below

Agreed for Business and Finance Manager post to go 
ahead to advertisement. Advert to be shared at JC.  This 
is now under the remit of the ERW Review and Reform 
Programme.

Directors, Section 
151 Officer, HR 
Group

16/7/2018 Risk Registers

Agreed that further work to be carried out to 
complete the Risk Register, including 
reviewing risk scores

Completed, proposed alterations taken to Directors, 
comments made at Exec Board. Section 151 Officer 
presenting at 12.10.18 Joint Committee for circulation

ERW Central Team

T
udalen 15



Page 4 of 9

16/7/2018 Financial Update 2018-19 :

The action to be taken in the event of a 
Neath Port Talbot County Council not paying 
their share of the £250k Local Authority 
Contribution for 2018-19 be deferred to the 
next Joint Committee meeting

That a formal letter from Welsh Government 
is sought to clarify the terms and conditions 
of the RCSIG grant

Clarification to be sought from Welsh 
Government as to the offer/arrangements in 
respect of the £250k  Welsh Government 
funding for the Review and Reform 
Programme, and with regards its 
requirements regarding return of any monies 
already spent

The determination on how to replenish the 
ERW Reserves, either with a one-off 
contribution from the six Local Authorities or 
an increase in the existing £250k annual 
contribution be deferred to the next Joint 
Committee.

Tabled for discussion at October Joint Committee under 
Budget Report item. 

Letter Received, actions distributed

Carry over assured by WG 

Tabled for discussion at October Joint Committee under 
Budget Report item

Lead Chief 
Executive, 
Monitoring Officer

Lead Chief Executive 
/ Lead Director / 
MD

Section 151 Officer

T
udalen 16



Page 5 of 9

16/7/2018 Annual Governance Statement:

Agreed the ERW Consortium Annual 
Governance Statement 2017-18 
Management actions be completed by Lead 
Officers, an action plan identifying mitigating 
steps be circulated to the Joint Committee 
Members, for approval by 31/7/18

Submitted in line with 31/7/18 deadline. Section 151 Officer

16/7/2018 Internal Audit Report:

Agreed that the ERW Internal Audit Report 
2017-18 be a standing agenda item on the 
Joint Committee 

ERW Central Team liaising with Lead Chief Executive, 
Lead Director S151 officer and Carmarthen Democratic 
Services

As mentioned above – Mitigation Plan to be circulated at 
12.10.18 JC

ERW Central Team

16/7/2018 Internal Audit Assurance Opinion:

To refer the matter to the three Lead 
Officers, (MD, Lead Chief Exec, Lead Director) 
to formulate a mitigation plan by next Joint 
Committee meeting;

The Monitoring Officer to update the Legal 
Agreement, limited to reflect the current 
position, to include previous Joint Committee 
delegation decisions, and update of the 
Executive Board and Managing Director 
delegations (as set out in Legal Agreement).

Response to Internal Audit Report prepared, currently 
being considered by S151 Officer and Head of Internal 
Audit for further.  Tabled for circulation only at 12.10.18

Monitoring Officer leading on this work, following 
Advisory Board Meeting 24.9.18

Lead Chief Exec / 
Lead Director / MD

Monitoring Officer

T
udalen 17



Page 6 of 9

The ERW Legal Agreement to be added as a 
standing agenda item ERW Central Team liaising with Lead Chief Executive, 

Lead Director, Monitoring Officer and Carmarthen 
Democratic Services. ERW Central Team 

16/7/2018 Business Plan:

To Instruct the Lead Director of Education 
and Managing Director to make 
improvements to the ERW Business Plan

To Formulate a precis of the Plan to the 
Executive Board

To forward the precis to all Members of the 
Joint Committee by e-mail, for agreement by 
31st July 2018

S151 Officers of all Local Authorities to be put 
on notice of the risk

Business Plan submitted to WG in line with 31/7 
deadline. 
ERW SLT and LA Principal Challenge Advisers worked on 
final revised version including budgeting + low level 
action plans. Tabled for circulation at 12.10.18 Joint 
Committee

151 Officers Notified by ERW Section 151 Officer of risks

Directors Group / 
Lead Director

Section 151 Officer

T
udalen 18



Page 7 of 9

16/7/2018 Accommodation – agreed that there was a 
need to renegotiate the current lease for a 
further period, pending progress of the ERW 
Review and Reform Programme and the 
National Model.

The Lead Chief Executive, the Managing 
Director and Lead Director to consider the 
Health and Safety Aspects

The Monitoring Officer to consider the legal 
position of the lease

That Welsh Government buildings are not to 
be utilised by ERW staff in the event that 
alternative office accommodation is required 
in the future

Current Lease extension likely to be for a 12 month 
rolling period, negotiations ongoiung

Additional 3 office rooms recently became available at Y 
Llwyfan, negotiations for their lease ongoing. Hopefully 
this will mitigate some Health and Safety issues and 
provide space for holding meetings.  

Authorities have been contacted to attempt to source 
DDA compliant furniture that has been recommended 
for some members of staff at ERW offices.  
 

Lead Chief Executive

Monitoring Officer

16/7/2018 Correspondence to Scrutiny Councillor Group 
– Agreed that the draft letter of response be 
approved with additional references to be 
made that:

i) The Review and Reform Programme was 
still in progress; and
ii) that changes to the National Model were 
being monitored before final decisions could 
be taken in relation to any future ERW 
structures.

Letter sent

Response from Scrutiny Councillor Group received – 
Lead Chief Exec + Chair invited to additional January 
meeting. 

Draft Response to be discussed as agenda item for JC 
12.10.18

JC Chair + Lead 
Chief Executive

T
udalen 19



Page 8 of 9

16/7/2018 The Outline Report for Review and Reform of 
Governance Arrangements (item 9.3) be 
included within the ERW Review and Reform 
Programme

Tabled for discussion by Directors on 21.9.18 and 
Executive Board 21.9.18

Comments made at Exec 21.9.18, currently tabled for 
discussion by Chief Executives and Monitoring Officer

Suggestion: Given the discussion needed on the scope, 
and structure of ERW, new governance arrangements 
should be developed in relation to the organisation that 
requires that governance. Therefore, it is suggested that 
Governance Arrangements be developed following a 
clear steer from JC. 

Directors

16/7/2018 GCSE Results – a further report to be 
presented to the Joint Committee at the next 
meeting, to include changes in accountability 
measures, and an Executive Summary from 
WG, with results

Completed – scheduled for October Joint Committee

Amendments suggested at Exec Board, now redrafted 
for Joint Committee Seminar. Ian Budd to lead on 
presenting. Report received.

The changing accountability measures have been 
discussed by Welsh Government and Portfolio 
Holders/Leaders for Education. The reform of the 
measures is ongoing, with ERW, ADEW and 
headteachers participation. 

ERW Central Team 

T
udalen 20



Page 9 of 9

16/7/2018 Schools Causing Concern – AGREED that the 
consideration of the report with the inclusion 
of the additional work identified on schools 
improvement, be deferred until the next 
meeting

Completed –  scheduled for October Joint Committee

Amendments discussed at Exec Board, included in a 
redraft for Joint Committee Seminar, Ian Budd to lead on 
presenting.

Matters now included:
Nature of support allocated to schools
Further details on a school by school basis
Entry criteria of all Schools Causing Concern

Given the highly sensitive nature of this work, it is 
suggested that Joint Committee receive an overview and 
Directors in each Authority are to ensure that Elected 
Members are briefed accordingly.  

ERW Central Team

T
udalen 21



M
ae'r dudalen hon yn w

ag yn fw
riadol



CYD-BWYLLGOR ERW 

8 CHWEFROR 2019

GOHEBIAETH
Y Pwrpas:    

I gyflwyno gohebiaeth oddi wrth Grwp Cyghorwyr Craffu ERW i’r Cydbwyllgor

YR ARGYMHELLION / PENDERFYNIADAU ALLWEDDOL SYDD EU HANGEN:

I’r Cydbwyllgor dderbyn yr adroddiad a chytyno llythyr yn ymateb

Y RHESYMAU: 

Cynnal trefniadau craffu presennol

Awdur yr Adroddiad: Swydd: Rhif Ffon

E: bost

Tudalen 21

Eitem Rhif  6



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

ERW JOINT COMMITTEE

8TH FEBRUARY 2019

CORRESPONDENCE

BRIEF SUMMARY OF PURPOSE OF REPORT

The ERW Scrutiny Councillor Group convened an additional meeting in January to discuss 
the progress of the ERW Review and Reform Programme, and invited the Chair of the ERW 
Joint Committee, the ERW Lead Chief Executive, and the Acting ERW MD to attend the 
meeting.

Following the meeting, a letter was written to the Chair of the Joint Committee for inclusion on 
this meeting’s agenda

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? YES

Tudalen 22



IMPLICATIONS

Policy, Crime & 
Disorder and 
Equalities

Legal Finance Risk Management Issues Staffing Implications

NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE

CONSULTATIONS

N/A

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:
THERE ARE NONE

Tudalen 23



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Gofynnwch am: Y Tîm Craffu

Llinell y Swyddfa 
Graffu: 01792 637256

e-bost: scrutiny@swansea.gov.uk 

I: 
Y Cyng. Ellen ap Gwynn
Cadeirydd Cyd-bwyllgor ERW

Dyddiad 01 February 2019

Annwyl Gynghorydd ap Gwynn 

Grŵp Cynghorwyr Craffu ERW – 10 Ionawr 2019

Hoffai'r Grŵp Cynghorwyr Craffu ddiolch i chi, y Cyfarwyddwr Arweiniol a Rheolwr 
Gyfarwyddwr Dros Dro ERW am ddod i'n cyfarfod i drafod cynnydd o ran Cynllun 
Gwella ERW a'r Genhadaeth Genedlaethol. Ysgrifennaf atoch i adlewyrchu 
safbwyntiau'r cyfarfod hwnnw.   

Fel y gwyddoch, yn ein cyfarfod ym mis Medi 2018, mynegwyd ein pryderon ynghylch y 
diffyg cynnydd a wnaed o ran diwygio ERW. Ar ôl trafod hyn â chi, rydym yn teimlo'n 
fwy tawel ein meddwl bellach fod cynnydd yn cael ei wneud, a hynny mewn ffordd fwy 
amserol. 

Rydym yn sylweddoli'r rôl y mae'r Rheolwr Gyfarwyddwr Dros Dro wedi ei chwarae o 
ran meithrin perthnasoedd ac o ran bwrw ymlaen â'r gwelliannau angenrheidiol. Rydym 
yn cael ar ddeall y bydd Rheolwr Gyfarwyddwr parhaol yn cael ei benodi cyn hir, ac 
roeddem yn falch o glywed y bydd y Cyd-bwyllgor yn cymryd rhan yn y broses benodi 
hon. Byddem yn eich annog i sicrhau bod digon o amser yn cael ei dreulio er mwyn cael 
unigolyn o'r radd flaenaf a fydd wedi ymrwymo i fynd â'r sefydliad i gyfeiriad cadarnhaol, 
gan ddilyn yr ethos a'r egwyddorion sydd wedi'u nodi bellach. 

Rydym yn falch o glywed bod set o gynigion o ran y ffordd ymlaen ar gyfer ERW wedi'u 
datblygu ar y cyd â chynrychiolwyr allweddol o'r chwe awdurdod lleol, ac y bydd hyn yn 
cael ei drafod yng Nghyd-bwyllgor ERW ar 8 Chwefror.  Rydym wedi cael ar ddeall y 
bydd y cynigion hyn yn amlinellu:

 Y diben ar gyfer dyfodol ERW
 Strwythur arweinyddiaeth ERW wrth symud ymlaen
 Strwythur staffio ehangach ERW, gan gynnwys arbenigwyr cynradd ac uwchradd 

a thîm ad hoc y gellir ei ddefnyddio yn ôl yr angen
 Newid rolau'r Ymgynghorwyr Her
 Cynllunio a chefnogi darpariaeth weithredol

Tudalen 25

http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/council-democracy/committees-meetings/scrutiny/#.WAdbC48rLcs
https://www.ceredigion.gov.uk/English/Your-Council/Councillors-Committees/Overview-and-Scrutiny/Pages/default.aspx
https://democracy.npt.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
http://mgenglish.pembrokeshire.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=283&Year=0&LLL=0
http://powys.moderngov.co.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=139
mailto:scrutiny@swansea.gov.uk


Darperir Cymorth Craffu Grŵp Cynghorwyr Craffu ERW gan Gyngor Abertawe
Cyswllt: Y Tîm Craffu, Ystafell Gloucester, Neuadd y Ddinas, Abertawe SA1 4PE
 01792 637256
 scrutiny@swansea.gov.uk 

 Datblygu mecanweithiau adolygu ar gyfer prosesau cyflawni gweithredol a 
strategol

 Edrych o'r newydd ar brosesau ariannu ERW, gan ganolbwyntio ar ryddhau £1m 
o'r gyllideb er mwyn gweithio gydag ysgolion, a sicrhau tryloywder yn y broses 
gyllidebu, yn enwedig o ran dyrannu grantiau.

 Y camau nesaf, gan gynnwys: cytuno ar broses adnoddau dynol a chynnwys 
rhanddeiliaid allweddol, cytuno ar fodel ariannol, a sicrhau lefelau llywodraethu.

Yn dilyn ein trafodaeth fanwl, hoffem rannu ein casgliadau a'n hargymhellion â chi o ran 
y materion isod:

1. Rhaid i ERW barhau i ganolbwyntio ar feithrin perthnasoedd ag ysgolion ac, yn 
arbennig, athrawon pwnc/dosbarth. At ddibenion gweithredu'r cwricwlwm 
newydd, ni ellir gorbwysleisio pwysigrwydd cefnogaeth ymarferwyr yr ystafell 
ddosbarth. Mae blaenoriaethu'r gwaith o wella perthnasoedd ag athrawon rheng 
flaen hefyd yn hanfodol er mwyn meithrin ymddiriedaeth yn y consortiwm 
rhanbarthol. 
 

2. Credwn fod gan ERW rôl bwysig i'w chwarae o ran datblygu sgiliau 
cyflogadwyedd yn ein rhanbarth. Byddem yn cynghori y dylai'r swyddogaeth hon 
gael ei chydnabod yn swyddogol trwy ei hymgorffori yn strwythur staffio ERW. 
Byddem yn awgrymu y gellid cyflawni hyn trwy gynnwys cyfrifoldeb i weithio 
gyda Phartneriaethau Sgiliau Rhanbarthol, lle maent yn bodoli, yn ogystal â 
chyflogwyr ledled y rhanbarth, yn swydd-ddisgrifiad un o swyddogion ERW. 
Byddai hyn yn sicrhau bod sgiliau a phrofiadau cyflogadwyedd yn cael eu 
hymgorffori'n well yn addysg ein pobl ifanc. 

3. Rydym yn nodi, ac yn derbyn, fod y ddadl o ran trefniadau cyflogaeth 
Ymgynghorwyr Her wedi symud ymlaen o'r trafodaethau cynharach. Yn y cyd-
destun hwn, byddem yn awgrymu ei bod yn bwysig bod cyfrifoldebau 
rhanbarthol Ymgynghorwyr Her a gyflogir yn lleol yn cael eu ffurfioli a'u monitro'n 
briodol. 

4. Argymhellwn yn gryf fod ERW yn datblygu amserlenni a cherrig milltir clir ar 
gyfer ei daith ei hun at welliant ac ar gyfer gweithredu'r cwricwlwm newydd. 
Dylai'r rheiny sy'n ymwneud â datblygiad y consortiwm ei hun gael eu rhannu a'u 
darparu er mwyn sicrhau y creffir arnynt a'u bod yn cael eu monitro'n lleol, yn 
ogystal ag yn rhanbarthol gan Grŵp Cynghorwyr Craffu ERW. Er ein bod yn 
ymwybodol bod angen rhagor o fewnbwn gan Lywodraeth Cymru ynglŷn â 
Donaldson, teimlwn ei bod yn bwysig bod ysgolion ac athrawon dosbarth yn 
gwybod yn bur fanwl, ac ymhell ymlaen llaw, pa adnoddau a chyfleusterau fydd 
yn cael eu darparu gan y consortiwm, a phryd y byddant ar gael. Credwn y 
byddai hyn yn helpu i ryw raddau i gyflawni'r argymhelliad ym mharagraff 1. 

5. Byddem yn ddiolchgar pe gallai ERW roi mwy o eglurder ynghylch yr arbedion y 
disgwylir eu gweld yn sgil y model newydd, a'r modd y byddant yn cael eu 
defnyddio. A fydd yr arbedion hyn yn cael eu trosglwyddo i'r Awdurdodau Lleol 
neu i'r ysgolion, neu a fyddant yn cael eu hailfuddsoddi yn y consortiwm 

Tudalen 26

mailto:scrutiny@swansea.gov.uk


Darperir Cymorth Craffu Grŵp Cynghorwyr Craffu ERW gan Gyngor Abertawe
Cyswllt: Y Tîm Craffu, Ystafell Gloucester, Neuadd y Ddinas, Abertawe SA1 4PE
 01792 637256
 scrutiny@swansea.gov.uk 

rhanbarthol? Er y sylweddolwn fod y model newydd yn dal i gael ei ddatblygu, 
byddem yn gofyn yn barchus am gael gwybodaeth am hyn yng nghyfarfod nesaf 
y Grŵp Cynghorwyr.

6. Rydym yn llongyfarch y Cyfarwyddwr Dros Dro ar y modd y mae wedi datblygu 
perthnasoedd â rhanddeiliaid addysg. Byddem yn argymell bod y ffocws ar hyn 
yn parhau ar lefel swyddogion ac ar lefel wleidyddol.

7. Hoffem weld rhagor o adnoddau dosbarth llwyddiannus ac adnoddau dosbarth 
arfer da yn cael eu rhoi ar Hwb er mwyn iddynt gael eu rhannu a'u defnyddio 
gan bob ysgol yn y rhanbarth. Byddem yn awgrymu y dylai hyn fod yn 
flaenoriaeth yn y dyfodol agos gan y byddai, unwaith eto, o fudd er mwyn 
cyflawni'r canlyniad a drafodir ym mharagraff 1.

8. Credwn fod yn rhaid i ERW ddatblygu deialog gyson â CBAC. Byddem yn 
gobeithio trwy hyn y gallai ERW chwarae rhan o ran sicrhau bod ysgolion yn 
cael gwybodaeth hanfodol ynglŷn â newidiadau i asesiadau cyn gynted ag y bo 
modd. 

9. Hoffem ofyn, yn rhan o'r gwaith ar y model newydd, a yw strwythurau 
llywodraethu ERW yn dal i gael eu hadolygu? Os ydynt, byddai'r Grŵp 
Cynghorwyr yn gofyn am gael gweld unrhyw bapurau ar y pwnc hwn pan 
fyddant ar gael. 

Diolchwn i chi am eich cynnig i ddod i'n cyfarfodydd yn ôl y galw yn y dyfodol. Byddwn 
yn trafod hyn pan ystyriwn y gwaith o ddatblygu ein rhaglen waith at y dyfodol yn ein 
cyfarfod nesaf ym mis Mawrth.

Yr eiddoch yn gywir,

Y Cyng. Alex Thomas
Cadeirydd Grŵp Cynghorwyr Craffu ERW
Cllr.a.l.thomas@npt.gov.uk

Tudalen 27

mailto:scrutiny@swansea.gov.uk
mailto:Cllr.a.l.thomas@npt.gov.uk


Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



CYD-BWYLLGOR ERW 

8 CHWEFROR 2019

ADRODDIAD MONITRO CYLLID
Y Pwrpas:    

I ddarparu diweddariad i’r Cydbwyllgor ar sefyllfa ariannol ERW am 2018-19
YR ARGYMHELLION / PENDERFYNIADAU ALLWEDDOL SYDD EU HANGEN:

1. I’r Cyd-Bwyllgor gymeradwyo’r newidiadau i gyllideb y Tim Canolog am 2018-19

2. I’r Cyd-Bwyllgor benderfynu ar ymateb pe bai Cyngor Sir Castell Nedd a Phort Talbot 
yn penderfynu peidio talu eu cyfraniad tuag at Cyfraniadau £250k yr Awdurdodau Lleol 
am 2018-19.

3. I’r Cyd-Bwyllgor penderfynu’r dyraniad o’r £30k sy’n weddill o’r cyllid £250k gan 
Lywodraeth Cymru am yr Rhaglen Adolygu ac Adnewyddu.

4. I’r Cyd-bwyllgor nodi’r cyllid grant ychwanegol ers y cyfarfod diwethaf, sy’n gyfanswm o 
£4.163m

Y RHESYMAU: 

I dderbyn cyemradwyaeth gan y Cyd-Bwyllgor

Awdur yr Adroddiad:

Jon Haswell

Swydd:

Swyddog 151 

Rhif Ffon 01437 775839

E: bost
Jonathan.haswell@pembrokeshire.gov.uk

Tudalen 29

Eitem Rhif  7.1



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

ERW JOINT COMMITTEE

8TH FEBRUARY 2019

BUDGET MONITORING REPORT 

BRIEF SUMMARY OF PURPOSE OF REPORT

To provide the ERW Joint Committee with a financial update on the following:
 
 2018-19 Central Team Budget

 Service Level Agreements

 2018-19 Grant Allocations

 2018-19 Grants – Regional Consortia School Improvement Grant (RCSIG)

 2018-19 ERW Business Plan Priorities 

 Curriculum and Assessment
 Developing the Profession
 Leadership
 School Improvement
 Strong and Inclusive Schools

 ERW Review and Reform Programme

 Risks

 Reserves

 Recommendations

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? YES 

Tudalen 30



IMPLICATIONS

Policy, Crime & 
Disorder and 
Equalities

Legal Finance Risk Management Issues Staffing Implications

NONE NONE YES NONE NONE

FINANCE

The budget report will inform financial decision making for the remainder of the financial year

CONSULTATIONS

N/A

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:
THERE ARE NONE

Tudalen 31



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Tudalen 33



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



 

   

Parc Cathays • Cathays Park 

Caerdydd • Cardiff 

CF10 3NQ  

  

 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
                        
 
               22 November 2018 
                              

Dear Mr Haswell 
 
REGIONAL CONSORTIA SCHOOL IMPROVEMENT GRANT 2018-19 
REVISED GRANT FUNDING:  
 
(i)  This letter details an increase in the Funding awarded to Pembrokeshire County 
Council in delivering the Regional Consortia School Improvement Grant for 2018-19. 

I can confirm that the Welsh Ministers have agreed to increase the Funding awarded 
by a further £3,505,484 (Three Million, Five Hundred and Five Thousand, Four  
Hundred and Eighty Four Pounds) for 2018/19. The additional Funding is over and 
above that which was originally anticipated as detailed in the original Funding award 
letter dated 27 September 2018. 
 
This increased funding forms part of the regional school improvement element and is 
to support: 
(i) School Improvement  
(ii) Professional Teaching Awards Cymru PTAC 
(iii) National Professional Qualification for Headship (NPQH) 
(iv) Digital Competence Framework (DCF) 
(v) Modern Foreign Languages – building capacity in the primary sector 
(vi) Curriculum Pioneer Partnership Schools and Additional Capacity for AoLE 

Groups  
(vii) Part time and Work Based ITE 
(viii) More Able and Talented; and  
(ix) National Academy for Educational Leadership - Associates Programme 
(x) Professional learning to support and raise the quality of our teachers. 
(xi) Capacity Building expertise 
 
Detail on the criteria for and the purpose of the funding is contained within the 
Schedule to this letter.  

The award is made under the authority of the Cabinet Secretary for Education, one of 
the Welsh Ministers.  
 
This brings the total amount allocated to the Regional Consortia School Improvement 
Grant to £44,476,586 (Forty Four Million, Four Hundred and Seventy Six Thousand, 
Five Hundred and Eighty Six Pounds).    

Mr Jonathan Haswell 
Section 151 Officer 
Pembrokeshire County Council 
Haverfordwest 
Pembrokeshire 
SA61 1TP 

 

Tudalen 35



 

 

 
 
The statutory basis for this Funding is made on and subject to the Conditions and 
under the authority of the Cabinet Secretary for Education, one of the Ministers, 
acting pursuant to sections 14-17 of the Education Act 2002 and 70 and 71(1) of the 
Government of Wales Act (GOWA) 2006.   
 
The increased funding is subject to the terms and conditions provided in the original 
Funding award letter dated 27 September 2008, with the exemption of these clauses 
within Schedule 1: 
 

 Delegation to schools; 

 Local Authority Match funding for each region; and 

 Administration and management costs. 
 

(ii) This letter details the following changes to the Funding award: 

 
Award of Funding (1) - The Funding, as awarded in September 2018 and in this 
variation, relates to the period 1 March 2018 to 31 March 2019 and the Funding must 
be claimed in full by 31 March 2019 otherwise any unclaimed part of the Funding will 
cease to be available to you.  
 
This variation excludes an extension to the end of the 2018/19 academic year except 
for the More Able and Talented (MAT) element. Funding relating to the MAT 
programme should be included in your final claim, but may relate to expenditure 
within the academic year 2018-19.  All other funding for the 2019-20 financial year 

will be treated under separate cover at a later date.  
 
The ‘Specific conditions of Funding for the period relating to the element which 
supports the Education Improvement Grant for Schools’ under Schedule 1 of the 
Funding award includes as an addition: “support for schools and local authorities in 
undertaking certain elements of their statutory duties, including for 14-19 Learning 
Pathways where: 
 

 You must ensure that all your schools have entered their local curriculum offer 
data on Careers Wales Online by 30 April 2019. 

 

 You must ensure you schools meet the requirements of the Learning and 
Skills Measure 2009; that they offer students a minimum of 25 courses, 3 of 
which are vocational at KS4 and at post 16 schools must offer a minimum of 
30 choices of which 5 must be vocational. The vocational courses for post 16 
must fall across the 3 domains, one of which must be mathematics, science 
and technology domain. 

 
Schedule 3 – Payment Profile - this will reflect the increased amount offered and 
retain bi-monthly payments as set out below: 
 

Period 
 

Payment date for processing  

March – April 2018 1  
2 26 October 2018 May – June 2018 

July – August 2018 

September – October 2018 6 November 2018 

November – December 2018 18 December 2018 Tudalen 36



 

 

January – February 2019 26 February 2019 

March 2019 26 March 2019 

 
In order to accept this additional Funding and confirm that you accept the Terms and 
Conditions in relation to the new Funding and awarded Funding, you must sign and a 
copy of this letter to and return it to: 
 
Gordon MacDonald 
Education Directorate 
Welsh Government 
Cathays Park 
Cardiff 
CF103NQ 
email: Gordon.Macdonald@gov.wales 
 
A scanned PDF of the signed letter is preferred, but it must be returned from the 
email address of project manager named in the original grant award letter dated 27 
September 2018.  
  
Please note that none of the Funding will be paid to you until we have received your 
signed letter. We must receive your signed letter on or before (28 days from date of 
letter) or this additional Funding will automatically be withdrawn.  
 
Yours sincerely 
 

 
 
 

Mel Godfrey 

Signed by Mel Godfrey 
under authority of the Cabinet Secretary for Education  
one of the Welsh Ministers. 

 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 37

mailto:Gordon.Macdonald@gov.wales


 

 

 
Schedule of additional support 
 

 

School Improvement £37,500 

Professional Teaching Awards Cymru (PTAC) £5,000 

National Professional Qualification for Headship (NPQH) £195,000 

Digital Competence Framework £28,945 

Modern Foreign Languages – building capacity for MFL in the 
primary sector 

£53,470 

Curriculum Pioneer Partnership Schools and Additional 
Capacity for AoLE Groups 

Estimated £413,000 
up to a maximum of 
£450,000 

Part time and Work Based ITE  £50,000 

More Able and Talented (MAT) £144,443 

National Academy for Educational Leadership - Associates 
programme  

£10,000 

Professional learning to support and raise the quality of our 
teachers. 

£2,461,126 

Capacity Building expertise £70,000 

 
 
School Improvement  

You will be expected to fund Strategic leaders who will work with and on behalf of the 
regional consortia to support and challenge schools against criteria agreed with 
Welsh Government officials.   
 
Professional Teaching Awards Cymru (PTAC) 
You will be expected to facilitate the judging of the Professional Teaching Awards 
Cymru by providing support on the development of the awards and specialist advice 
in relation to the nominations. 
 
National Professional Qualification for Headship (NPQH) 
To deliver a revised NPQH to support the new Professional Standards for Teaching 
and Leadership and Our national mission. Both are key aspects of the action plan to 
equip Wales with inspirational leaders who can work collaboratively and are 
committed to raising standards and reducing the attainment gap.  It is therefore vitally 
important that the next generation of head teachers are developed and supported to 
ensure that they are equipped to face the challenges of headship and to embed the 
role of head teachers as leaders of change in our system.  
 
Funding per annum comprises of £4,500 per candidate, limited to 160 candidates, 
plus an additional £60,000 to revise the current NPQH programme to ensure its 
alignment to the new Professional Leadership Standards.  As regional candidate 
numbers for 2018-2019 are in excess of 40 the funding will be divided equally 
between regions.  
 
As part of this funding you will be expected to: 
 

 maintain the quality threshold so that candidates are only accepted onto the 
programme that have a high likelihood of successfully completing and 
progressing to a headship position (assuming one is available) within 2 years,  

Tudalen 38



 

 

 take into account any pressure points and areas of need (such as the need for 
Welsh Medium heads) when considering candidates and prioritise 
appropriately; and,  

 ensure consistency of delivery across the regions and they are in line with the 
new Professional standards 

 
Any underspend is subject to claw-back and redistribution. 
 
Digital Competence Framework  
As part of this funding you will be expected to provide digital support based on your 
regional needs. The aim is to further embed the DCF across the curriculum. 
 
Modern Foreign Languages – building capacity in the primary sector 
As part of this funding you will be expected to direct funding for the specific purpose 
of building capacity for MFL in the Primary sector. 
 
Curriculum Pioneer Partnership Schools and Additional Capacity for AoLE 
Groups 

As part of this funding you will be expected to provide additional funding for each of 
curriculum and/or digital pioneer partnership for the summer and Autumn 2018, to 
increase capacity to Areas of Learning groups.  
 
You will also use this funding to provide additional funding to schools that provide 
additional capacity to specific AoLEs. These schools are agreed in partnership 
between Welsh Government and Regional consortia Successful Futures leads 
 
Part time and Work Based ITE  
To support the procurement and appointment of the supplier to deliver the 
developments in regard of part time and work based routes to initial teacher 
education.  
 
As part of this funding you will be expected to: release a member (or more) of staff to 
work with us and support Welsh Government through the procurement stages of this 
work and with the successful provider once identified, through to the launch of the 
programme and its implementation.  
 
More Able and Talented (MAT) 

This funding is made available to support the development of a new national 
approach to identifying and supporting our more able and talented learners in Wales. 
This work is being led at consortia level by the cross-regional MAT group and will be 
subject to Welsh Government approval of the detailed proposals submitted this 
academic term.  
 
National Academy for Educational Leadership – Academy Associates 
programme (AAP) 

Additional funding to support delivery of the Academy’s Associates programme under 
our priorities for leadership; supporting inspirational leaders working collaboratively to 
raise standards. The Funding is to support the release of a consortium member of 
staff who is acting as part of the delivery team for the AAP, calculated on the basis of 
28 days input to the remaining elements of the programme up until December 2018.  
 
 
 
 
 Tudalen 39



 

 

Professional learning to support and raise the quality of our teachers. 
 
The expectation of the funding is to help schools meet the demands of the new 
National Approach to Professional Learning (NAPL) and enable investment in the 
elements of the model.  For example, it enables investment in practitioners’ individual 
professional learning journeys and investment in collaboration.    
 
The primary purpose of the funding is creating time in schools for practitioners to 
make the changes to practice they need to make in advance of the realisation of the 
new curriculum.   
 
The funding is to be targeted at the learning required by teachers and learners to 
prepare them for the new curriculum.   
 
The expectation of the funding is that every practitioner is to be given the opportunity 
to engage with professional learning utilising the funding. It is not reserved 
exclusively for the use of teachers and leaders and should be used, for example, to 
also enable access to professional learning for teaching assistants. 
 
The principles underpinning the distribution and use of this funding are that: 
 

 it is delegated in its entirety to schools and school budgets; 
 

 the method used to determine funding at school level is calculated on FTE 
teacher numbers at the latest verified census point. This is the data that will 
drive the WG funding allocation to LAs;  

 

 the funding is not exclusively reserved for support of teachers and leaders and 
is to be used to support all practitioners who support teaching and learning in 
classrooms including TAs/LSAs; 

 

 the funding should be utilised to support engagement with the regional 
professional learning offer, or a professional offer, for example an HEI, or to 
support professional learning collaboration across schools.   

 
In line with this, the funding should be used to support areas such as: 
 

 the general release of teachers and TAs to engage in professional learning 
activities; 

 

 the renumeration of individuals, creating roles and posts, to support the co-
ordination of PL activities across a school or group of schools.  These roles 
would support colleagues, departments or whole school approaches to critical 
enquiry, change management and SLO activities; 

 

 the release costs for practitioners to engage in research activities and critical 
enquiry, funding release time to investigate the implications of the new 
curriculum for their own teaching and assessment practice; 

 

 the release costs to enable practitioners to collaborate both within school and 
across clusters and networks of schools – engaging with collaborative 
professional learning and collaborative planning; 

 

Tudalen 40



 

 

 supporting the development of the roles such as school (or cluster level) 
Professional Learning Coach  

 
There is an expectation that schools will maximise the efficacy of the funding by 
pooling their resources appropriately across clusters/structured networks to maximise 
the impact and level of funding. 
 
Monitoring requirements  
 
Schools should publish their Professional Learning plans (either on a school or 
cluster level) outlining how they plan to support the professional learning needs of all 
practitioners within their schools and report annually report against those plans 
(again publishing a short report on their web-site).   
 
Challenge Advisors within the regions should work alongside schools to consider the 
plans and in essence sign off to confirm that the plan meets the needs. 
 
Capacity Building Expertise 
 
The funding supports the provision of expertise within ERW, in relation to our national 
mission, to enable the co-construction of key polices in relation to small and rural 
schools and workforce planning.   
 
Initially the work will focus on work within the Rural Education Plan along with the 
development of a workforce plan, to include a focus on small and rural schools, 
developing Welsh language skills and improving the quality of the supply workforce, 
including: 
 

 taking forward identified actions in the Rural Education Plan; 

 a state of the nation position on what is now in the system, and how it is 
informing planning around workforce development; 

 an outline strategy for the delivery of recommendation 3 of Mick Waters report 
“Teaching: a valued profession”; and   

 a plan to co-construct the 10 year workforce development plan 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 41



 

 

 
REGIONAL CONSORTIA SCHOOL IMPROVEMENT GRANT FOR 2018-19: 
REVISED GRANT FUNDING NOVEMBER 2018: 
GRANT ACCEPTANCE 
 
We hereby accept the additional award of Funding for the Regional Consortia School 
Improvement Grant 2018-19 and the Conditions relating to the Funding. 
 
 
 
______________________________________ Signature 
Signatory on behalf of  Pembrokeshire County Council 
 
 
______________________________________ Name  
 
 
______________________________________  Title 

 
 
______________________________________Date 

 
 
 

 
______________________________________ Signature 
Signatory on behalf of Pembrokeshire County Council 
 
 
______________________________________ Name 
 
 
______________________________________ Title 

 
 
______________________________________ Date 
 
 
 
 
________________________________________ Signature 
Signatory on behalf of the ERW Consortium 
 
 
_________________________________________ Name 
 
 
_______________________________________     Title 
 
 
_______________________________________     Date 
 

Tudalen 42



1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 

ERW Financial Update 
2018-19 

 
  

 8 February 2019 

 
ERW S151 Officer 

 
 

Tudalen 43



2 
 

1. Introduction 
 

This report presents the Joint Committee with a financial update at 30 
November 2018. 
 

2. 2018-19 Central Team Budget 
 

The 2018-19 Central Team budget was approved by the Joint Committee on 21 
March 2018.  Whilst it is accepted that we need to limit the number of budget 
amendments during the year, reality and changing circumstances will 
inevitably mean that revisions will be needed as we respond to changes in 
funding from Welsh Government.  

 
Following a recommendation from the Joint Committee on 21 September 
2017, centrally funded employees and secondments are shown separately 
under each Business Plan 2018-19 priority to make it clearer where they are 
being funded from (see pages 6 to 12). 
 
It has been noted that grant dependency, leading to the lack of resilience in 
staffing and capacity, is a high risk.  
 
Service Level Agreements (SLA’s) 
 
All SLA’s have been reviewed in order to provide full cost recovery for the 
Authority providing the service. For 2018-19 the breakdown is as follows: 
 

SLA’s Budgeted Cost 

Committee Services (Carmarthenshire) £5,000 

Scrutiny (Swansea) £5,000 

Finance (Pembrokeshire) £31,357 

Internal Audit (Pembrokeshire) £20,000 

Human Resources (Pembrokeshire) £10,000 

Information Technology (Pembrokeshire) £24,000 

Procurement (Pembrokeshire)  £15,000 

Insurance (Pembrokeshire) - 

Communications  - 

 Total Budgeted SLA’s £110,357 

 

The projected outturn for SLAs shows a saving of £72k due to the non-requirement 
for Insurance and Communications SLAs and a reduction in the HR and IT core service 
SLA.  
 
The Joint Committee has requested that expressions of interest be sought from the 
six Local Authorities in respect of providing these services in 2019-20. 
 
 
 

Tudalen 44



3 
 

 

Core Budgeted Expenditure 

2018-19 
Projected 

Outturn at 31 
August 2018 

£000's 

2018-19 
Revised 

Projected  
Outturn          
£000's 

Actual 
Income / 

Expenditure            
November 

2018     
£000's 

Committed 
£000's 

          

Staffing Costs         

Salaries, Secondments, Specialists  58 56 37 19 

Core Central Staff Salaries to be Recharged 387 441 257 184 

Travel, Subsistence, Training and 
Development  6 7 6 1 

IT Hardware & Mobiles 1 1 1 - 

  452 505 301 204 

          

Development and Running Costs         

Rent and Accommodation 32 61 34 27 

Stationary, Telephone, Photocopying  11 11 8 3 

Translation 10 10 7 3 

Software, Marketing, R&E, 32 32 31 1 

Service Level Agreements  182 110 5 105 

Professional Learning  - - - - 

External Audit  14 14 - 14 

Refund to Welsh Government  - 7 - 7 

  281 245 85 160 

          

Total Estimated Expenditure  733 750 386 364 

          

Core Budgeted Income  

2018-19 
Projected 
Outturn at 

August 2018 
£000's 

2018-19 
Revised 

Projected 
Outturn     
£000's 

Actual 
Income / 

Expenditure            
November 

2018   
£000's 

Committed 
£000's 

          

Local Authority Contributions 250 250 210 40 

Other Income 4 4 - 4 

Grant Funding Administration 397 451 257 194 

          

Total Estimated Income  651 705 467 238 

          

Core Net Expenditure 82 45 (81) 126 

Appropriation from Reserve (82) (45) 81 (126) 

 

 All office costs are primarily costed to the Core Central Team and where 
appropriate, the costs are recharged to various grants. 

 It is anticipated that £451k of Core Central Team costs will be recoverable 
from various grant funding sources in 2018-19.This has increased from 

Tudalen 45



4 
 

previous projected amounts due to the MD being recharged to service 
review.   

 The planned use of reserves for 2018-19 has reduced to £45k, this has 
resulted in a reduction of £37k in the use of reserves.   

 The 2018-19 budget has been prepared on the basis of the total annual 
contribution from the six Local Authorities remaining at £250k, as in 
previous years.  At the date of writing this report £210k of this has been 
received, Neath Port Talbot’s element of £40k is outstanding.  

The Joint Committee was informed on 21 March 2018 that Neath Port 
Talbot County Council’s budget was prepared without budget provision 
being made for their core ERW contribution. The Lead Chief Executive 
wrote to Neath Port Talbot and their reply was attached in a previous 
Joint Committee report. This matter has not yet been resolved. 
Resolution of this issue was a pre-requisite condition of the RCSIG grant 
funding from Welsh Government for 2018-19.  

At the Joint Committee meeting on 16 October 2018, it was agreed “that 
a further report be submitted to determine what action can be taken in 
the event of Neath Port Talbot County Council not paying its share of the 
£250k Local Authority Contribution for 2018-19”. The ERW Monitoring 
Officer will provide the Joint Committee with an update at the meeting.  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 46



5 
 

3. 2018-19 Grant Allocations 

Regional Consortia School Improvement 

Grant (RCSIG) 

Curriculum and Assessment 919 - 919

Developing a High Quality Education

Profession
4,474 3,188 7,662

Developing a High Quality Education -EIG 33,609 - 33,609

Leadership 329 200 529

Self-Improving System 568 48 616

Strong and Inclusive Schools - - -

Total RCSIG Grant 39,899 - 43,335

RCSIG Academic 2017-18 * 637 - 637

Review and Reform (Separated for

Transparency) *** 187 62 249

Total of RCSIG Offer Letter 2018-19 40,723 3,498 44,221

Pupil Development Grant (PDG)

PDG 23,233 159 23,392

LAC PDG 1,100 - 1,100

Total of PDG Offer Letter 2018-19 24,333 159 24,492

British Council 13 - 13

Education Workforce Council - 506 506

2017-18 Academic Year Grants Residual 

Balances 

Siarter Iaith * 190 - 190

NPQH * 113 - 113

NQHT * 585 - 585

A level * 37 - 37

925 - 925

Total 2018-19 Grants 65,994 4,163 70,157

2018-19                  

As Reported 

October 2018 

£000's

** Variations 

Received to 

November 2018 

£000's

2018-19 

Revised 

Budget 

£000's

 
*These are 2017-18 grants which span the academic year September 2017 – August 2018. This money 
was committed to be spent between April – August 2018 in line with the 2017-18 ERW Business Plan. 
Due to the recent financial delays some of this money has not been spent, a request was made to 
Welsh Government to spend this money post August 2018, which was accepted.  
 
** Approval letter attached at Appendix 2 received 26.11.18. 
*** The variation received in Appendix 2 included £70k for this particular element although since this 
offer letter the amount has been reduced to £62k 

Tudalen 47



6 
 

4. 2018-19 Grants 
 
4.2 Regional Consortia School Improvement Grant (RCSIG)  
The revised RCSIG is allocated according to the National Ministerial Priorities. Grants 
received are allocated according to the ERW Business Plan 2018-19 priorities:  
 

 Curriculum and Assessment (4.3) 

 Developing the Profession (4.4) 

 Leadership (4.5) 

 School Improvement (4.6) 

 Strong and Inclusive Schools (4.7) 

The terms and conditions of the grant are carefully adhered to, and wherever possible 
clear links are made between grants to enable greater value for money when planning 
expenditure. 
 
The intention of the new RCSIG is that it will be distributed bi-monthly to the lead 
banker. Due to compliance issues at the beginning of the year ERW did not receive 
any grant until 27 October 2018 causing cash flow implications. The bi monthly 
distributions are a key improvement by Welsh Government which we welcome. It 
allows for greater flexibility and supports us to delegate more resources to schools 
where possible, to build capacity.  
 
This report and the financial information contained within it should be considered 
alongside the ERW Business Plan 2018-19.  

As detailed in the previous report, since January 2018, ERW’s procurement support 
has been formally provided by Pembrokeshire County Council with 3 key items of work 
currently in progress: 

 
1. A framework for support services to support school improvement. 
2. Procurement arrangements for larger programmes  
3. Procurement of system support. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 48



7 
 

4.3 Curriculum and Assessment  

Curriculum and Assessment Budgeted Income  

2018-19 
Projected 
Income 
£000's 

Actual Income at 
November 2018    £000's 

      

RCSIG Curriculum & Assessment 2018-19 919 522 

Siarter Iaith 2017-18 Academic  190 190 

      

Total Estimated Income  1,109 712 

      

Curriculum and Assessment Budgeted 
Expenditure 

2018-19 
Projected 

Expenditure 
£000's 

Actual 
Expenditure        
November 

2018   
£000's 

Committed 
£000's 

Staffing Costs       

Salaries, Secondments, Specialists  744 242 502 

Core Central Staff  37 29 8 

Travel, Subsistence, Training and Development  5 5 - 

IT Hardware & Mobiles 2 1 1 

  788 277 511 

Development and Running Costs       

Accommodation & Venue Hire 6 5 1 

Stationary, Telephone, Photocopying  - - - 

Translation 8 4 4 

Software, Marketing, R&E, - - - 

Professional Learning  - - - 

  14 9 5 

Delegated to Schools       

Passported on WG Instruction 120 70 50 

Regional Support, Support Work, Task  17 - 17 

  137 70 67 

        

Delegated to Local Authorities  170 - 170 

        

Unallocated Funds - - - 

        

Total Estimated Expenditure  1,109 356 753 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 49



8 
 

4.4 Developing the Profession 
  

Developing the Profession Budgeted Income  

2018-19 
Projected 
Income 
£000's 

Actual Income at 
November 2018    £000's 

      

RCSIG Developing the Profession 2018-19 4,474 2,566 

RCSIG Additional Funding November 2018 3,188 - 

RCSIG Developing the Profession 2018-19 EIG  33,609 19,605 

RCSIDG Developing the Profession (Academic) 637 637 

Alevel 2017-18 37 37 

British Council 13 13 

Total Estimated Income  41,958 22,858 

      

Developing the Profession Budgeted 
Expenditure 

2018-19 
Projected 

Expenditure 
£000's 

Actual 
Expenditure       
November 

2018   
£000's 

Committed 
£000's 

Staffing Costs       

Salaries, Secondments, Specialists  3,187 1,351 1,836 

Core Central Staff  112 80 32 

Travel, Subsistence, Training and Development  88 73 15 

IT Hardware & Mobiles       

  3,387 1,504 1,883 

Development and Running Costs       

Accommodation & Venue Hire 26 5 21 

Stationary, Telephone, Photocopying  3 2 1 

Translation 31 16 15 

Software, Marketing, R&E, 20 4 16 

Professional Learning  353 104 249 

  433 131 302 

Delegated to Schools       

Passported on WG Instruction 2,150 870 1,280 

Regional Support, Support Work, Task  939 22 917 

  3,089 892 2,197 

        

Delegated to Local Authorities  35,100 19,037 16,063 

        

Unallocated Funds - - - 

        

Total Estimated Expenditure  42,009 21,564 20,445 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 50



9 
 

4.5 Leadership 
 

Leadership Budgeted Income  

2018-19 
Projected 
Income 
£000's 

Actual Income at 
November 2018    £000's 

      

RCSIG Leadership 2018-19 329 188 

RCSIG Additional Funding November 2018 200 - 

NPQH 2017-18 Academic  113 113 

NQT 2017-18 Academic  585 585 

NQT 2018-19 506 177 

Total Estimated Income  1,733 1,063 

      

Leadership Budgeted Expenditure 

2018-19 
Projected 

Expenditure 
£000's 

Actual 
Expenditure       
November  

2018   
£000's 

Committed 
£000's 

Staffing Costs       

Salaries, Secondments, Specialists  194 124 70 

Core Central Staff  132 86 46 

Travel, Subsistence, Training and Development  8 8 - 

IT Hardware & Mobiles 2 - 2 

  336 218 118 

Development and Running Costs       

Accommodation & Venue Hire 4 1 3 

Stationary, Telephone, Photocopying  2 - 2 

Translation 3 2 1 

Software, Marketing, R&E, - - - 

Professional Learning  160 10 150 

  169 13 156 

Delegated to Schools       

Passported on WG Instruction - - - 

Regional Support, Support Work, Task  1,228 153 1075 

  1,228 153 1,075 

        

Delegated to Local Authorities  - - - 

        

Unallocated Funds - - - 

        

Total Estimated Expenditure  1,733 384 1,349 

 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 51



10 
 

 

4.6 School Improvement 

School Improvement Budgeted Income 

2018-19 
Projected 
Income 
£000's 

Actual Income at 
November 2018    £000's 

      

RCSIG School Improvement 2018-19 568 330 

RCSIG Additional Funding November 2018  48 - 

      

Total Estimated Income  616 330 

      

School Improvement Budgeted Expenditure 

2018-19 
Projected 

Expenditure 
£000's 

Actual 
Expenditure       
November 

2018   
£000's 

Committed 
£000's 

Staffing Costs       

Salaries, Secondments, Specialists  291 146 145 

Core Central Staff  46 35 11 

Travel, Subsistence, Training and Development  6 2 4 

IT Hardware & Mobiles 5 - 5 

  348 183 165 

Development and Running Costs       

Accommodation & Venue Hire 26 2 24 

Stationary, Telephone, Photocopying  2 - 2 

Translation 5 1 4 

Software, Marketing, R&E, - - - 

Professional Learning  30 5 25 

  63 8 55 

Delegated to Schools       

Passported on WG Instruction       

Regional Support, Support Work, Task  205 55 150 

        

        

Delegated to Local Authorities  - - - 

        

Unallocated Funds - - - 

        

Total Estimated Expenditure  616 246 370 

 
 
 
 

 

Tudalen 52



11 
 

4.7 Strong and Inclusive Schools 
 

Strong and Inclusive Schools Budgeted Income 

2018-19 
Projected 
Income 
£000's 

Actual Income at 
November 2018    £000's 

      

PDG 23,233 - 

LAC PDG 1,100 - 

Additional PDG Funding 159 - 

      

Total Estimated Income  24,492 - 

      

Strong and Inclusive Schools Budgeted 
Expenditure 

2018-19 
Projected 

Expenditure 
£000's 

Actual 
Expenditure       
November 

2018   
£000's 

Committed 
£000's 

Staffing Costs       

Salaries, Secondments, Specialists  113 71 42 

Core Central Staff  - - - 

Travel, Subsistence, Training and Development  5 2 3 

IT Hardware & Mobiles 1 - 1 

  119 73 46 

Development and Running Costs       

Accommodation & Venue Hire - - - 

Stationary, Telephone, Photocopying  - - - 

Translation 1 - 1 

Software, Marketing, R&E, - - - 

Professional Learning  55 - 55 

  56 - 56 

Delegated to Schools       

Passported on WG Instruction - - - 

Regional Support, Support Work, Task * 103 - 103 

        

Delegated to Local Authorities * 24,214 - 24,214 

        

Unallocated Funds - - - 

        

Total Estimated Expenditure  24,492 73 24,419 

 

*The LAC PDG was initially intended to be spent via ERW from September 2018. This 

has not happened so these updated budgeted figures now show the full year LAC 

PDG as delegated to Local Authorities.  

 

 

Tudalen 53



12 
 

5. ERW Review and Reform Programme 
The Joint Committee agreed on 21 September 2017 to commence the ERW Review 
and Reform Programme, resulting in the appointment of a Programme Team 
under the leadership of the Lead Chief Executive.  
Welsh Government have provided support of £250k to the ERW Joint Committee 
to facilitate the ERW Review and Reform Programme. 
As detailed below, only £85k of this money has been spent to the end of November 
2018, but all except £30k has been allocated.  

Review and Reform Budgeted Income 

2018-19 
Projected 
Income 
£000's 

Actual Income at 
November 2018     

£000's 

      

Review and Reform  187 152 

RCSIG Additional Funding November 2018 62 - 

      

Total Estimated Income  249 152 

      

Review and Reform Budgeted Expenditure 

2018-19 
Projected 

Expenditure 
£000's 

Actual 
Expenditure       
November 

2018   
£000's 

Committed 
£000's 

Staffing Costs       

Salaries, Secondments, Specialists  43 38 5 

Core Central Staff  114 27 87 

Travel, Subsistence, Training and Development  - - - 

IT Hardware & Mobiles 2 - 2 

  159 65 94 

Development and Running Costs       

Accommodation & Venue Hire 1 1 - 

Stationary, Telephone, Photocopying  - - - 

Translation 2 - 2 

Software, Marketing, R&E, - - - 

Professional Learning  - - - 

HR Advise  57 19 38 

  60 20 40 

Delegated to Schools       

Passported on WG Instruction - - - 

Regional Support, Support Work, Task  - - - 

        

Delegated to Local Authorities  - - - 

        

Unallocated Funds 30  -  - 

        

Total Estimated Expenditure  249 85 134 

 

Tudalen 54



13 
 

6. Risks 
 

This report, in a similar vein to previous Financial Updates, highlights risks for 
ERW. The high cost of secondments (see Annex 1) and the growing expectations 
on ERW are well known. This is reflected in the Review and Reform Programme 
recommendations from previous meetings and Welsh Government supporting 
ERW with additional resources. Estyn have also identified the matter as 
contributing to hindering progress. 
 
The ERW Reserves are diminishing as outlined below. Work on the future 
financial arrangements for ERW is being discussed by the six S151 Officers.  
 
Non-payment of one Authority’s contribution for this financial year remains to 
be resolved. 
 
To ensure funding from the RCSIG grant we need to ensure compliance with the 
pre-conditions set out in the revised grant offer letter. Continues to require 
compliance monitoring. 

 
7. Reserves  

The table below shows the projected implications on ERW Reserves from 2017-
18 to 2018-19.  Despite having a healthy reserve balance of £406k at the 
commencement of 2017-18, between the annual contribution to the cost of the 
Central Team and the contribution to the Pension Reserve the reserves were 
reduced to £190k by the end of 2017-18.  
 
The projected annual contribution to the cost of the Central Team for 2018-19 is 
£45k.  
Movement on the Pension Reserve for 2018-19 could reduce the total reserve 
balance of £145k further.   

 

Balance 31 March 2017 442 100 -136 406

2017-18 To Revenue -60 -156 -216

Balance 31 March 2018 382 100 -292 190

2018-19 To Revenue -45 -45

Balance 31 March 2019 337 100 -292 145

Total 

Reserves 

£000's

Useable Reserves 
Earmarked Joint 

Committee  

Reserves £000's

General Working 

Reserve £000's

Pensions 

Reserve 

£000's

 
 
 
 

Tudalen 55



14 
 

8. Recommendations  
 

1. The Joint Committee approves the amendments to the Central Team budget for 
2018-19. 
 

2. The Joint Committee determine the action to be taken in the event of Neath Port 
Talbot County Council not paying their share of the £250k Local Authority 
Contribution for 2018-19. 

 
3. The Joint Committee determine the allocation of the £30k, remaining from the 

£250k Welsh Government funding for the Review and Reform Programme. 
 

4. The Joint Committee notes the additional grant funding totalling £4.163m since 
the last meeting.  

 
 

 
 

Tudalen 56



CYD-BWYLLGOR ERW 
8 CHWEFROR 2019

RHEOLIADAU ARIANNOL A 
RHEOLAU GWEITHDREFNAU CONTRACT

Y Pwrpas:    

I ERW fabwysiadu’r Rheoliadau Ariannol + Rheolau Gweithdrefnau Contract newydd gan 
Cyngor Sir Benfro. 

YR ARGYMHELLION / PENDERFYNIADAU ALLWEDDOL SYDD EU HANGEN:

I’r Cydbwyllgor

 Mabwysiadu Rheoliadau Ariannol diwygiedig Cyngor Sir Benfro, ar gyfer ERW

 Mabwysiadu’r Rheolau Gweithdrefnau Contract diwygiedig Cyngor Sir Benfro, ar gyfer 
ERW

 Cymeradwyo dethol Cadeirydd Cydbwyllgor ERW (neu Is-Gadeirydd yn eu 
habsenoldeb) fel yr Aelod Cabinet Annibynol at bwrpas y Rheoliadau Ariannol + 
Rheolau Gweithdrefnau Contract.

Y RHESYMAU: 

Cydymffurfiaeth gyda Cyd-Gytundeb ERW (Rheolau Gweithdrefnau Contract), a 
phenderfyniad Cydbwyllgor ERW ar 25/7/2014 (Rheoliadau Ariannol)  

Awdur yr Adroddiad:

Jon Haswell

Swydd:

Swyddog Adran 151 ERW

Rhif Ffon 01437 775836
  
E: bost 
haswellj@pembrokeshire.gov.uk

Tudalen 57

Eitem Rhif  7.2



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
ERW JOINT COMMITTEE

8TH FEBRUARY 2019

FINANCIAL REGULATIONS
AND CONTRACT PROCEDURE RULES

BRIEF SUMMARY OF PURPOSE OF REPORT

Financial Regulations

The ERW Joint Agreement does not refer to Financial Regulations, so the Section 151 Officer 
reported on this matter to the first meeting of the ERW Joint Committee on 25 July 2014.  The 
Joint Committee resolved that the “Lead Authority responsible for Finance shall operate within 
the confines of its own Financial Regulations”.  As Pembrokeshire County Council has been 
the Lead Authority responsible for Finance, its Financial Regulations have been used by 
ERW.  They were circulated to all Local Authorities in July 2014 for information.

In December 2018, revised Financial Regulations (see attached) were approved by 
Pembrokeshire County Council, now incorporating Individual Cabinet Member Delegations.

The Joint Committee is requested to adopt the revised Pembrokeshire County Council 
Financial Regulations, for use by ERW, and to approve the ERW Chair (or Vice Chair in her 
absence) as the Independent Cabinet Member for the purposes of the Financial Regulations.

Contract Procedure Rules

Section 5.8 of the ERW Joint Agreement states “The Lead Authority responsible for Contracts 
and Procurement will act as the contracting authority for and on behalf of the Consortium, and 
in accordance with that Authorities Contract Procedure Rules”.  From 2014 to 2018, Powys 
County Council were the Lead Authority for Contracts and Procurement, however, during 
2018 the ERW Managing Director approached Pembrokeshire County Council to undertake 
this function (via an SLA) as Powys were unable to continue.

The Contract Procedure Rules (see attached) were approved by Pembrokeshire County 
Council in December 2018, and incorporate Individual Cabinet Member Delegations.

The Joint Committee is requested to adopt the Pembrokeshire County Council Contract 
Procedure Rules, for use by ERW, and to approve the ERW Chair (or Vice Chair in her 
absence) as the Independent Cabinet Member for the purposes of the Contract Procedure 
Rules.
DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? NO

Tudalen 58



IMPLICATIONS

Policy, Crime & 
Disorder and 
Equalities

Legal Finance Risk Management Issues Staffing Implications

NONE YES YES YES NONE

1. Legal
Compliance with the ERW Joint Agreement (Contract Procedure Rules) and ERW Joint 
Committee Resolution on 25 July 2014 (Financial Regulations).

2. Finance
Adoption of the Financial Regulations and Contract Procedure Rules is required for the 
effective financial management and governance of ERW.

3. Risk Management
Failure to adopt the Financial Regulations and Contract Procedure Rules could lead to 
ambiguity over the financial decision making and transactions of ERW.

CONSULTATIONS

N/A

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:
THERE ARE NONE

Tudalen 59



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 Financial Regulations 

 

 

 

 

 

 

November 2018 

Tudalen 61



2 

FINANCIAL REGULATIONS 

 CONTENTS  

  Pages 

1.0 Introduction  

1.1 What are Financial Regulations?  4 

1.2 Why are they important? 4-5 

1.3 Who do Financial Regulations apply to? 5 

1.4 Who is responsible for ensuring that they are applied? 5 

1.5 Suspension of Financial Regulations 5 

   

2.0 Financial Management – General Roles and Responsibilities  

2.1 The role of Members 6 

2.2 The role of the Chief Finance Officer 6-9 

2.3 The role of Directors 9-10 

   

3.0 Financial Planning  

3.1 Strategic Planning 11-12 

3.2 Budget Preparation 12-13 

3.3 Budget Approval 13 

3.4 Budget Transfers/Virements 13 

3.5 Budget Monitoring and the Control of Income and Expenditure 13-14 

3.6 Reporting at Year End (Statement of Accounts) 14-15 

3.7 Use of Reserves 15 

   

4.0 Business Risk Management and Control of Resources  

4.1 Business Risk Management 16 

4.2 Internal Control 16-17 

4.3 Insurance 17-18 

4.4 Internal Audit and External Audit 18-19 

4.5 Preventing Fraud and Corruption 20 

4.6 Use of, Recording and Disposal of Assets 20-22 

4.7 Treasury Management 22-24 

4.8 Banking 24-25 

4.9 Income Collection 25-26 

4.10 Anti-Money Laundering 27 

4.11 External Funding 27 

4.12 Debt Collection 28 

4.13 Voluntary Funds and Trust Funds 28 

Tudalen 62



3 

  Pages 

4.14 Purchase Cards 28 

4.15 Advance Accounts 29 

4.16 Employees 29-30 

   

5.0 Financial Systems and Procedures  

5.1 General 31 

5.2 Contracts and Purchasing 31-34 

5.3 Officers and Members Allowances 34 

5.4 Taxation 35 

5.5 Housing Revenue Account 35 

   

6.0 Partnerships 36 

   

7.0 Clarification and Contacts 37 

 

 

Tudalen 63



4 

1.0 Introduction  

1.1 What are Financial Regulations? 

1.1.1 The Chief Finance Officer is responsible for: 

(a) preparing detailed Financial Regulations which provide the framework for the 

proper administration of the Council’s financial affairs; 

(b) issuing advice and guidance to underpin the Financial Regulations which 

Members, Officers and others acting on behalf of the Council are required to 

follow. 

1.1.2 The regulations identify the financial responsibilities of the Full Council, the Cabinet 

and Officers. 

1.1.3 To avoid the need for regular amendment due to changes in post titles, generic 

terms are included for Officers as follows: 

 The term “Directors” refers to the Council’s Chief Executive and the Directors. 

 The term “Cabinet” refers to the Cabinet and Leader of the Council. 

 The term “Chief Finance Officer” is the Councils Statutory Section 151 Officer and 

refers to the Director of Resources (Deputy Section 151 Officer is the Head of 

Finance & Business Services). 

 The term “Head of Internal Audit” refers to the Governance, Assurance and 

Information Manager. 

1.2 Why are they important? 

1.2.1 To conduct its business effectively, the Council needs to ensure that sound financial 

management arrangements are in place and that they are strictly adhered to in 

practice.  Part of this process is the establishment of Financial Regulations which set 

out the financial responsibilities of the Council.   

1.2.2 Good, sound financial management is a key element of the Council’s Corporate 

Governance framework, which helps to ensure that the Council is doing the right 

things, in the right way, for the right people, in a timely, inclusive, open, honest and 

accountable manner. 

1.2.3 Good financial management secures value for money, controls spending, ensures 

probity of transactions and allows decisions to be informed by accurate accounting 

information, substantiating the effective use of public money. 

Tudalen 64



5 

1.2.4 Financial Regulations should not be seen in isolation, but rather as part of the overall 

regulatory framework of the Council as set out in the Constitution. 

1.3 Who do Financial Regulations apply to? 

1.3.1 Financial Regulations apply to every Member and Officer of the Council and anyone 

acting on its behalf.  Members and Officers have a general responsibility for taking 

reasonable action to provide for the security and use of the resources and assets 

under their control, and for ensuring that the use of such resources and assets is 

legal, is consistent with Council policies and priorities, is properly authorised and 

achieves value for money. 

1.3.2 Separate financial procedures have been incorporated into the Council’s Financial 

Regulations for Schools and relate to those matters where decisions have been 

delegated to school governing bodies. 

1.3.3 These Financial Regulations will apply in relation to any partnership for which the 

Council is the accountable body, unless the Council expressly agrees otherwise. 

1.3.4 Failure to observe Financial Regulations may result in action under the Council’s 

disciplinary procedures. 

1.4 Who is responsible for ensuring that they are applied? 

1.4.1 Directors, Heads of Service and Individual Cabinet Members are ultimately 

responsible to the Council for ensuring that Financial Regulations are applied and 

observed by staff and contractors providing services on the Council’s behalf, and for 

reporting to the Chief Finance Officer any known or suspected breaches. 

1.5 Suspension of Financial Regulations 

1.5.1 Where any Director considers that complying with Financial Regulations in a 

particular situation might conflict with the achievement of value for money or the 

best interests of the Council, he/she will raise the issue with the Chief Finance 

Officer who will, if he considers necessary and appropriate, seek formal approval 

from the Cabinet for a specific exception to the regulations.  

 

 

Tudalen 65



6 

2.0 Financial Management – General Roles and Responsibilities 

2.1  The Role of Members 

The Council has a duty towards its Council Tax payers with regard to financial 

decisions and their consequences. Full Council is responsible for approving the 

Budget and Policy Framework within which the Cabinet operates having regard to 

the Chief Finance Officer’s comments in his Local Government Act 2003 section 25 

report on the robustness of estimates and the adequacy of reserves.  The budget 

setting process includes Full Council approval of Prudential Indicators as required by 

the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities.  Full Council is also 

responsible for approving and monitoring compliance with the overall framework of 

accountability and control.   

 The following have specific financial roles and responsibilities as set out in Parts 2 

and 3 of the Constitution: 

 The Council 

 The Cabinet 

 Overview and Scrutiny Committees 

 Audit Committee  

2.2 The Role of the Chief Finance Officer 

2.2.1 The role of the Chief Finance Officer is set out in Part 2, Section 10 of the 

Constitution.  

2.2.2 The Chief Finance Officer is accountable to the Chief Executive and the Council and 

has statutory duties that provide overall responsibility for the financial 

administration and stewardship of the Council. This statutory responsibility cannot 

be overridden.  These statutory duties arise from: 

(a) Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972; 

(b) The Local Government Finance Act 1988; 

(c) The Local Government and Housing Act 1989 / Housing (Wales) Act 2014; 

(d) Local Government Act 2003; 

(e) The Accounts and Audit (Wales) Regulations 2014 (as amended). 

 

Tudalen 66



7 

2.2.3 The Chief Finance Officer is the Council’s professional adviser on financial matters 

and is responsible for: 

(a) the proper administration of the Council’s financial affairs; 

(b) maintaining a continuous review of the Financial Regulations and submitting any 

additions or changes as necessary to the Audit Committee for approval; 

(c) annually reviewing, updating and monitoring compliance with the Financial 

Control Procedures; 

(d) advising on the corporate financial position and on the key financial controls 

necessary to secure sound financial management; 

(e) providing financial information and advice to the Corporate Management Team, 

the Cabinet and the Council on all aspects of its activity including the 

presentation of appropriate financial options as necessary; 

(f) providing training for Members and Officers on Financial Regulations and 

Financial Control Procedures; 

(g) determining accounting policies and ensuring that they are applied consistently; 

(h) determining accounting procedures and records of the Council; 

(i) preparing and monitoring the revenue budget, capital programme and Medium 

Term Financial Plan; 

(j) ensuring the provision of an effective Internal Audit Function; 

(k) ensuring the provision of an effective Treasury Management Function; 

(l) advising on risk management; 

(m) ensuring the Council complies with the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital 

Finance in Local Authorities; 

(n) ensuring that Council spending plans and council tax calculations, identified in 

the Medium Term Financial Plan, are based upon robust estimates; 

(o) ensuring that the level of Council reserves is adequate to meet the known 

financial risks facing the Council over the medium term; 

 

Tudalen 67



8 

(p) ensuring that the annual Statement of Accounts is prepared in accordance with 

the latest Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the UK and the 

Service Reporting Code of Practice (SeRCOP) to ensure consistent financial 

reporting below the Statement of Accounts level; 

(q) ensuring that financial information is available to enable accurate and timely 

monitoring and reporting of comparisons of national and local financial 

performance indicators; 

(r) ensuring that proper professional practices, standards and ethics are adhered 

to; 

(s) acting as head of profession in relation to the standards, performance and 

development of finance staff including the training and professional 

development of all staff employed in posts designated as requiring a qualified 

accountant, accounting technician, or auditor, wherever located; 

(t) the appointment of all finance staff and will be consulted on any proposal to 

create or delete a post requiring such a qualification for appointment; 

(u) The Chief Finance Officer will, at his discretion, report to the Cabinet and/or the 

Audit Committee any breach or material case of non-compliance with these 

Financial Regulations.  Where appropriate the Chief Executive or Chief Finance 

Officer may consult with the Head of Human Resources regarding any 

disciplinary action necessitated by the breach or non-compliance. 

2.2.4 Section 114 of the Local Government Finance Act 1988 requires the Chief Finance 

Officer to report to Full Council and to the External Auditors if the Council or one of 

its Officers: 

(a) has made, or is about to make a decision which involves incurring expenditure 

which is unlawful; 

(b) has taken or is about to take, unlawful action which has resulted or would result 

in a loss or deficiency to the Council; 

(c) is about to make an unlawful entry in the Council’s accounts. 

For clarity, Cipfa also use the term “unbalanced budget” under Section 114. 

 

 

 

Tudalen 68



9 

2.2.5 Section 114 of the Local Government Finance Act 1988 also requires: 

(a) the Chief Finance Officer to nominate a properly qualified member of staff to 

deputise should he or she be unable to perform the duties under section 114 

personally; 

(b) the Council to provide the Chief Finance Officer with sufficient staff, 

accommodation and other resources, including legal advice where necessary, to 

carry out the duties under section 114, as determined by the Chief Finance 

Officer. 

2.2.6 The Chief Finance Officer: 

(a) is required to approve all financial procedures, records, systems and accounts 

throughout the Council which are necessary to ensure that the tasks defined in 

these procedures are properly carried out.  The Council will also ensure that the 

Chief Finance Officer is consulted and given the opportunity to advise upon all 

financial management arrangements to ensure provision of detailed advice and 

guidance on financial systems and procedures necessary to ensure a satisfactory 

standard of accuracy, reliability, probity and regularity; 

(b) will be given access to any information as is necessary to comply with his 

statutory duties and with the requirements and instructions of the Council; 

(c) will be entitled to attend and report on financial matters directly to the Council, 

the Cabinet, and any Committees or working groups the Council may establish 

and to the Corporate Management Team; 

(d) will be sent prior notice of all meetings of the Cabinet and all reports for 

Individual Cabinet Members under the Individual Cabinet Member delegation 

procedure, the Council, all Committees/Sub-Committees/working groups 

together with full agendas and reports and will have authority to attend all 

meetings and take part in the discussion if he so desires. 

2.3 The Role of Directors 

2.3.1 Directors are each accountable to the Council for the financial management and 

administration of those services and activities allocated to them in accordance with 

Council policy. 

 

 

 

Tudalen 69



10 

2.3.2 Directors are responsible for: 

(a) ensuring that adequate and effective systems of internal control are operated to 

ensure the accuracy, legitimacy and proper processing of transactions and the 

management of activities, having regard to advice and guidance from the Chief 

Finance Officer; 

(b) ensuring that Cabinet Members are advised of the financial implications of all 

proposals and that the financial implications have been agreed by the Chief 

Finance Officer; 

(c) consulting with the Chief Finance Officer in seeking approval regarding any 

matters which may affect the Council’s finances materially, before any 

commitments are incurred; 

(d) consulting with each other on any issue with corporate financial implications 

before submitting policy options or recommendations to Members. 

Tudalen 70



11 

3.0 Financial Planning 

3.1 Strategic Planning 

3.1.1 The Full Council is responsible for approving the Council’s Budget and Policy 

Framework (Part 2, Section 3 of the Constitution).  

3.1.2 The preparation of the Medium Term Financial Plan is part of the Budget and Policy 

Framework of the Council and aims to ensure that the Council’s spending plans are 

prudent, affordable, sustainable and reflect Council priorities. 

3.1.3 In terms of strategic financial planning, the key documents for consideration are: 

(a) the Programme for the Administration; 

(b) the Council’s Corporate Plan (including Well-being Objectives); 

(c) the Council’s Transformation Programme; 

(d) the Budget Strategy; 

(e) the Capital Strategy; 

(f) the Treasury Management Strategy and Investment Strategy; 

(g) the Strategic Asset Management Plan; 

(h) the Business Risk Management Strategy and Corporate Risk Register; 

(i) the Workforce Development Plan; 

(j) the Council’s Performance Management Framework. 

3.1.4 The Full Council is responsible for approving procedures for agreeing variations to 

approved budgets, plans and strategies forming the Budget and Policy Framework 

and for determining the circumstances in which a decision will be deemed to be 

contrary to or not wholly in accordance with the Budget and Policy Framework.  

3.1.5 The Monitoring Officer and Head of Legal and Democratic Services will, in 

conjunction with the Chief Finance Officer, advise whether decisions of the Cabinet 

are in accordance with the Budget and Policy Framework. 

 

 

 

Tudalen 71



12 

3.1.6 Directors are responsible for the preparation and monitoring of service improvement 

plans within their Directorates in accordance with the corporate performance 

management framework. Service improvement plans should align with the 

Programme for the Administration and the Council’s Corporate Plan (including Well-

being Objectives) and be consistent with and based upon the budget allocated by 

the Council to the service. 

3.2 Budget Preparation 

3.2.1 The Cabinet, in consultation with the Chief Finance Officer is responsible for 

approving the Budget Strategy.   

3.2.2 The Budget Strategy will take account of: 

(a) the Programme for the Administration and the Council’s Corporate Plan 
(including Well-being Objectives); 

(b) workforce inflation, non-workforce inflation, demographic and legislative 
pressures; 

(c) funding from Welsh Government (Aggregate External Finance and specific grant) 
and other sources; 

(d) council tax increases; 

(e) the level of reserves and the general fund working balance; 

(f) the affordability and sustainability of service provision; 

(g) the affordability, sustainability and prudence of capital investment plans; 

(h) legal requirements and other relevant government requirements and guidelines; 

(i) value for money; 

(j) other internal policy documents; 

(k) cross-cutting issues (where relevant). 

3.2.3 The Chief Finance Officer is responsible for: 

(a)  developing and maintaining a budget and resource allocation process that 

ensures consideration of the Policy Framework; 

(b) ensuring that a detailed revenue budget and a strategic plan up to a four year 

period (Medium Term Financial Plan) are prepared on an annual basis, for 

consideration by the Cabinet before submission to Full Council for approval; 

Tudalen 72



13 

(c)  ensuring that a detailed capital programme and an indicative capital programme 

for a further two year period is prepared on an annual basis, for consideration 

by the Cabinet before submission to the Full Council for approval. 

3.2.4 It is the responsibility of the Chief Finance Officer to advise the Cabinet and/or the 

Full Council on prudent levels of working balances and reserves for the Council. 

3.2.5 Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Policy Framework and service 

improvement plans within their Directorate are deliverable within the approved 

budget allocation. 

3.3 Budget Approval 

3.3.1  The Budget approval process is set out in Part 2 Section 3 of the Constitution. 

3.3.2 Provision of an item in the approved Budget (revenue and capital) confers authority 

on the Cabinet/Directors to incur such expenditure during the financial year to which 

the budget relates.  

3.3.3 Authorisation of capital schemes will be in accordance with decisions of Cabinet or 

under the Individual Cabinet Member Delegations – “Authorise schemes within the 

agreed capital programme or for which capital provision is available within a 

delegated budget if deemed affordable by the Section 151 Officer, subject to 

paragraph 5.2.2 below”. 

3.4 Budget Transfers/Virements 

3.4.1 Budget transfers/virements will be in accordance with the Individual Cabinet 

Member Delegations: 

(a)  Up to £50,000 – Directors approval required; 

(b) Exceeding £50,000 to £1,000,000 – Individual Cabinet Members approval 

required; 

(c) Exceeding £1,000,000 – Cabinet approval required. 

3.4.2 Authorisation of the Chief Finance Officer is required to release funds from reserves 

in accordance with the Strategy for Holding and Utilising Reserves. 

3.4.3 A capital budget cannot be transferred to a revenue budget. 

Tudalen 73



14 

3.5 Budget Monitoring and the Control of Income and Expenditure  

3.5.1 The Chief Finance Officer (and Head of Human Resources in regard to payroll, 
pensions and personal taxation) is responsible for: 

(a) developing an effective framework of budget management and control; 

(b) providing appropriate financial information to enable budgets to be monitored 

effectively; 

(c) reporting to Directors, the Cabinet (and other Committees as appropriate) on 

the overall Council budget monitoring position on at least a half-yearly basis; 

(d) all payments to employees, Members and creditors; 

(e) maintaining the Council’s tax records; 

(f) advising Directors on all taxation issues that affect the Council; 

(g) ensuring that all funding notified by external bodies is received and properly 

recorded in the Council’s accounts; 

(h) approving arrangements for the collection of income due to the Council; 

(i) approving banking, borrowing and other credit requirements, e.g. leasing; 

(j) approving the write off of bad debts; 

3.5.2 Contracts for the supply of goods and services or the undertaking of works will be in 

accordance with the Contract Procedure Rules and Individual Cabinet Member 

Delegations. 

3.5.3  Separate financial procedures for schools have been incorporated into the Council’s 

Financial Regulations for Schools and relate to those matters where decisions have 

been delegated to school governing bodies. 

3.5.4 It is the responsibility of Directors to: 

(a) control income and expenditure within their Directorate and service areas and 
only incur expenditure for which there is budgetary provision; 

(b) monitor performance in conjunction with the budget taking account of financial 
information provided by the Chief Finance Officer; 

(c) report on budget variances (expenditure and income) within their own areas to 
the Chief Finance Officer; 

Tudalen 74



15 

(d) take any corrective action necessary to avoid exceeding their budget allocation 
and alert the Chief Finance Officer accordingly. 

3.6 Reporting at Year End (Statement of Accounts) 

3.6.1 The Chief Finance Officer is responsible for: 

(a) providing the Cabinet with an annual budget outturn statement; 

(b) publishing an annual timetable for the closure, audit and approval of the 

accounts; 

(c) ensuring that the Council’s annual Statement of Accounts is prepared in 

accordance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the 

United Kingdom (CIPFA/LASAAC), the Accounts and Audit (Wales) Regulations 

2014 (as amended) and any other relevant guidelines. 

(d) submitting the draft Statement of Accounts to the External Auditor for audit, the 

Audit Committee for review and Council for approval, in accordance with the 

timetable. 

3.6.2 It is the responsibility of Directors to ensure that arrangements are put in place each 

year to deliver the Council’s timetable. 

3.7 Use of Reserves 

3.7.1 The Chief Finance Officer is responsible for advising the Cabinet and/or the Full 

Council on levels of reserves for the Council.  The advice will be based upon an 

annual risk assessment of the prudent levels of reserves the Council should maintain. 

3.7.2 The Chief Finance Officer will manage the reserves in accordance with the Strategy 

for Holding and Utilising Reserves. 

Tudalen 75



16 

4.0 Business Risk Management and Control of Resources 

4.1 Business Risk Management 

4.1.1 It is essential that robust, integrated systems are developed and maintained for 

identifying, evaluating, managing and reviewing all significant strategic and 

operational business risks to the achievement of the Council’s Well-being objectives.  

This should include the proactive participation of all those associated with planning 

and delivering services. 

4.1.2 The Corporate Risk Management Group is responsible for reviewing strategic risks 

and reporting progress on their management to the Corporate Management Team, 

the Audit Committee and the Cabinet. 

4.1.3 The Cabinet are responsible for formally approving the Council’s Corporate Risk 

Register on an annual basis. 

4.1.4 The Audit Committee is responsible for approving the Council’s Business Risk 

Management Strategy and for reviewing the effectiveness of the Council’s business 

risk management arrangements. 

4.1.5 The Chief Finance Officer is the Councils nominated Business Risk Management 

Champion, supported by the Members Business Risk Management Champion.  

4.1.6 The Chief Finance Officer/Head of Internal Audit are responsible for preparing the 

Council’s Business Risk Management Strategy and for promoting and embedding it 

throughout the Council and for advising the Cabinet on risk mitigation for significant 

risks where appropriate. 

4.1.7 It is the responsibility of Directors to ensure there are regular reviews of business 

risks within their areas of responsibility having regard to advice from the Chief 

Finance Officer/Head of Internal Audit and other specialist Officers (e.g. Legal and 

Health & Safety). 

4.1.8 It is the responsibility of Directors and Heads of Service to ensure compliance with 

the Business Risk Management Strategy and Guidelines. 

4.2 Internal Control 

4.2.1 Internal control refers to the systems of control devised by management to help 

ensure the Council’s Well-being objectives are achieved in a manner that promotes 

economic, efficient and effective use of resources and that the Council’s assets and 

interests are safeguarded. 

Tudalen 76

http://pccintranet/content.asp?nav=105,116,270&parent_directory_id=101&id=4170&d1p1=1


17 

4.2.2 Effective internal control systems ensure that the Council secures probity and 

legitimacy of transactions, and prevents and detects fraud, misuse of assets and 

funds, and irregularity. 

4.2.3 The Head of Internal Audit is responsible for advising on effective systems of internal 

control.  Effective systems of internal control should ensure compliance with all 

applicable statutes and regulations, and other relevant statements of best practice.  

They should also ensure that public funds are properly safeguarded and used 

economically, efficiently and in accordance with the statutory and other authorities 

that govern their use. 

4.2.4 It is the responsibility of Directors to establish sound arrangements for planning, 

appraising, authorising and controlling their operations in order to achieve 

continuous improvement, value for money, effective use of resources and achieving 

their financial performance targets. 

4.2.5 The Council is required to provide a Statement on Internal Control (Annual 

Governance Statement) in accordance with the Accounts and Audit (Wales) 

Regulations 2014 (as amended).  As part of this statement, the Chief Executive and 

the Leader of the Council are required to comment on the effectiveness of the entire 

internal control environment within the Council as a key indicator of good 

governance. 

4.2.6 Directors and Statutory Officers are required to give annual assurance that sound 

governance arrangements exist within their Directorates.  Financial Control 

Procedures have been established to bring to the attention of those with 

responsibility for budgetary control the issues they need to consider to ensure the 

required governance arrangements are in place. 

4.3 Insurance 

4.3.1 Insurance provision is a way of managing risk.   

4.3.2 The Chief Finance Officer is responsible for: 

(a) effecting insurance cover falling within the Policy Framework approved by the 

Council and dealing with all claims in consultation with other Directors where 

necessary; 

(b) operating an internal insurance account(s) for risks not covered by external 

insurance policies and is authorised to charge the various Council Service 

budgets with the cost of contributions to this account; 

Tudalen 77

http://pccintranet/content.asp?nav=104,150,157&parent_directory_id=101
http://pccintranet/content.asp?nav=104,150,157&parent_directory_id=101


18 

(c) reviewing, at least annually, all insurances in consultation with Directors where 

necessary. 

4.3.3 It is the responsibility of Directors to: 

(a) advise the Chief Finance Officer of all new risks, properties, vehicles or potential 

liabilities for which insurance may be required; and of any changes affecting 

existing risks or insurance cover required; 

(b) notify the Chief Finance Officer in writing and without delay of any loss, liability 

or damage or any event likely to lead to a claim, and will provide such 

information and explanations required by the Chief Finance Officer or the 

Council’s insurers; 

(c) consult with the Head of Legal and Democratic Services on the terms of any 
indemnity which they are requested to give on behalf of the Council; 

(d) ensure that employees, or anyone covered by the Council’s insurances, do not 
admit liability or make any offer to pay compensation that may prejudice the 
assessment of liability in respect of any insurance claim; 

(e) keep suitable records and ensure inspections of any asset are carried out within 
any period prescribed by legislation or insurers. 

4.3.4 Any monies due from the insurers will be paid to the Chief Finance Officer. 

4.4 Internal Audit and External Audit 

4.4.1 The requirement for an internal audit function for local authorities is implied by 

section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972, which requires that authorities 

“make arrangements for the proper administration of their financial affairs”.  

Reliance on Internal Audit is fundamental to this responsibility.  The Accounts and 

Audit (Wales) Regulations 2014 require that a “relevant body shall maintain an 

adequate and effective system of internal audit of their accounting records and 

control systems and review its effectiveness on an annual basis”. 

4.4.2 The Chief Finance Officer is responsible for: 

(a) ensuring that the Council has appropriate arrangements in place to maintain an 

adequate and effective internal audit function; 

(b) maintaining a continuous internal audit and, so far as he/she may deem 

reasonable, arrange for the examination and audit of accounting, financial and 

other operations of the Council. 

  

Tudalen 78



19 

4.4.3 The strategy and terms of reference for Internal Audit are detailed in the Council’s 

Internal Audit Charter which is reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee. 

4.4.4 The internal audit function is governed by the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 

and the Head of Internal Audit is required to report annually on conformance. 

4.4.5 The Head of Internal Audit is required to provide an Annual Assurance Statement on 

the effectiveness of the Council’s internal control, governance, risk management and 

financial management arrangements, in accordance with the Public Sector Internal 

Audit Standards. This is a key element of the evidence required to support the 

Annual Governance Statement. 

4.4.6 The Chief Finance Officer or his internal audit staff will have authority to: 

(a) Enter at all reasonable times any Council premises or land; 

(b) Have access to all records, information systems, documents and correspondence 

relating to any financial or other transactions of the Council; 

(c) Require and receive such information and explanations as are necessary 

concerning any matter under examination within a reasonable period (normally 

not more than 28 days);  

(d) Require any employee of the Council to produce cash, stores or any other 

Council property under his control. 

This authority should be extended to the Council’s partnerships at the discretion of 

the Chief Finance Officer. 

4.4.7 The Auditor General for Wales is responsible for appointing external auditors to each 

Local Authority.  The basic duties of the external auditor are governed by the Public 

Audit (Wales) Act 2004.  They are also required to follow the Code of Audit Practice.  

Their duties include reviewing the work of Internal Audit in order to place reliance on 

it. 

4.4.8 The Council may, from time to time, be subject to audit, inspection or investigation 

by external bodies such as HMRC, who have statutory rights of access. 

4.4.9 The Chief Finance Officer or relevant Director are responsible for reporting to the 

Audit Committee and the Cabinet, where appropriate, the findings of these audits, 

inspections or investigations and taking relevant action to implement 

recommendations and action required. 

 

 

Tudalen 79



20 

4.5 Preventing Fraud and Corruption 

4.5.1 The Council has a zero tolerance approach to fraud, corruption and bribery in the 

administration of its responsibilities. 

4.5.2 The Chief Finance Officer/Head of Internal Audit are responsible for the 

development, maintenance and review of a Counter Fraud, Corruption and Bribery 

Policy Statement & Strategy. 

4.5.3 It is the responsibility of Directors to promote the Counter Fraud, Corruption and 

Bribery Policy Statement & Strategy within their Directorates and to ensure that all 

suspected frauds or irregularities are reported to the Chief Finance Officer and/or 

the Head of Internal Audit immediately they become aware. 

4.5.4 The Chief Finance Officer/Head of Internal Audit will take whatever steps are 

considered necessary to investigate and report on the matter in line with the 

Counter Fraud, Corruption and Bribery Policy Statement & Strategy.  Any referral to 

the Police to be undertaken by the Chief Finance Officer/Head of Internal Audit in 

consultation with the Chief Executive.  Directors are responsible for taking any 

appropriate action to prevent further loss and to secure records and documentation 

against removal or alteration. 

4.6 Use of, Recording and Disposal of Assets 

4.6.1 The Director of Community Services is responsible for: 

(a)  preparing the Strategic Asset Management Plan and for promoting and 

embedding it throughout the Council; 

(b) maintaining a continuous review of the Strategic Asset Management Plan and 

submitting any additions or changes as necessary to the Cabinet for approval. 

4.6.2 The Strategic Asset Management Group is responsible for reviewing delivery of the 

Strategic Asset Management Plan and reporting on specific matters arising to the 

Cabinet. 

4.6.3 Council assets include land, premises, furniture, vehicles, plant and equipment, 

computer systems, stocks and stores, money and investments, data and information.  

4.6.4 Directors are responsible for ensuring that adequate and effective arrangements are 

in place for the recording, safeguarding, care and custody of all assets within their 

Directorates and ensuring that assets are acquired and disposed of in accordance 

with the Contract Procedure Rules or any procedures issued by the Chief Finance 

Officer.   

Tudalen 80

http://pccintranet/content.asp?nav=104,150,157&parent_directory_id=101
http://pccintranet/content.asp?nav=104,150,157&parent_directory_id=101


21 

4.6.5 The acquisition or disposal of land or premises, in consultation with the Leader, will 

be in accordance with the Individual Cabinet Member Delegations: 

(a)  Up to £150,000 – Directors approval required; 

(b) Exceeding £150,000 to £1,000,000 – Individual Cabinet Members approval 

required; 

(c) Exceeding £1,000,000 – Cabinet approval required. 

4.6.6 The Director of Community Services is responsible for ensuring that the sale of 

income producing property is contingent upon a premium being achieved on the sale 

value, appropriate overage clauses being put in place and the capital receipt being 

earmarked for the future purchase of income producing property. 

4.6.7 The Director of Community Services/Director of Resources are responsible for 

ensuring that effective due diligence is undertaken prior to the purchase of any 

investment property to ensure any future risks to the Council are identified and 

mitigated, and financial returns are maximised. 

4.6.8 All long-term Council assets with a value exceeding £10,000 or over must be 

recorded on the Fixed Asset Register maintained by the Director of Community 

Services/Chief Finance Officer. 

4.6.9 Directors must supply information immediately to the Director of Community 

Services/Chief Finance Officer in respect of all acquisitions, disposals and changes of 

use of assets and confirm annually that the Fixed Asset Register reflects a true record 

of the assets under their control. 

4.6.10 The Director of Community Services will take appropriate action to ensure that land, 

premises and other relevant assets of the Council are valued appropriately and in 

accordance with accounting requirements laid down in the Code of Practice on Local 

Authority Accounting in the UK (CIPFA/LASAAC) as agreed with the Chief Finance 

Officer and that the values are promptly recorded in the Fixed Asset Register. 

4.6.11 In addition to the above, the Director of Community Services will maintain a terrier 

of all properties (including land and premises) owned, leased and licenced by and to 

the Council.  The terrier should include full details regarding acquisition, location, 

purpose held and other aspects of ownership. Directors must ensure that the 

Director of Community Services is advised accordingly where they exercise control 

and where land and premises become surplus to requirements. 

4.6.12 The Director of Community Services will ensure the reconciliation of information 

held in the Fixed Asset Register and the terrier of properties. 

Tudalen 81



22 

4.6.13 The Director of Community Services will have custody of all title deeds under secure 

arrangements. 

4.6.14 Directors will ensure that land or premises for which they are responsible are 

properly used for the purpose for which they are held and that there is an adequate 

programme for annual inspection.  Where security is deemed defective, the Director 

of Community Services will be consulted.  All lettings should be subject to an 

appropriate agreement, which addresses amongst other things responsibility and 

indemnification of the Council. 

4.6.15 Where the Council holds or retains articles, equipment or other property on behalf 

of a ‘client’ (for example in residential homes, goods seized by Trading Standards or 

Bailiffs) these items must be properly recorded as to the identity of the item and its 

owner and held as securely as is reasonably possible. Its disposal/return will likewise 

be recorded, with the signature of the client or their representative where 

applicable. The Council should not normally hold or retain items on behalf of others 

where it does not have a duty or formal approval from the relevant Director to do 

so. In all cases, insurance and liability arrangements must be determined at the 

outset. 

 

4.6.16 Other than where a Council policy would allow, Directors are responsible for 

ensuring that no Authority assets are subject to personal use by an employee or 

other. Where there are exceptional circumstances, any use must be properly 

authorised by the Director and recorded.  Specific guidance for IT equipment is 

included in the IT Security and Email/Internet Policy. 

 

4.6.17 Keys to doors, safes and similar receptacles are to be carried by the person 

responsible. Any loss of such keys must be reported to the Director of Community 

Services immediately and where necessary the Chief Finance Officer. 

 

4.7 Treasury Management 

4.7.1 The Council is required to take account of statutory backed guidance, including The 

Code of Practice on Treasury Management in the Public Services (Treasury Code) and 

guidance notes published by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 

Accountancy (CIPFA), and the Prudential Code (CIPFA) when putting in place policies 

and procedures for dealing with Treasury Management.  

 

 

Tudalen 82



23 

4.7.2 The Chief Finance Officer is responsible for preparing on an annual basis for 

consideration by the Cabinet before submission to Full Council for approval: 

(a) a Treasury Management Strategy including the Treasury Management Policy 

Statement, Treasury Management Resolutions, the Policy of Borrowing in 

Advance of Need, the Minimum Revenue Provision Policy, the Treasury Limits, 

the Prudential Indicators and Borrowing Requirements; 

(b) an Investment Strategy. 

4.7.3 The Chief Finance Officer is responsible for the execution and administration of all 

treasury management decisions, including decisions on borrowing, investment and 

financing, in accordance with the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy and 

Investment Strategy.  

4.7.4 The Council has delegated responsibility for the implementation and monitoring of 

its Treasury Management and Investment activities to the Cabinet, who will receive 

at least one monitoring report from the Chief Finance Officer during the year and an 

annual outturn report. 

4.7.5 The Council has delegated responsibility for reviewing, analysing and monitoring 

delivery of the Treasury Management Strategy, the Investment Strategy and related 

policies and practices to the Treasury Management and Capital Panel, which includes 

the Cabinet Member for Finance and other Members as appropriate.  The Chief 

Finance Officer is responsible for making reports to the Cabinet on behalf of the 

Treasury Management and Capital Panel. 

4.7.6 The Chief Finance Officer is responsible for procuring the services of external 

treasury management or investment advisors. 

4.7.7 All money in the hands of the Council will be aggregated for the purposes of treasury 

management and will be under the control of the Chief Finance Officer, who will 

maintain appropriate records of all treasury management and investment 

transactions. 

4.7.8 All borrowing or investment are to be effected in the name of the Council. 

 

 

 

Tudalen 83



24 

4.7.9 The Director of Resources/Head of Legal & Democratic Services are responsible for 

ensuring that the effective due diligence below is undertaken on any applications for 

loans from third parties, prior to consideration for approval by the Cabinet: 

(a) Financial – Robust business case in place which is financially viable and would 

enable a loan to be repaid by the loanee, the Council has the necessary funds in 

place to grant the loan, commercial rate of interest to be determined and loan to 

be treated as non-treasury investment; 

(b) Customer – “Know your Customer” checks to verify identity and status of all 

associated parties, eligibility, and assessment of potential fraud and money-

laundering risks; 

(c) Legal – Statutory powers for granting the loan identified, compliance with State 

Aid requirements and formal loan agreement drafted (signed after approval); 

(d) Security – Adequate security is in place, e.g. charge on property, to safeguard the 

loan in the event of default; 

(e) Full Cost Recovery – All costs incurred by the Council (financial, legal and 

property etc.) in considering, granting and managing the loan will be recovered. 

4.8 Banking 

4.8.1 The Chief Finance Officer is responsible for all arrangements concerning banking 

services, including the opening, closing and operation of the Council’s bank accounts. 

4.8.2 The Chief Finance Officer is responsible for the reconciliation of the Council’s bank 

accounts with the Council’s financial accounts. 

4.8.3 Directors are responsible for ensuring that all banking arrangements determined by 

the Chief Finance Officer are observed and to advise him of any changes in their 

Directorates that may require a change in these arrangements. 

4.8.4 All bank accounts of the Council must bear its full official title (not initials) and not 

solely in the name of an individual. 

4.8.5 The Chief Finance Officer is responsible for determining those officers authorised to 

sign individual cheques or approve transaction instructions on the Council’s bank 

accounts. 

4.8.6 Except where other specific arrangements have been approved by the Chief Finance 

Officer, all cheques will be ordered only on the authority of the Chief Finance Officer 

who will make proper arrangements for their safe custody. 

Tudalen 84



25 

4.8.7 Bank accounts maintained by Schools under the Education Reform Act 1988 will 

comply with the Council’s Financial Regulations for Schools. 

4.9 Income Collection 

4.9.1 The Chief Finance Officer is responsible for approving all methods of income 

collection, records and systems. 

4.9.2 Directors are responsible for: 

(a) ensuring that all income due to the Council is promptly recorded in a form 

approved by the Chief Finance Officer and all accounts for income due to the 

Council are rendered by arrangements approved by the Chief Finance Officer; 

(b) ensuring the timely billing/invoicing of all income due to the Council; 

(c) consulting with the Chief Finance Officer on the proposed amendment, 

cessation or introduction of an income stream (other than a prescribed legal 

fee); 

(d) ensuring all income is held securely and within insurance limits; 

(e) ensuring compliance with income and banking arrangements specified by the 

Chief Finance Officer; 

(f) ensuring fees are charges are based on full cost recovery and reviewed at least 

annually, in consultation with the Chief Finance Officer; 

(g) the approval of fees and charges in accordance with the Individual Cabinet 

Member Delegations – “Determination of increases in fees and charges in excess 

of inflation, as long as such charges are within the Cabinet’s overall charging 

policy to ensure consistency, do not conflict with, or compromise any other 

existing or proposed policy or portfolio initiative, are within approved budget 

lawful and financially sound and do not include any profit element”; 

(h) ensuring that all financial stationery is appropriately controlled and accounted 

for; 

(i) the separation of duties between officers calculating and recording income 
owed to the Council and the collection of those sums; 

(j) avoiding the uneconomic use of the sundry debtors system, sums less than £50 
should be collected in advance or at the time of receipt of the service; 

Tudalen 85



26 

(k) ensuring that personal cheques are not cashed out of money held on behalf of 

the Council nor should any officer borrow money from cash income collection. 

4.9.3 Where cash tills/electronic registry systems are operating, all income should be 

registered immediately.  Proper security as regards keys or passwords should be 

applied. Till/system readings should be taken at the appropriate times and 

closedown/end of day procedures should be documented and applied.  Regular 

unannounced cash ups by management will take place and be recorded. 

4.9.4 All income received by an officer on behalf of the Council will be recorded in a 

manner directed by the Chief Finance Officer (including on-line returns) and will 

without delay or as prescribed be paid to the Chief Finance Officer or as he may 

direct to the Council’s bank or other body entitled thereto.  For main collection 

points, depending on sums collected or other instruction daily banking/deposits 

would be expected.  In all other cases, unless otherwise agreed, a minimum of 

weekly bankings/deposits would be expected.  Additionally: 

(a) all cheques, postal orders and negotiable instruments (e.g. credit notes) should 

be made payable to Pembrokeshire County Council; 

(b) cheques not crossed “A/c Payee or similar” payable to a third party and 

endorsed are not to be accepted except with the authorisation of the Chief 

Finance Officer; 

(c) where cash or postal orders have been received, these must be promptly 

acknowledged by the receiving officer, by way of receipt or other 

acknowledgement to the payer approved by the Chief Finance Officer; 

(d) No deduction will be made from income received; 

(e) Each officer who banks money will complete a paying-in slip quoting a reference 

for identification purposes; 

(f) Arrangements should be made in accounting records to identify surpluses 

(which should be banked) and deficiencies.  Where these are regular or serious 

the Chief Finance Officer/Head of Internal Audit should be notified immediately 

and appropriate action taken; 

(g) Transfer of official money between officers will be evidenced by the signature of 

both officers. 

4.9.5 Incoming mail should be delivered to a secure, theft proof environment and 
appropriate procedures adopted for opening, recording, transferring and processing 
items received. 

 
 

Tudalen 86



27 

4.10 Anti-Money Laundering 

4.10.1 The Chief Finance Officer is the Council’s Money Laundering Reporting Officer and is 

responsible for the development, maintenance and review of the Anti-Money 

Laundering Policy. 

4.10.2 The Audit Committee are responsible for approving the Council’s Anti-Money 

Laundering Policy. 

4.10.3 The Chief Finance Officer is responsible for the implementation and administration 

of the Council’s Anti-Money Laundering Policy. 

4.11 External Funding  

4.11.1 Directors are responsible for ensuring that any bids/applications for external funding 

are made in consultation with the Chief Finance Officer and in accordance with the 

Individual Cabinet Member Delegations: 

(a)   Up to £100,000 – Directors approval required; 

(b) Exceeding £100,000 to £2,000,000 – Individual Cabinet Members approval 

required subject to financial regulations and any match funding being identified 

at the time of bidding; 

(c) Exceeding £2,000,000 – Cabinet approval required. 

4.11.2 The Chief Finance Officer will be responsible for authorising all applications for, and 

acceptance of, external funding. 

4.11.3 Directors must ensure that any project to be funded by external funding does not 

commence until approval has been obtained and the source of external funding 

confirmed. 

4.11.4 Directors must ensure that full consideration has been given to the lifetime financial 

commitment of the grant and adequate provision is made to ensure compliance with 

the terms and conditions to indemnify the Council against future costs, e.g. 

redundancies, and clawback of grant.  

4.11.5 The Chief Finance Officer is responsible for ensuring that all funding notified by 

external bodies is received and properly recorded in the Council’s accounts.  

Directors are responsible for providing all necessary information to enable this to be 

achieved. 

Tudalen 87

http://pccintranet.pembrokeshire.gov.uk/content.asp?nav=104,150,157&parent_directory_id=101
http://pccintranet.pembrokeshire.gov.uk/content.asp?nav=104,150,157&parent_directory_id=101


28 

4.12 Debt Collection 

4.12.1 The Chief Finance Officer is responsible for maintaining records of debt and the 

maintenance and review of a Corporate Debt Recovery Policy.  

4.12.2 The Cabinet is responsible for approving the Corporate Debt Recovery Policy.  

4.12.3 Directors are responsible for: 

(a) ensuring effective systems are in place to allow sums due to the Council to be 

easily identified; 

(b) ensuring debtor accounts are raised accurately and promptly and that adequate 

records are maintained to support the raising of the debt and any recovery 

action taken; 

(c) assisting in the collection of debt by providing any further information necessary 

to pursue the debt, as requested by the Chief Finance Officer or the Head of 

Legal and Democratic Services; 

4.12.4 The Chief Finance Officer is responsible for: 

(a)  determining the level of bad debt provision; 

 (b) approving the write-off of bad debts. 

4.13 Voluntary Funds and Trust Funds 

4.13.1 The Chief Executive and Chief Finance Officer are responsible for approving the 

Council’s involvement in any voluntary or trust fund.  Directors are responsible for 

approving any employee’s involvement in a voluntary or trust fund. 

4.13.2 Directors are responsible for ensuring that funds are managed and administered in 

accordance with any statutory or specific requirement for each fund, and to 

equivalent standards as those applicable to the Council generally. 

4.14 Purchase Cards 

4.14.1 The Chief Finance Officer/Head of Procurement will issue guidelines regarding the 

application process and their controlled use. 

4.14.2 Card holders are personally responsible for the security of purchase cards and for 

ensuring compliance with the guidelines.   

 

Tudalen 88

http://pccintranet/content.asp?id=1387&d1=0


29 

4.15 Advance Accounts 

4.15.1 The Chief Finance Officer will provide such cash floats and imprest accounts to 

Directors as he considers appropriate.  

4.15.2 Directors are responsible for having procedures in place for the effective 

management of the cash floats and imprest accounts. 

4.15.3 All cash floats and imprest accounts to be certified as correct by the Director at the 

end of each financial year, as part of the year end closedown procedures. 

4.16 Employees 

4.16.1 The Head of Human Resources, in consultation with the Chief Finance Officer, is 

responsible for the provision of all HR and payroll/pension related policies and 

procedures; 

4.16.2 The Chief Finance Officer/Head of Human Resources are responsible for paying 

employees securely, accurately and on time; 

4.16.3 Directors are responsible for managing their employee resource by: 

(a) ensuring compliance with all Human Resources and payroll/pension policies and 

procedures; 

(b) effective workforce development and planning, including ensuring that staffing 

levels can be funded from the approved budget provision; 

 (c) monitoring employee costs through monthly budget reports; 

(d) effective vacancy management. 

4.16.4 The Chief Finance Officer/Head of Human Resources will only authorise payments 

outside of the normal payroll runs (Pay Advances) where they are satisfied there are 

exceptional circumstances that warrant such action and that no duplication of 

payment will occur. 

4.16.5 Directors are responsible for maintaining absence records (annual leave and sickness 

etc.) and for supplying the Chief Finance Officer/Head of Human Resources with all 

information necessary for this purpose on the prescribed forms or by other 

arrangement agreed with them: 

 
 
 

Tudalen 89



30 

(a) Such information will include full details of new appointments, resignations and 

dismissals, attendance records, sickness certificates, overtime claims, bonuses 

and other particulars affecting the processing and payment of salaries and 

wages; 

(b) Such information should be supplied complete and promptly in order to meet 

payroll deadlines; 

(c) All time records or other pay documents will be certified (in manuscript or 

electronically) by or on behalf of Directors. The names of officers authorised to 

sign such records will be sent to the Chief Finance Officer/Head of Human 

Resources, together with specimen signatures and will be amended on the 

occasion of any change. Any proposed alternative arrangements, for example 

the use of electronic facilitation, will be approved by the Chief Finance 

Officer/Head of Human Resources and incorporate adequate security and 

controls. 

(d) Where the Chief Finance Officer/Head of Internal Audit carries out periodic 

certification exercises to obtain assurance from employing Directorates of the 

accuracy of payroll/pension records, Directors must ensure their Directorates 

respond fully and promptly. 

4.16.6 Employees are required to comply with the Officers Code of Conduct, including the 

declaration of any outside employment, personal interests and offers/receipt of 

gifts and hospitality. 

4.16.7 Directors are responsible for notifying the Chief Finance Officer of any declarations 

which could have financial implications for the Council, e.g. related party 

transaction inclusion in the Statement of Accounts. 

 

Tudalen 90



31 

5.0 Financial Systems and Procedures 

5.1 General 

5.1.1 Sound systems and procedures are essential to an effective framework of 

accountability and control. 

5.1.2 The Chief Finance Officer is responsible for: 

(a) the operation of the Council’s accounting and financial management systems; 

(b) the form of accounts and any supporting financial records; 

(c) advising Directors on the establishment and operation of trading accounts and 

business units; 

(d) approving any changes to existing financial systems or the establishment of new 

systems.   

5.1.3 It is the responsibility of Directors to: 

(a) ensure the proper operation of financial processes in their own Directorates and 

agree with the Chief Finance Officer any changes to these processes to meet 

their own specific needs; 

(b) ensure that their employees receive relevant and appropriate financial 

management training that has been approved by the Chief Finance Officer; 

(c) ensure that employees are aware of their responsibilities under the Data 

Protection Act and Freedom of Information Act. 

5.2 Contracts and Purchasing 

5.2.1 All contracts and purchases, including ordering and committing expenditure, will be 

subject to the requirements of the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules. 

5.2.2 All contracts for the supply of goods and services or the undertaking of works will be 

in accordance with the Individual Cabinet Member Delegations: 

 Goods and Services 

(a)   Up to £100,000 – Directors approval required; 

(b) Exceeding £100,000 to £2,000,000 – Individual Cabinet Members approval 

required; 

Tudalen 91



32 

(c) Exceeding £2,000,000 – Cabinet approval required. 

Light Touch Services 

(a)   Up to £500,000 – Directors approval required; 

(b) Exceeding £500,000 to relevant EU threshold from time to time – Individual 

Cabinet Members approval required; 

(c) Exceeding relevant EU threshold – Cabinet approval required. 

Works 

(a)  Up to £500,000 – Directors approval required; 

(b) Exceeding £500,000 to relevant EU threshold from time to time – Individual 

Cabinet Members approval required; 

(c) Exceeding relevant EU threshold – Cabinet approval required. 

Concession Contracts 

(a)  Up to £500,000 – Directors approval required; 

(b) Exceeding £500,000 to relevant EU threshold from time to time – Individual 

Cabinet Members approval required; 

(c) Exceeding relevant EU threshold – Cabinet approval required. 

5.2.3 The Head of Procurement is responsible for: 

(a)  preparing the Contract Procedure Rules and for promoting and embedding them 

throughout the Council; 

(b) maintaining a continuous review of the Contract Procedure Rules and submitting 

any additions or changes as necessary to the Audit Committee for approval. 

5.2.4 No alternative procurement arrangements will be implemented without the 

approval of the Chief Finance Officer/Head of Procurement. 

5.2.5  No credit arrangements (e.g. leasing agreements or other annual or deferred 

payment schemes) are to be made without the approval of the Chief Finance Officer 

or under arrangements already approved by the Chief Finance Officer.  Directors 

must ensure that appropriate records are maintained in respect of all lease 

agreements with related obligations and that any property/equipment that is subject 

to lease agreements is identifiable. 

Tudalen 92



33 

5.2.6  Under no circumstances should any purchasing arrangement of the Authority be 

used to obtain goods or services for private or personal use. 

5.2.7 The Chief Finance Officer is responsible for ensuring efficient and effective 

arrangements for all payments.   

5.2.8 The following requirements should be adhered to in relation to the payment of 

accounts: 

(a) The normal method of payment from the Council will be by BACS or cheque or 

other instrument (including direct debit, EFT’s, CHAPS, purchase card and 

standing orders) drawn on the Council’s bank account by the Chief Finance 

Officer; 

(b) Directors issuing an order in whatever form are responsible for examining, 

verifying and certifying the related invoice or transaction log; 

(c) At least two officers should be involved in the verification process, which should 

be evidenced.  The budget provision under which the expenditure was incurred 

will be indicated by completion of the expenditure code together with the 

appropriate VAT treatment by the Director concerned; 

(d) Certified accounts will be passed for payment to the Chief Finance Officer to 

comply with the suppliers/contractors payment terms, and with due account 

taken of the Late Payments of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998; 

(e) Directors are responsible for notifying the Chief Finance Officer, in accordance 

with the annual timetable for closure, of all outstanding expenditure relating to 

the previous financial year and when such payments are made he will be 

notified accordingly. 

5.2.9 Directors are responsible for ensuring: 

(a) that before entering into purchasing commitments, the estimated cost is 

covered by financial provision in the budget to which it relates; 

(b) that the Contract Procedure Rules and any payment procedures are adhered to 

in their Directorates; 

(c) that appropriate records are maintained and registers completed to substantiate 

and record decisions made under delegated powers; 

(d) that all employees within their Directorate are aware of any guidance issued by 

the Chief Finance Officer and for ensuring that effective internal controls are 

established to ensure compliance; 

Tudalen 93



34 

(e) the care and custody of stocks and stores in their Directorate and for the 

provision of control systems commensurate with risks faced and values; 

(f) up to date inventories of furniture, fittings, equipment, office machinery, 

vehicles, movable plant and machinery, rolling stock and similar property within 

their Directorate; 

(g) that property is appropriately security marked and formal procedures are 

established to record equipment removed from the premises; 

(h) that physical checks are undertaken and evidenced at least annually, with 

discrepancies fully investigated.   

5.3 Officers and Members Allowances  

5.3.1 The Chief Finance Officer/Head of Human Resources are responsible for operating 

secure and reliable systems to process Officers and Members Allowances. 

5.3.2 Officers travel and subsistence allowances will be paid by the Chief Finance 

Officer/Head of Human Resources in accordance with the Travel and Subsistence 

Policy.  

5.3.3 Members basic, special responsibility and travel and subsistence allowances will be 

paid by the Chief Finance Officer/Head of Human Resources in accordance with the 

Council’s Members Allowances Scheme. 

5.3.4 It is the responsibility of Officers and Members to claim for travel and subsistence 

by: 

(a) submitting claims in the prescribed form determined by the Chief Finance 

Officer; 

(b) submitting claims within three months of the date on which the duty was carried 

out (any Officer claims outside this period will require the approval of the 

Director); 

(c) certifying their claim as an accurate record, for payment to be made; 

(d) submitting VAT receipts with claims wherever possible. 

 

 

 

Tudalen 94



35 

5.4 Taxation 

5.4.1 The Chief Finance Officer (and Head of Human Resources in relation to personal 

taxation) is responsible for: 

(a)  ensuring that appropriate advice and guidance is available for Directors on all 

taxation issues that affect the Council, having regard to guidance issued by 

appropriate bodies and relevant/applicable legislation; 

(b) for maintaining the Council’s tax records, making all payments, receiving tax 

credits, submitting statutory tax returns by their due date and complying with 

HMRC regulations. 

5.4.2 Directors are responsible for: 

(a)  Obtaining advice from the Chief Finance Officer (and Head of Human Resources 

in relation to personal taxation) on all taxation issues that affect their 

Directorate; 

(b)  compliance with any guidance issued by the Chief Finance Officer (and Head of 

Human Resources in relation to personal taxation). 

5.5 Housing Revenue Account 

5.5.1 The Chief Finance Officer is responsible for: 

(a) making arrangements for the preparation of annual Housing Revenue Account 

budgets (revenue and capital) as part of the Council’s budget setting process; 

(b) making recommendations, as appropriate, to the Cabinet and/or Full Council to 

enable the Council to fulfil its statutory duties in relation to the Housing 

Revenue Account (housing rent determinations, welsh housing quality 

standards, major repairs allowance and 30 year business plan); 

(c) preparing annual accounts for the Housing Revenue Account to be incorporated 

into the Council’s Statement of Accounts. 

Tudalen 95



36 

6.0 Partnerships 

6.1 Full Council and/or the Cabinet, as appropriate, are responsible for approving the 

Council’s involvement in formal partnerships with other local, public, private, 

voluntary and community sector organisations.  They will also be responsible for 

approving any delegations of power, e.g. regional working Joint Committees. 

6.2 Full Council and/or the Cabinet, as appropriate, are responsible for the nomination 

of Members to represent the Council on partnerships and external bodies. 

6.3 The Chief Executive is responsible for the nomination of Directors, or senior 

managers, to represent the Council on partnerships and external bodies. 

6.4 The Director, or senior manager, representing the Council on a partnership or 

external body will be responsible for consulting with the Chief Finance Officer on the 

accounting and audit arrangements to be adopted, and consulting with statutory 

officers on the governance and risk management arrangements to be adopted. 

6.5 The Monitoring Officer (or designated Monitoring Officer of a partnership or external 

body) is responsible for promoting and maintaining the same high standards of 

Member conduct in partnerships and external bodies that apply to the Council. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 96



37 

7.0 Clarification and Contacts 

7.1 Where clarification on any aspect of the Financial Regulations is required, please 

contact one of the following officers: 

 Jon Haswell  Director of Resources (Section 151 Officer) 

 Ian Eynon  Head of Finance & Business Services (Deputy S151 Officer) 

 Sarah Edwards Finance Manager 

 Nicola Lewis  Finance Manager 

 Caroline Lawley Finance Manager 

 Huw Jones  Finance Manager 

 Richard Edwards Principal Finance & Transformation Officer 

 Jo Hendy  Governance, Assurance & Information Manager 

   (Head of Internal Audit and Data Protection Officer) 

 Matthew Holder Audit, Risk & Counter Fraud Manager 

 Paul Ashley-Jones Head of Procurement 

 Steven Jones  Director of Community Services (Asset related matters only) 

 Ceri Davies  Head of Human Resources (Payroll related matters only) 

Tudalen 97



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CONTRACT PROCEDURE 
RULES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 99



   2 

INDEX 

 

Summary of Key Contract Procedure Rules …………………………………… 

 

Advertising, Notices and Reports for procurements ………………………… 

 

5 

 

6 

Part 1: Introduction and Definitions …………………………………………..... 

 

7 

 

Part 2: All contracts, whatever their value …………………………………..... 

1. Application and Scope 

2. Compliance 

3. Conflicts of Interest 

4. Prevention of Corrupt Activity 

5. Duties of Service Directors 

6. Valuation of Contracts 

7. Use of Corporate Contracts 

8. Framework Agreements and Dynamic Purchasing Systems 

12 

Part 3: Contracts below £5,000 (below Quotation level). 

9. Competition 

10. Purchase Orders 

11. Authority to Enter into a Contract 

12. Signature of the Contract 

17 

Part 4: Contracts from £5,000 to £24,999 (Quotations) 

13. Competition 

14. Purchase Orders 

15. Authority to enter into a Contract.  

16. Signature of the Contract  

 

18 

Part 5: Contracts from £25,000 to the EU Threshold (Tenders) …………… 

17. Competition 

18. Preliminary Steps 

19. Purchase Order 

20. Specification 

 

19 

Tudalen 100



   3 

21. Terms and Conditions of Contract 

22. Authority to Invite and Evaluate Tenders  

23. The Tender Procedure 

24. Evaluation of Tenders 

25. Award of the Contract 

26. Signature of the Contract 

 

Part 6: Contracts over the EU Threshold (EU Tenders) …………………… 

27. Competition 

28. Selecting the Procurement Route 

29. Specification 

30. Terms and Conditions of Contract 

31. Authority and Delegation to Invite and Evaluate Tenders and Award 
Contracts 

32. The Tender Procedure 

33. Clarification of Tenders 

34. Evaluation of Tenders 

35. Amendments and Alterations to Tenders 

36. Award of the Contract 

37. Bonds and Parent Company Guarantees 

38. Signature of the Contract 

24 

Part 7: For contracts that have commenced ….. 

39. Contract Management 

40. Extensions to Contracts 

41. Modification of Contracts during their term 

34 

Part 8: Exceptions to Contract Procedure Rules …………………………….. 

 

38 

Tudalen 101



 

SUMMARY OF KEY CONTRACT PROCEDURE RULES 
 

Total Value Competition Advertising Authority to tender or award  Signature of Contract CPR 

 
Up to £5,000 

 
No competitive quotations 
required, but must 
demonstrate value for money 
 
 

 
None required 

 
Service Director’s delegated authority 

 
Service Director or officer 
authorised by him/her.  

 
Part 2 
Part 3 

 
QUOTATIONS 
 
£5,000 to £24,999 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Three competitive quotes 

 
 
 
None 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
Service Director’s delegated authority (Officer 
Decision) 
 

 
 
 
 
Service Director or officer 
authorised by him/her.  

 
 
Part 2 
Part 4 

 
TENDERS 
 
£25,000 to  
EU Thresholds 
 
 

 
Five suppliers invited to tender 
(Six if there is an in-house 
bidder) 

 
Advert in National 
Procurement Website   
 
or select from a DPS  or 
Framework Agreement 

 
Goods & Services Up to £99,999 – Service 
Director’s delegated authority (Officer 
Decision) 
 
Light Touch Services/Works/Concession 
Contracts Up to £499,999 - Service Director’s 
delegated authority (Officer Decision) 
 
Goods & Services between £100,000 and the 
EU Threshold  – Portfolio Holder decision 
(ICMD) 
 
Light Touch Services/Works/Concession 
Contracts between £500,000 and the 
relevant EU threshold – Portfolio Holder 
decision (ICMD) 
 

 
Service Director 
 
or 
 
Sealed by the Council 
 
(as appropriate) 

 
 
 
 
Part 2 
Part 5 

T
udalen 102



   5 

 
EU TENDERS 
 
Over EU Thresholds 
 
 

 
Use Restricted/Open 
procedure (unless advised 
otherwise by Legal).  

 
OJEU advert and National 
Procurement Website 
 
 
Or select from a DPS or 
Framework Agreement  

 
Goods & Services between the EU Threshold 
and £2m – Portfolio Holder decision (ICMD) 
 
Goods & Services £2m+ - Cabinet decision. 
 
Light Touch Services/Works/Concession 
Contracts over the relevant EU threshold – 
Cabinet decision.  
 
  

 
Service Director 
 
or 
 
Sealed by the Council 
 
(as appropriate)  

 
 
 
 
 
Part 2 
Part 6 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

T
udalen 103



   6 

Summary of Advertising, Notices and Reports Requirements 
 

 Advertising/Notice 
Requirements 

Advertising stage  Contract Award Notices Reports 

Up to £25k 
 

None required None Required  None required  None required but records 
to be kept 

Between 
£25k and 
Threshold 

Advert required unless 
using a Dynamic 
Purchasing System or 
Framework 
Agreement 

Where advertised 
opportunity must also 
be published in 
National Procurement 
Website.   
 

None required.   None required but records 
to be kept and held on 
eProcurement System.  

Above 
Threshold 

Advertise in OJEU Must advertise in 
National Procurement 
Website via Council’s 
eProcurement system 

Must publish to OJEU and 
National Procurement 
Website within 30 days of 
contract award, conclusion 
of a Framework Agreement 
or Call Off from a Dynamic 
Purchasing System.  

For every contract awarded 
or Framework Agreement 
and Dynamic Purchasing 
System established 
requirement to draw up a 
report with information set 
out in PCR 84  

Call Offs 
from 
Framework 
Agreements  

None required None Required None Required Not required for Call off 
from Framework Agreement 
unless requested by 
Procurement Service. 

 

T
udalen 104



 

 

CONTRACT PROCEDURE RULES 

 

Part 1 

Introduction 

 

The Local Government Act 1972 requires the Council to have standing orders for 
how it enters into contracts.  These Contract Procedure Rules are the standing 
orders required by the 1972 Act.  They form part of the Council's Constitution and 
are, in effect, the instructions of the Council to officers and members for entering into 
contracts on behalf of the Council.   

The purpose of these Contract Procedure Rules is to set clear rules for the purchase 
of works, goods and services for the Council and to ensure a system of openness, 
integrity and accountability, in which the probity and transparency of the Council's 
procurement process will be beyond reproach or challenge.  Accordingly, these 
Contract Procedure Rules must be followed for all contracts for: 

 the supply of goods to the Council; 

 the supply of services to the Council; and 

 the carrying out of works for the Council. 

The Council is also subject to the EU law with regard to public procurement, which 
requires all contract procedures, of whatever value, to be open, fair and transparent.  
These Contract Procedure Rules provide a basis for true and fair competition in 
contracts, by providing clear and auditable procedures, which, if followed, will give 
confidence that the Council has a procurement regime that is fully accountable and 
compliant with EU law.    

Following the Contract Procedure Rules will also help to ensure that the Council 
obtains value for money when it buys works, goods or services. 

These Contract Procedure Rules are to protect the interests of the Council, its 
officers and members and the communities of Pembrokeshire.   

For the avoidance of doubt, the Director of Social Services will in all cases retain 
authority to tender or award contracts which relate to the social service functions 
contained in Schedule 2 of the Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014. 

 

Tudalen 105



   8 

 

Part 1 

Definitions 

Advertised  

 

(a)   the Council advertises an opportunity if it does anything to put the 
opportunity in the public domain or bring the opportunity to the attention of 
economic operators generally or to any class or description of economic 
operators which is potentially open ended, with a view to receiving 
responses from economic operators who wish to be considered for the 
award of the contract; and 
 
(b) accordingly, the Council does not advertise an opportunity where it 
makes the opportunity available only to a number of particular economic 
operators who have been selected for that purpose (whether ad hoc or by 
virtue of their membership of some closed category such as a Framework 
Agreement), regardless of how it draws the opportunity to the attention of 
those economic operators 
 

  

Award a 
contract 

means to accept an offer by a supplier; 

Cabinet means the Leader of the Council and the other members of the Council's 
Executive, who are all portfolio holders; 

Chief Finance 
Officer 

means the officer designated under section 151 of the Local Government Act 
1972.  The Director of Resources is the Chief Finance Officer; 

Tudalen 106



   9 

Concession 
Contract  

means a either a works or services contract for pecuniary interest concluded 
in writing by means of which one or more contracting authorities entrust the 
execution of works or the provision and the management of services (other 
than the execution of works) to one or more economic operators, the 
consideration for which consists either solely in the right to exploit the works 
or the services that are the subject of the contract or in that right together 
with payment; and that meets the requirements of 3(4) of the Concession 
Contracts Regulations 2016 (CCR 2016). 

Regulation 3(4) of the CCR 2016 further defines the necessary 
characteristics of the arrangement for the purposes of the regime, which are 
:  

(a) the award of the contract must transfer to the contractor the operating 
risk in exploiting the works or services encompassing demand or 
supply risk or both; and  

(b) the part of the risk transferred to the concessionaire involves real 
exposure to the vagaries of the market, such that any potential 
estimated loss incurred by the concessionaire is not merely nominal 
or negligible.  
 

Contract or 
contract 

means the bargain or agreement between the Council and a supplier for the 
supply of works, goods or services including Concession Contracts; 

contract 
document 

means the document setting out the terms and conditions of the contract.  A 
purchase order is a contract document.  Although at law a verbal agreement 
may be a contract, contracts for the Council must always be supported by 
appropriate written contract documents; 

Contractor see Supplier; 

National 
Procurement 
Website 

means a web-based portal provided by or on behalf of the Welsh 
Government for the publication of information about contracts awarded 
(https://www.sell2wales.gov.uk) 

corporate 
contract 

means a contract for the supply of works, goods or services to the Council as 
a whole rather than for an individual service area e.g. stationery.  Corporate 
contracts are generally procured and managed by the Procurement Service. 

  

Councils 
Code of 
Conduct 

means the Council’s employee code of conduct which sets out the standards 
of behaviour that the Council expects of its employees  as amended from 
time to time 

Council's 
Financial 
Regulations 

means the Council’s financial regulations which contain all financial 
accountabilities in relation to the running of the Council, including the Council 
budget and Council policy framework 

Tudalen 107

https://www.sell2wales.gov.uk/


   10 

Dynamic 
Purchasing 
System or 
DPS 

means the system referred to in regulation 34 of the Public Contracts 
Regulations 2015.  A DPS is a procedure available for contracts for works, 
services and goods commonly available on the market. As a procurement 
tool, it has some aspects that are similar to an electronic framework 
agreement, but where new suppliers can join at any time. 

E-
Procurement 
System  

means Bravo Solutions or successor system approved by the Procurement 
Service. 

  

EU 
Regulations 

means the the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 (as amended) or the 
Concession Contracts Regulations 2016 (as applicable) as amended from 
time to time; 

EU Threshold means the value in pounds sterling above which the EU Regulations apply to 
a proposed public contract   

Framework 
Agreement 

means an agreement between one or more contracting authorities and one 
or more suppliers which fixes the terms and conditions under which the 
supplier will enter into one or more specific contracts with an authority during 
the term of the framework agreement, which should be no more than 4 
years; 

Full Regime means the rules and procedures under Public Contracts Regulations 2015 
other than those for the Light Touch Regime  

Goods see Supplies contract 

Light Touch 
Regime 

means the rules and procedures for the Light Touch Regime Services set out 
in Chapter 3 of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 (as amended) 

Light Touch 
Regime 
Services  

Means those services listed in Annex 1 of the CPRs  

 

Members of 
staff 

means individuals who carry out the day to day work of the Council, either on 
a permanent or a temporary basis, and includes officers, interim post-holders 
and agency staff but not consultants or suppliers; 

Monitoring 
Officer 

means the officer designated under section 5 of the Local Government and 
Housing Act 1989 to monitor the Council's compliance with the law and rules 
of administration.   

Officer  means an individual who holds a post on the Council's establishment; 

OJEU  means the Official Journal of the European Union; 

  

Tudalen 108



   11 

  

Public 
procurement 
legislation 

includes the Public Contracts Regulations 2006, Public Contracts 
Regulations 2015 (as amended), Concession Contracts Regulations 2016, 
the Treaty on the Functioning of the European Union (TFEU), EU Directives 
relating to public contracts, UK legislation affecting public sector contracts 
and any amendment, re-enactment or replacement of any of them; 

Purchase 
order 

means the Council's official order form for the purchase of Works, Goods or 
Services; 

Quotation means an offer by a Supplier to undertake a contract of £5,000 or more but 
less than £25,000 in value; 

Service 
director  

means a Director.   

Services 
contract 

means a contract for the provision of services to the Council; 

SME 

 

means an enterprise falling within the category of micro, small and medium-
sized enterprises  

Community 
Benefit 

means activities, approaches and services that help to deliver measurable 
benefits to local communities’ safety, health, prosperity and quality of life, 
particularly: 

• Sustainability – environmental impact 

• Local economy 

• Support of corporate objectives 

• Beneficial impact on local communities – including furthering 
equalities and community cohesion. 

  

Supplier  means a supplier of works, goods or services to the Council; 

Supplies 
contract  

means a contract for the sale or hire of goods to the Council and includes, 
where appropriate, installation of goods; 

Tender means an offer by a supplier to undertake a contract of £75,000 or more in 
value; 

TUPE 
Regulations  

means the Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment) Regulations 
2006 and any amendment, re-enactment or replacement of them. 

Tudalen 109



   12 

Voluntary 
transparency 
notice 

means a notice published in OJEU by Procurement on the request of the 
service director, which contains the name and contact details of the Council; 
a description of the object of the contract; a justification of the decision of the 
Council to award the contract without advertising it in OJEU; the name and 
contact details of the supplier to be awarded the contract and any other 
information the Procurement Service considers it useful to include;  

  

Works 
contract 

means a contract for the construction, repair or maintenance of a physical 
asset e.g. a building or a road; 

Writing Includes information transmitted by electronic means where the context 
requires it 

 

Tudalen 110



   13 

 

Part 2 

All contracts, whatever their value 

 

1. APPLICATION AND SCOPE 

These Contract Procedure Rules 

Apply to: 

1.1 All contracts for the supply of works, goods or services to the Council, 
regardless of value including Concession Contracts. 

1.2 Contracts for the engagement of consultants to provide services to the 
Council that are part of a discrete project e.g. carrying out research, giving 
advice or managing a project or not part of the day to day work of the 
Council.  

Do not apply to: 

1.3 Contracts for the purchase or sale of any interest in land (including leasehold 
interests). 

1.4 Contracts for the appointment of individual members of staff, including 
members of staff sourced through employment agencies under a corporate 
contract.   

1.5 Grant agreements, either where the Council is giving or receiving a grant 
(Where the Council carries out a procurement using grant monies received 
the CPRs will apply unless other provisions are to apply as a requirement of 
the grant funder). 

1.6 Contracts for the supply of works, goods or services to schools procuring for 
themselves with their own budgets.  Schools are, however, subject to the 
EU Regulations and Financial Regulations for Schools.    

1.7 Supply of works, goods and services by the Council.   

1.8 If a contract is being procured in collaboration with other local authorities, the 
Contract Procedure Rules of the lead authority shall apply.  Assurance 
should be sought that the lead authority is in compliance with its own contract 
procedure rules. Where EU Regulations apply the Council is jointly 
responsible with the other local authorities for compliance with EU legislation 

 

2. COMPLIANCE  

2.1 Every contract entered into on behalf of the Council must comply with  

 these Contract Procedure Rules; 

 the Council's Financial Regulations; and 

 all relevant UK and EU legislation. 

Tudalen 111



   14 

2.2 Each service director is responsible for ensuring that his/her department 
complies with these Contract Procedure Rules 

2.3 All members of staff and consultants engaged in any capacity to manage or 
supervise the procurement of any works, goods or services for the Council 
must comply with these Contract Procedure Rules and failure to comply with 
these Rules may result in disciplinary action and legal proceedings against 
members of staff and consultants concerned. 

2.4 Work must not begin under a contract until the contract document has been 
signed by both parties (or, if the only contract document is a purchase order, 
until the purchase order has been issued).   

2.5 If a service director wishes to nominate a particular sub-contractor to a main 
contractor, the procedures in these Contract Procedure Rules must be 
followed to select the sub-contractor as well as the main contractor. 

 

3. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 

3.1 All members of staff must avoid any conflict between their own interests and 
the interests of the Council.  This is a requirement of the Council's Code of 
Conduct, which all employees of the Council have signed and agreed to be 
bound by and includes: 

 not accepting gifts or hospitality from organisations or suppliers that the 
Council has dealings with; 

 not working for organisations or suppliers that the Council has dealings 
with; 

 notifying the Chief Executive and relevant service director if an officer has 
links with (e.g. a family member or close friend works for) an organisation 
or supplier who is tendering or quoting for a contract with the Council or 
already has a contract with the Council. 

   

3.2 If an elected member of the Council or a member of staff has an interest, 
financial or otherwise, in a contract or proposed contract, he/she must 
declare it in writing to the service director as soon as he/she becomes aware 
of the interest.  An elected member or member of staff who has an interest in 
a contract must not take part in the procurement or management of that 
contract. 

 

4. PREVENTION OF CORRUPT ACTIVITY 

4.1 A contract may be terminated immediately, and any losses to the Council 
arising from the termination recovered from the Supplier, if the Supplier, or 
anyone acting on his behalf (with or without the Supplier's knowledge): 

 offers or promises or gives a financial or other advantage to any elected 
member of the Council, any member of staff or any consultant in 
connection with the contract; or 

Tudalen 112



   15 

 requests, agrees to receive or accepts a financial or other advantage so 
that some action in relation to the contract is performed improperly. 

A declaration to this effect must be included in all invitations to tender or 
quote. 

4.2 Any elected member of the Council, member of staff or consultant who 
becomes aware or has reason to believe that a supplier or potential supplier 
has committed one of the corrupt acts referred to in CPR 4.1, must report 
that to the Monitoring Officer and/or the Governance, Risk and Assurance 
Manager Investigation immediately. 

4.3 The attention of officers is drawn to the Council's Code of Conduct and 
Disciplinary Rules and Procedures.  Non-compliance with these Contract 
Procedure Rules constitutes grounds for disciplinary action and may 
be considered gross misconduct. 

 

5. DUTIES OF SERVICE DIRECTORS  

5.1 To ensure that all contracts within his/her department comply with Contract 
Procedure Rules, Financial Regulations and all applicable public 
procurement legislation.   

To plan the procurement of and manage contracts within his/her department 
to ensure that contracts  

 deliver value for money; 

 are operated effectively, efficiently and economically; and 

 are operated within the terms of the contracts themselves, so that the 
Council is not at risk of being in breach of contract. 

5.2 To  ensure all contracts are added to the Council’s overall Contracts 
Register.  Contracts for less than £25,000 need not be recorded in the 
register. 

 

5.3 To keep adequate records to show compliance with Contract Procedure 
Rules, Financial Regulations and all relevant legislation in his/her 
department. 

 

6. VALUATION OF CONTRACTS 

6.1 The service director responsible for each contract must determine an 
estimated value for the contract before any offers are sought.   

6.2 The value of a contract is the total amount that the Council expects to pay for 
the contract, including any contract extension period.  This may be a lump 
sum e.g. £250,000 or a periodic payment e.g. £50,000 per year for a 5 year 
contract = £250,000.  If the contract is for an indefinite term, the value is the 
amount the Council expects to pay or receive over four years.   

The value of a Concession Contract shall be the total turnover of the 
concessionaire generated over the duration of the contract, net of value 

Tudalen 113



   16 

added tax, as estimated by the contracting authority, in consideration for the 
works and services which are the object of the Concession Contract and for 
the supplies incidental to such works and services. 

  

6.3 The service director must not try to avoid compliance with these Contract 
Procedure Rules or the EU Regulations by splitting a procurement for the 
same or similar works, goods or services into smaller, separate contracts 
except where permitted by the EU Regulations to divide contracts into lots.  If 
it will achieve better value for money, contracts for the same or similar works, 
goods or services must where reasonably practicable be aggregated into a 
single procurement of greater value with lots where possible.    

 

7. USE OF CORPORATE CONTRACTS AND COLLABORATION 

7.1 If there is an existing corporate contract for the supply of any works, goods or 
services, the service director must buy through that contract, rather than 
awarding a separate contract for his/her own department. A list of current 
corporate contracts can be found on the intranet or from the Procurement 
Service.  

7.2 Where ever possible and practicable procurements should be done in 
collaboration with other public authorities and/or other service areas within 
the Council. 

 

8. FRAMEWORK AGREEMENTS AND DYNAMIC PURCHASING SYSTEMS  

8.1 The Procurement Service must be consulted before commencing a tender or 
joining or buying from a Framework Agreement or a Dynamic Purchasing 
System set up by an organisation or public authority other than the Council 
where the expenditure will be more than the EU Threshold except for Works 
contracts where Legal Services must be consulted if the value is over £1m. 

8.2 The Procurement Service must be consulted before setting up a Framework 
Agreement or a Dynamic Purchasing System.   

8.3 Cabinet authority has been delegated to the Head of Procurement to join 
consortia, buying groups, Dynamic Purchasing Systems, or Framework 
Agreements set up by another body, and who must be consulted before 
joining or buying from those consortia, buying groups, Dynamic Purchasing 
Systems or Framework Agreements. 

8.4 A decision at the appropriate level will still be required to award a contract 
procured through consortia, buying groups, Dynamic Purchasing Systems, 
Approved Lists or Framework Agreements (see CPR 35.2, 35.3 and 35.4).  
This applies both to Dynamic Purchasing Systems, or Framework 
Agreements set up by the Council alone or set up by another public authority.  

8.5 To select a supplier for a specific contract under a single or multi-supplier 
Framework Agreement or to conduct a Framework Agreement mini 
competition or award a contract under a Dynamic Purchasing System the 
service director, in consultation with the  Procurement Service, must follow 

Tudalen 114



   17 

the procedure set out in that Framework Agreement or Dynamic Purchasing 
System.   

8.6 Successful and unsuccessful suppliers who participated in a Framework 
Agreement mini-competition or, a Dynamic Purchasing System contract 
award procedure must be notified of the decision to award the specific 
contract.  The notification letter must be sent via the eProcurement system.   

8.7 All Framework Agreements, Dynamic Purchasing System agreements, and 
specific contracts must be executed in accordance with CPR 38. 

8.8 A Framework Agreement must not be longer than 4 years unless specifically 
agreed with Legal Services. 

8.9 For all procurements, the requirements on advertising, notices and reports in 
the table headed Advertising, Notices and Reports for procurements must be 
complied with. 

8A ELECTRONIC TENDERS AND E-PROCUREMENT 

8A.1 Tenders may only be invited via the eProcurement System. Any member of 
staff or consultant acting for the Council who receives a tender by email must 
delete it without opening it.   

8A.2 Any tender documents which need to be signed by the bidders must be 
signed by hand by an authorised representative of the tenderer.  Such 
documents must be submitted as part of the tender in electronic form. 

8B CONTRACT TERMS 

8B.1 All contracts, whatever their value, must include: 

 a clear and comprehensive description of the works, goods or services 
to be supplied (the specification); 

 the price to be paid or income or share to be received by the Council 
under Concession Contracts; 

 appropriate and adequate levels of  insurance cover   

 the time or times within which the contract is to be performed; 

 a provision allowing the Council to use information gained from the 
contract for preventing and detecting fraud;  

 a provision requiring the supplier to comply with requests under the 
Freedom of Information Act 2000 for information relating to the 
contract; and 

 a right for the Council to terminate the contract immediately in the 
event of corrupt activity and for the Council to recover its losses 
arising from the termination. 

8B.2 The service director must: 

 Require the Supplier to maintain appropriate and adequate levels 

of insurance cover, in consultation with the Council's Insurance 

Manager, for employer's liability, public liability, products liability, 

all risks/contract works and professional indemnity insurance.  

Tudalen 115



   18 

Unless otherwise agreed by the Insurance Manager, the minimum 

levels of cover shall be  

 £5 million for employer's liability insurance 

 £5m for public liability and products liability insurance 

 £2 million for professional indemnity insurance.   

All policies must contain an indemnity of principals clause. 

 Ensure that the supplier holds the required insurance cover at the 

start of the contract, renews the policies as necessary during the 

contract period and, following each renewal, provides details 

verified by his insurer or broker of his insurance for the Council's 

records. 

 

8C PAYMENTS UNDER THE CONTRACT  

8C.1 As a general rule, all contracts, whatever their value, must provide for 
payment by the Council after supply of the works, goods or services. 
Periodic or stage payments under a contract are acceptable, may incentivise 
performance by the Supplier and in the case of most Works contracts are 
required by law. Exceptionally, and only with the consent of the Chief 
Finance Officer, a contract may provide for payment in advance of contract 
performance. 

Tudalen 116



   19 

 

Part 3 – BELOW QUOTATION LEVEL 

Contracts below £5,000 

 

9. COMPETITION 

9.1 The service director need not obtain competitive quotations for contracts of 
less than £5,000 in value, but must be able to demonstrate that the Council is 
receiving value for money. Where appropriate, relevant consultation must be 
carried out. 

 

10. PURCHASE ORDERS & TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT 

10.1 All contracts must be in writing and a purchase order must be issued for 
every contract, unless payment by purchase card. 

10.2 Refer to CPR 8.B. 

 

11. AUTHORITY TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT – below Quotation level 

11.1 Service directors have delegated authority to enter into contracts below the 
Quotation level, provided that a budget has been allocated for that 
expenditure.   

 

12. SIGNATURE OF THE CONTRACT – below Quotation level 

12.1 Contracts below the Quotation level must be signed for and on behalf of the 
Council by the service director responsible for the contract or an officer 
authorised by him/her. 

Tudalen 117



   20 

 

Part 4 – QUOTATION LEVEL 

Contracts from £5,000 to £24,999 

 

COMPETITION 

13.1 The service director must obtain a minimum of three competitive quotations 
for contracts over £5,000 but less than £25,000 in value and must maintain 
an audit trail of the procurement.  Where appropriate, relevant consultation 
must be carried out. 

 

14. PURCHASE ORDERS & TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT 

14.1 All contracts must be in writing and a purchase order must be issued for 
every contract. 

14.2 Refer to CPR 8.B. 

 

15. AUTHORITY TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT – within Quotation level 

15.1 Service directors have delegated authority to enter into contracts within the 
Quotation level, provided that a budget has been allocated for that 
expenditure.   

 

16. SIGNATURE OF THE CONTRACT – within Quotation level 

16.1 Contracts within the Quotation level must be signed for and on behalf of the 
Council by the service director responsible for the contract or an officer 
authorised by him/her. 

 

Tudalen 118



   21 

 

Part 5 - TENDERS 

Contracts from £25,000 to the EU Threshold 

 

17. COMPETITION 

17.1 Competitive tenders must be sought for contracts £25,000 or more in value. 

 

18. PRELIMINARY STEPS – Tenders 

18.1 An initial Sustainable Risk Assessment (SRA) must be carried out with the 
Procurement Service and, if required, a full SRA undertaken.  

18.2 Where appropriate, relevant consultation must be carried out. 

 

19. PURCHASE ORDER 

19.1 All contracts must be in writing and a purchase order must be issued for 
every contract. 

 

20. SPECIFICATION – Tenders 

20.1 A clear and comprehensive specification of the Council's requirements must 
be prepared with regard to the works, goods or services to be supplied. 

20.2 The specification should incorporate measurable and, so far as is possible, 
objective quality and performance criteria to enable the service director to 
see whether the Council’s requirements are being met by the supplier. 

20.3 Consultants who assist in the preparation of a specification must not be 
invited to tender for the contract where it is likely to distort competition. 

 

21. TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT – Tenders 

21.1 Refer to CPR 8.B. 

 

22. AUTHORITY TO INVITE AND EVALUATE TENDERS – Tenders 

22.1  Subject to CPR 22.2, the decision to invite and evaluate tenders for a 
contract and the decision to delegate the award of the contract can be 
contained in one report to the portfolio holder.  

22.2 Service directors have delegated authority to invite and evaluate tenders and 
award the following contracts: 

 - Goods & Services up to £99,999 

 - Light Touch Services, Works and Concession Contracts up to £499,999 

Tudalen 119



   22 

 Provided that a budget has been allocated for that expenditure. The decision 
to invite and evaluate tenders and the decision to award a contract must be 
recorded on two separate Officer’s Decision forms. However, where the call-
off is from a single supplier Framework Agreement then it is only necessary 
to have a decision to award the contract provided that the Framework 
Agreement has been set up by the Council or approved for use under CPR 
8.3. 

22.3 A portfolio holder may authorise the invitation and evaluation of tenders 
and/or the award of the following contracts: 

 - Goods and Services between £100,000 and £2 million 

 - Light Touch Services, Works and Concession Contracts between £500,000 
and the relevant EU Threshold. 

 Provided such contracts are within the scope of his/her portfolio and a budget 
has been allocated for that expenditure.  

 Portfolio holders may delegate authority to service directors to award 
contracts for goods and services between £100,000 and the relevant EU 
Threshold.  

 

23. THE TENDER PROCEDURE - Tenders 

23.1 The following tender procedures must be followed when letting contracts 
from £25,000 to the relevant EU Threshold in value.   

23.2a  For all Services and Supplies (except Light Touch Regime Services) 
contracts between £25,000 and the EU Threshold for Services and Supplies 
an open procedure must be followed and the opportunity must be placed in 
the National Procurement Website.  

23.2b For Works contracts, Light Touch Regime Services contracts or Concession 
Contracts between £25,000 and the relevant EU Threshold a two stage 
procedure with a PQQ may be used. The service director may select a 
shortlist of at least five suppliers to be invited to tender.   

23.3 A PQQ must not be issued for contracts below the EU Threshold for Services 
(except Light Touch Regime Services), however one may be used to obtain 
information or evidence which the Council requires for the purpose of 
assessing whether tenderers meet requirements or minimum standards of 
suitability, capability, legal status or financial standing only provided that each 
such question is relevant to the subject-matter of the procurement and 
proportionate. 

23.4 To ensure genuine competition, the minimum number of Suppliers invited to 
tender is five or, if there is an in-house bidder, six.  If there are fewer than five 
suitable expressions of interest in being invited to tender, then the minimum 
number of Suppliers to be invited to tender may be reduced as appropriate 
subject to ensuring value for money. 

23.5 The invitation to tender must be issued by the Procurement Service. 

23.6 The instructions to tenderers must state 

 the latest date and time for receipt by the Council of tenders.   

Tudalen 120



   23 

 tenders must be returned to the Council via the eProcurement System 
tenders that arrive at the Council after the latest date and time 
specified, whatever the circumstances, will be retained unopened 
until after the tenders properly received have been opened and 
recorded, and will be opened and considered by the Council only if 
the Head of Legal & Committee Services certifies that they are 
satisfied that the tender has not gained any advantage over other 
tenders by the delay.; 

 any contract will be terminated immediately, and any losses to the 
Council arising from the termination recovered from the Supplier, if 
the Supplier, or anyone acting on his behalf (with or without the 
Supplier's knowledge) : 

(1) offers or promises or gives a financial or other advantage to any 
elected member of the Council, any member of staff or any consultant 
in connection with the contract; or 

(2) requests, agrees to receive or accepts a financial or other 
advantage so that some action in relation to the contract is performed 
improperly. 

 Such other terms as the Procurement Service may require. 

23.7 Appropriate time must be allowed for submission of tenders.  The minimum is 
fourteen days from the date of the invitation to tender.   

23.8 Amendments to invitation to tender documents, made after the invitations 
have been sent out, must be clearly headed "ITT Amendment" and sent to 
all Suppliers who have been invited to tender.  One or more amendments 
must be numbered consecutively.  Amendments must be sent out in 
sufficient time to allow suppliers to adjust their tenders before close of 
tenders.  If necessary, the tender period must be extended to allow for this. 

 

23.9 Until the contract has been awarded, the information obtained at the opening 
of tenders is confidential to those involved in the opening process and those 
directly involved in evaluation of the tenders.  Confidentiality must be 
maintained and any breach reported to the Council's Monitoring Officer. 

23.10. A tender that does not comply with the instructions to tenderers or is 
conditional must be treated as non-compliant and rejected.  Non-compliant 
tenders must not be evaluated unless Procurement advises otherwise.   

23.11 Negotiations with suppliers who have tendered for a contract are not 
permitted by EU law and are therefore unlawful, for contract values below the 
EU Threshold. After tenders have been opened, and before the tenders 
have been scored, the service director may require one or more tenders to 
be clarified by the tenderer.  Clarification questions and answers must be 
fully documented and the relevant clarifications incorporated in the contract 
document.  Clarifications must not make any substantive changes to the 
tender.  Tenders must not be scored until clarifications have been completed. 

23.12 A Supplier's tender is their offer to the Council, which the Council may accept 
as it stands subject to CPR 32.8.  If a tenderer attempts to alter his Tender 

Tudalen 121



   24 

after the last date for receipt of tenders, he must be given the opportunity to 
stand by or withdraw his original Tender.  Correction of an obvious 
arithmetical error may be accepted. 

24. EVALUATION OF TENDERS 

24.1 Tenders should normally be evaluated on the basis of ‘most economically 
advantageous’ to the Council.  Exceptionally, and only with the permission of 
the Head of Procurement, tenders may be evaluated on the basis of price 
only. The basis of evaluation must be stated in the invitation to tender.  If the 
basis of evaluation is 'most economically advantageous', the criteria for 
evaluation must be set out in the invitation to tender, in descending order of 
priority, with the weightings to be given to them.   

24.2 If the basis of evaluation is price only, only the lowest Tender (if payment is 
to be made by the Council) provided that the quality element in the value for 
money ratio is confirmed or the highest Tender (if payment is to be made to 
the Council) provided that the quality element in the value for money ratio is 
confirmed may be accepted.  

24.3 If the basis of evaluation is 'most economically advantageous', the service 
director must arrange for an appropriate evaluation panel to consider the 
tenders and evaluate them against the criteria and weightings stated in the 
invitation to tender.  The evaluation panel may (subject to appropriate conflict 
of interest checks and confidentiality agreements) include service users 
and/or external consultants but must not include elected members of the 
Council.   

24.4 All valid tenders received must be evaluated. 

24.5 Tenders must be accepted in accordance with the outcome of the evaluation 
or not at all.   

24.6 If no suitable tenders are received, Legal Services must be consulted as to 
how the works, supplies or service concerned may be procured. 

24.7 A Tender that exceeds the budget allocated must not be accepted.  If a 
tender exceeds the budget allocated, the service director must obtain an 
additional allocation of funds in accordance with Financial Regulations 
before the tender may be accepted. 

24.8 If all valid tenders are too high to be accepted and there is no further 
allocation of additional funds, the service director may delete part of the 
specification and ask all suppliers invited to tender to re-price their tenders, 
by submitting a fresh form of tender.  In such cases, the service director must 
set out the deletion in a bill of reductions or other document, to be 
incorporated into the contract document. 

24.9 Tenders must not be value-engineered with one or more suppliers except 
with the specific consent of and in consultation with Legal Services. This is to 
ensure that no unlawful post-tender negotiations take place. 

24.10 If the contract will result in the application of the TUPE Regulations, the 
service director must ensure that the successful tenderer has dealt with all 
employee matters, including pay, conditions of employment and pension 
rights and benefits, in his Tender and will give all appropriate indemnities in 

Tudalen 122



   25 

the contract.  The Council will give appropriate indemnities in respect of 
employee matters only if employees are transferring from Council 
employment to the successful tenderer and in no other circumstances. 

24.11 The service director is responsible for producing a full tender report, which 
should: 

 confirm that the tender procedure has complied with these Contract 
Procedure Rules; 

 list the tenders invited and received; 

 list the evaluation criteria and weightings; and 

 show the scoring of tenders on evaluation. 

The tender report must be sent to the decision-maker before the decision to 
award the contract is made. 

 

25. AWARD OF THE CONTRACT – Tenders 

25.1 Refer to CPR 22.  

25.2 As soon as practicable after the decision to award the contract has been 
made, the service director must write to inform the successful and 
unsuccessful tenderers of that decision. 

25.3 The service director shall ensure that within a reasonable time of the award 
of the contract, the award is published in the National Procurement Website 

25.4  Information may be withheld from publication where its release:  

(a) would impede law enforcement or would otherwise be contrary to the 
public interest, 

(b) would prejudice the legitimate commercial interests of a particular 
economic operator, whether public or private, or 

(c) might prejudice fair competition between economic operators. 

26. SIGNATURE OF CONTRACT – Tenders 

26.1 The Supplier must not be allowed to begin work on the contract until the 
contract documents have been signed or sealed as appropriate by both 
parties. 

26.2 Contracts below the relevant EU Threshold, which are not required to be 
sealed must be signed for and on behalf of the Council by the service director 
responsible for the contract personally.   

Tudalen 123



   26 

 

Part 6 – EU TENDERS 

Contracts over the EU Threshold 

 

27. COMPETITION 

27.1 Competitive tenders must be sought for contracts over the EU Threshold. 

 

28. SELECTING THE PROCUREMENT ROUTE – EU Tenders 

28.1 A commercial strategy must be agreed with Procurement before seeking 
authority to invite tenders.  This must be completed well in advance of 
beginning the tender process and must be in the format approved by the 
Procurement Service.  

28.2 At the same time as submitting the procurement request to engage 
Procurement in developing a commercial strategy, the service director must 
give full instructions to the Legal Services to draft or approve terms and 
conditions of contract in accordance with CPR 30. 

28.3 An initial Sustainable Risk Assessment (SRA) must be carried out with the 
Procurement Service and, if required, a full SRA undertaken.  

28.4 Where appropriate, the service director must carry out relevant consultation. 

  

 

29. SPECIFICATION – EU Tenders 

29.1 An appropriate specification must be prepared, which sets out a clear and 
comprehensive description of the Council's requirements with regard to the 
works, goods or services to be supplied. 

29.2 All works, goods and services must be specified by reference to European 
standards, or national standards if no European standards are set.  Named 
products or manufacturers must not be specified. 

Advisory note: Named products can be specified if the words “or equivalent” 
are added after the named product, but it is better to describe the features 
that required in the product. 

29.3 The specification should incorporate measurable and, so far as is possible, 
objective quality and performance criteria to enable the service director to 
see whether the Council’s requirements are being met by the Supplier. 

29.4 All necessary professional and technical advice and assistance must be 
obtained in preparing the specification, to ensure a comprehensive document 
that expresses the Council's requirements and protects its interests.  
Consultants who assist in the preparation of a specification must not be 
invited to tender for the contract.  The people who prepare the specification 
should, as a rule, be part of the panel that evaluates tenders. 

Tudalen 124



   27 

 

30. TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT  

30.1 For contracts over the EU Threshold for Services and Supplies and for 
contracts over the value of £1m for Works and Concession Contracts, full 
instructions must be given at the earliest opportunity and in any event not 
later than submitting the procurement request to Legal Services to draft the 
terms and conditions of contract or to approve standard terms and conditions 
of contract e.g. NEC.   

30.2 The OJEU contract notice or other advertisement inviting tenders must not be 
published until all the procurement documents are available electronically 
with unrestricted and full direct access via the eProcurement System.  

31. AUTHORITY AND DELEGATION TO INVITE AND EVALUATE TENDERS 
AND AWARD CONTRACTS  

31.1 Subject to CPR 31.2, the decision to invite and evaluate tenders for a 
contract and the decision to delegate the award of the contract can be 
contained in one report to either the portfolio holder or Cabinet as 
appropriate. 

31.2 A portfolio holder may authorise the invitation and evaluation of tenders 
and/or the award of the following contracts: 

- Goods and Services between £100,000 and £2 million 

Provided that such contracts are within the scope of his/her portfolio and a 
budget has been allocated for that expenditure.  

31.4 Only Cabinet may authorise the invitation and evaluation of tenders and/or 
the award of the following contracts:   

 - Goods and Services above £2 million 

 - Light Touch Services, Works and Concession Contracts above the relevant 
EU Threshold.  

Cabinet may delegate authority to a portfolio holder or service director to 
award a contract above the values , provided that a budget has been 
allocated for that expenditure.  The decision will be recorded in Cabinet 
minutes. 

31.5 The OJEU contract notice or other advertisement inviting tenders must not be 
published until the service director, portfolio holder or Cabinet (as 
appropriate) has made the decision to invite and evaluate tenders and the 
decision has been recorded in writing on the appropriate decision form. 

 

32. THE TENDER PROCEDURE – EU Tenders 

32.1 The service director, in consultation with the Procurement Service, must 
follow the tender procedures set out in the EU Regulations when letting 
contracts over the relevant EU Threshold.   

32.2 The service director in consultation with Legal Services must establish 
whether a contract falls under the Full Regime or the Light Touch Regime.   

Tudalen 125



   28 

 When the contract falls under the Full Regime, the service director 
must use an open or restricted procedure unless Legal Services agree 
the use of another procedure.   

 Where the contract falls within the Concession Contracts Regulations 
2016 or the Light Touch Regime then the service director in 
consultation with Legal Services may determine the tender procedures 
that are to be applied.  

32.3 The OJEU contract notice or other advertisement inviting tenders must not be 
published until all the procurement documents are available electronically 
with unrestricted and full direct access via the eProcurement System.   

32.4 To ensure the best response to an advertisement, the service director may 
alert appropriate suppliers in advance to the appearance of the 
advertisement. 

32.5 The contract opportunity must be advertised in OJEU and published in the 
National Procurement Website for the Light Touch Regime, the Full Regime 
and Concession Contracts.  OJEU contract notices must be placed by the 
Procurement Service only, in consultation with the Legal Services.  Service 
directors or consultants must not place OJEU contract notices themselves.    

32.6 A sufficient number of Suppliers must be invited to tender to ensure genuine 
competition.  The minimum number is five or, if there may be an in-house 
bidder, six.  If there are fewer than five expressions of interest in being invited 
to tender or fewer than five satisfactory PQQs, then the minimum number of 
Suppliers to be invited to tender may be reduced, with the approval of the 
Procurement Service. 

32.7 As soon as possible after the selection of the shortlist of Suppliers to be 
invited to tender, any Suppliers not selected should be informed in writing of 
the reasons why they were not selected. If a Supplier who was not selected 
asks for further information on why he was unsuccessful, the service director 
must promptly make arrangements for the de-briefing.   

32.8A Service directors shall ensure that the progress of all procurement 
procedures are documented. 

32.8B Service directors shall ensure that they keep sufficient documentation to 
justify decisions taken in all stages of the procurement procedure, such as 
documentation on: 

(a) communications with bidders and internal deliberations, 

(b) preparation of the procurement documents, 

(c) dialogue or negotiation if any, 

(d) selection and award of the contract. 

32.8C Service directors shall ensure that the documentation shall be kept for a 
period of at least six years after the contract end date. 

32.9 The invitation to tender must be issued by the Procurement Service.  

32.10 The instructions to tenderers must state  

 the latest date and time for receipt by the Council of tenders.   

Tudalen 126



   29 

 tenders must be returned via the eProcurement System tenders that 
arrive at the Council after the latest date and time specified, whatever 
the circumstances, will be retained unopened until after the tenders 
properly received have been opened and recorded, and will be 
opened and considered by the Council only if the Head of Legal & 
Committee Services certifies that they are satisfied that the tender 
has not gained any advantage over other tenders by the delay; 

 Any tender that does not comply with the instructions to tenderers or 
is conditional must be treated as non-compliant and rejected.  Non-
compliant tenders must not be evaluated unless Procurement 
advises otherwise and 

 any contract will be terminated immediately, and any losses to the 
Council arising from the termination recovered from the supplier, if the 
supplier, or anyone acting on his behalf (with or without the supplier's 
knowledge) : 

(1) offers or promises or gives a financial or other advantage to any 
elected member of the Council, any member of staff or any consultant 
in connection with the contract; or 

(2) requests, agrees to receive or accepts a financial or other 
advantage so that some action in relation to the contract is performed 
improperly. 

 Such other terms as the Procurement Service may require. 

32.11 The service director must allow sufficient time for submission of tenders.  The 
time allowed must comply with that the relevant EU Regulations. legislation. 

32.12 Amendments by the service director to invitation to tender documents, made 
after the invitations have been sent out, must be clearly headed "ITT 
Amendment" and sent to all suppliers who have been invited to tender.  If 
there is more than one amendment, they must be numbered consecutively.  
Amendments must be sent out in sufficient time to allow suppliers to adjust 
their tenders and in any event no later than five clear working days before 
close of tenders.  If necessary, the tender period must be extended to allow 
for this. 

32.13 Until the contract has been awarded, the information obtained at the opening 
of tenders is confidential to those involved in the opening process and those 
directly involved in evaluation of the tenders.  Confidentiality must be 
maintained and any breach reported to the Council's Monitoring Officer. 

32.14 Tenders must be opened via the Council’s eProcurement system by the 
Procurement Service member of staff authorised to be the verifier for that 
tender.  

 

33. CLARIFICATION OF TENDERS – EU Tenders 

33.1 Negotiations with suppliers who have tendered for a contract are not 
permitted by EU law and are therefore unlawful except in accordance with 
the Concession Contracts Regulations 2016 and the negotiated procedure or 
the competitive procedure with negotiation under the Public Contracts 

Tudalen 127



   30 

Regulations 2015 (as amended).  After tenders have been opened, and 
before the tenders have been scored, the service director must discuss 
with Procurement and Legal Services whether they require one or more 
tenders to be clarified by the tenderer.   

33.2 Clarifications must be designed to ensure that the Council has fully 
understood the tender submitted.  Clarifications must not make any 
substantive changes to the tender.   

33.3 Clarification questions and answers must be fully documented in a form 
approved by Legal Services and the relevant clarifications incorporated in the 
contract document.   

33.4 Tenders must not be evaluated and scored until clarifications have been 
completed. 

 

34. EVALUATION OF TENDERS – EU Tenders 

34.1 Tenders should normally be evaluated on the basis of which is the most 
economically advantageous to the Council.  Exceptionally, and only with the 
permission of the Procurement Service, tenders may be evaluated on the 
basis of price only provided that the quality element in the value for money 
ratio is confirmed.  The basis of evaluation must be stated in the contract 
notice published in OJEU and in any other advertisement.  The basis of 
evaluation must also be stated in the invitation to tender.  If the basis of 
evaluation is 'most economically advantageous', the criteria for evaluation 
must be set out in the invitation to tender, in descending order of priority, with 
the weightings to be given to them and the method of scoring.   

Advisory note: Criteria for evaluation may include quality, price, technical 
merit, aesthetic and functional characteristics, environmental characteristics, 
running costs, cost effectiveness, after sales services, technical assistance, 
delivery date, delivery period, and period of completion. 

34.2 If the basis of evaluation is price only provided that the quality element in the 
value for money ratio is confirmed, only the lowest tender (if payment is to be 
made by the Council) or the highest tender (if payment is to be made to the 
Council) may be accepted.  

34.3 If the basis of evaluation is 'most economically advantageous', the service 
director must arrange for an appropriate evaluation panel to consider the 
tenders and evaluate them against the criteria and weightings stated in the 
invitation to tender.  The evaluation panel may include service users and/or 
external consultants (subject to appropriate conflict of interest checks and 
confidentiality agreements) but may not include elected members of the 
Council.  The evaluation panel should, as a rule, comprise those people who 
have had significant input into drawing up the specification. 

34.4 All valid tenders received must be evaluated.   

34.5 Tenders must be accepted in accordance with the outcome of the evaluation 
or not at all.   

Tudalen 128



   31 

34.6 If no suitable tenders or abnormally low tenders are received, the service 
director must consult Legal Services as to how the works, supplies or service 
concerned may be procured. 

34.7 A tender that exceeds the budget allocated must not be accepted.  If a tender 
exceeds the budget allocated, the service director must obtain an additional 
allocation of funds in accordance with Financial Regulations before the 
tender may be accepted. 

34.8 If all valid tenders are too high to be accepted and there is no further 
allocation of additional funds, the service director may delete part of the 
specification and ask all suppliers invited to tender to re-price their tenders, 
by submitting a fresh form of tender.  In such cases, the service director must 
set out the deletion in a bill of reductions or other document, to be 
incorporated into the contract document. 

34.9 Tenders must not be value-engineered with one or more suppliers except 
with the specific consent of and in consultation with Procurement and Legal 
Services.  This is to ensure that no post-tender negotiations take place. 

34.10 If the contract will result in the application of the TUPE Regulations, the 
service director must ensure that the successful tenderer has dealt with all 
employee matters, including pay, conditions of employment and pension 
rights and benefits, in his tender and will give all appropriate indemnities in 
the contract.  The Council will give appropriate indemnities in respect of 
employee matters only if employees are transferring from Council 
employment to the successful tenderer and in no other circumstances. 

 

35. AMENDMENTS AND ALTERATIONS TO TENDERS – EU Tenders 

35.1 Subject to Regulations 34.8 and 34.9 a Supplier's tender is his offer to the 
Council, which the Council may accept as it stands.  Once he has submitted 
his Tender and it has been clarified if necessary, a tenderer is not permitted 
to make any alteration to the amount of the tender or any of his tender 
proposals. 

35.2 If a tenderer attempts to alter his offer after the last date for receipt of 
tenders, he must be given the opportunity to stand by or withdraw his original 
offer.  Correction of an obvious arithmetical error in a fixed price Tender, may 
be accepted. 

35.3 A Tender that is qualified or expressed to be conditional upon the Council's 
acceptance of alterations to the specification or the terms and conditions of 
contract must be treated as non-compliant and rejected.  Non-compliant 
tenders must not be evaluated.  This does not prevent the Council inviting 
variant bids.  If variant bids are invited, tenderers must be required to submit 
a mandatory reference bid based on the specification and terms and 
conditions included in the invitation to tender, so that all bids may be 
compared fairly. 

35.4 Before a Tender has been accepted, a service director may ask all tenderers 
to hold their tenders open for a longer period.  Tenders should in any event 
remain open for acceptance for a period of ninety days from the latest date 

Tudalen 129



   32 

for receipt of tenders, or such other period as the service director considers 
appropriate, and the form of tender must make this clear. 

 

36. AWARD OF THE CONTRACT – EU Tenders 

36.1 Refer to CPR 31 in respect of authority to award a contract. 

36.2 A full, confidential tender report must be produced in a format approved by 
the Procurement Service, (the report is not required for call off contracts from 
a Framework Agreement, or Dynamic Purchasing Systems unless 
specifically requested by the Procurement Service). 

36.3 The tender report must be sent to Procurement and the decision-maker 
before the decision to award the contract is made.  The tender report must be 
marked “NOT FOR PUBLICATION”. 

36.4 The recommendation to the decision-maker to award the contract must 
include the name of the successful tenderer, the length of the contract and 
any options for extension and the price or estimated price of the contract. 

36.5 As soon as possible after the decision to award the contract has been made 
and taking call-in procedures into account, the service director must write to 
inform the successful tenderer of that decision.  The letter must state that 
award of the contract is subject to signature by both parties of the contract 
document, which will be sent to the tenderer by Procurement.  The letter 
must be via the Council’s eProcurement system. 

36.6 At the same time as the notification in CPR 36.5, the service director must 
write to each unsuccessful tenderer, informing them of: 

 the name of the successful tenderer;  

 the number of PQQs received; 

 the number of invitations to tender issued; 

 the number of tenders received; 

 the reasons for the decision to award, including the characteristics and 
relative advantages of the successful tender; 

 the award criteria, any sub-criteria, the weightings applied to them and 
the scoring methodology; 

 the score obtained by the successful tenderer in the evaluation; 

 the score obtained by the unsuccessful tenderer being notified (but no 
others);  

 the date the decision to award was made; 

 the effect of the standstill period and the date before which the Council 
will not enter into the contract; and 

 the date the letter is being sent. 

The notification letter to the unsuccessful tenderers must be sent via the 
Council’s eProcurement system. 

Tudalen 130



   33 

36.7. At the same time as the notification in CPR 36.5, the service director must 
write to each supplier who was invited to tender but who did not submit a 
tender, informing him of: 

 the name of the successful tenderer;  

 the number of PQQs received; 

 the number of invitations to tender issued; 

 the number of tenders received; 

 the reasons for the decision to award, including the characteristics of 
the successful tender; 

 the award criteria, any sub-criteria, the weightings applied to them and 
the scoring methodology; 

 the score obtained by the successful tenderer in the evaluation; 

 the date the decision to award was made; 

 the effect of the standstill period and the date before which the Council 
will not enter into the contract; and 

 the date the letter is being sent. 

The notification letter to the suppliers who were invited but who did not 
submit a tender must be sent via the Council’s eProcurement system. 

36.8 The notifications in CPR 36.6 and CPR 36.7 must be approved by the 
Procurement Service before being issued. 

36.9 If an unsuccessful tenderer asks for further information on why he was 
unsuccessful, the service director must promptly arrange for the de-briefing. 

36.10 The contract document must not be signed or sealed (as appropriate) before 
the expiry of ten days (the standstill period) following the date the notification 
of the decision to award the contract was sent. 

36.11 A voluntary transparency notice (other than for an extension or modification 
as defined in CPRs 40 and 41) may be published in OJEU only with the prior 
permission of the Head of Legal & Committee Services. If a voluntary 
transparency notice is published, the contract document must not be signed 
or sealed (as appropriate) before the expiry of ten days (the standstill period) 
after the date on which the notice was published in OJEU. 

36.12 The service director must, in consultation with the Procurement Service, 
arrange for publication of a contract award notice in OJEU, within 30 days of 
the award of the contract or the conclusion of a Framework Agreement or a 
Dynamic Purchasing System (There is no requirement to publish an OJEU 
notice for a call off contract from a Framework Agreement). 

36.13 The service director shall ensure that within a reasonable time of the award 
of the contract, the award is published in the National Procurement Website 
with at least the following information: 

(a) the name of the contractor; 

(b) the date on which the contract was entered into; 

(c) the value of the contract; 

Tudalen 131



   34 

(d) whether the contractor is a SME. 

36.14  Information may be withheld from publication where its release:  

(a) would impede law enforcement or would otherwise be contrary to the 
public interest, 

(b) would prejudice the legitimate commercial interests of a particular 
economic operator, whether public or private, or 

(c) might prejudice fair competition between economic operators. 

 

37. BONDS AND PARENT COMPANY GUARANTEES 

37.1 For every contract of £5m or more in value, the service director must decide, 
taking appropriate advice, whether the circumstances justify the Council 
requiring the supplier to provide a parent company guarantee.  If the supplier 
does not have a parent company or the parent company is not approved 
under CPR 37.2, the supplier may in those circumstances be required to 
provide a bond.  If a bond is required, the amount of the bond must be not 
less than ten per cent of the total contract value or the whole of the annual 
contract value, unless otherwise agreed by the Chief Finance Officer.  

37.2 The parent company or the surety for a bond must be approved by the Chief 
Finance Officer. 

37.3 All parent company guarantees and bonds must be in a form approved by 
Legal Services.  A specimen of the parent company guarantee and bond 
must be included in the invitation to tender documentation. 

 

38. SIGNATURE OF THE CONTRACT – EU Tenders 

38.1 All contracts, bonds, guarantees, agreements or transactions  

(i)  in respect of which there is no consideration; or  

(ii)  that exceed £500,000 in value over the life of the contract 

must be executed as a deed under seal in accordance with these Contract 
Procedure Rules.  

However this will not apply to contracts for insurance where the contract is 
brought into effect by the issue of a schedule of insurance and policy 
documents to the Council by the insurer. 

Legal Services may direct that other contracts must be executed as deeds. 

38.2 All contracts executed as deeds must have the Council’s Common Seal 
impressed on them and witnessed by an officer of the Council authorised by 
the Head of Legal and Committee Services 

38.3 All contracts which are not within the scope of CPR 38.1 must be signed for 
and on behalf of the Council by one officers of the Council. 

Tudalen 132



   35 

 

Part 7 

For contracts that have commenced 

 

39. CONTRACT MANAGEMENT 

39.1 A contract must not start until the contract documents have been signed or 
sealed and dated.  Service directors must allow time for this in the contract 
programme. 

39.2 Within ten days of the date of the contract, if the contract is worth £25,000 or 
more, the service director must add the details of the contract onto the 
Council’s contracts register and record the following: 

 the works, goods or services to be supplied; 

 the name of the supplier, 

 the contract value; 

 the commencement and completion dates; 

 any extension options 

 The current status of the contract 

These details must be maintained and updated.  

39.3 The service director shall be the contract manager for the contracts for which 
he/she is responsible up to the EU Threshold, but he/she may authorise 
another officer to have day-to-day responsibility for managing the contract.  
For contracts over the EU Threshold, the service director must appoint a 
contract manager with appropriate skills and experience.   

39.4 The contract manager is responsible for: 

 managing the contract and ensuring that it is carried out in accordance 
with its terms and conditions; 

 monitoring the supplier's performance and carrying out mid-contract 
reviews to determine ongoing value for money; 

 making the Supplier aware that they are expected to comply with the 
Council’s equal opportunities, counter-fraud and corruption, welsh 
language standards, whistle-blowing and anti-money laundering 
policies; 

 ensuring that the Supplier maintains the insurance policies required by 
the contract; 

 agreeing any minor changes to the contract (but not changes to 
prices) before they are carried out; 

 keeping a record of all valuations, payments, claims, monitoring, 
changes and certificates under the contract; 

 deducting liquidated damages, if appropriate;  

Tudalen 133



   36 

 Liaise with the Procurement Service to update the status of their 
contract on the Council’s Contracts Register; 

 in consultation with Legal Services and the appropriate finance 
manager, consenting to sub-contracts, assignments to new suppliers 
and novations to new suppliers; and  

 managing the transition between the ending of one contract and the 
beginning of another 

Advisory note: It is recommended that decisions authorising changes to a 
contract or sub-contracts, assignments or novations are recorded on an 
officer decision form.  

39.5 The service director must consult Legal Services for consideration of the 
Council's legal position: 

 before any contract is to be terminated or suspended; 

 in the event of a claim for payment not clearly within the terms and 
conditions of contract; 

 before making any deduction from payments due to a Supplier or 
withholding payment from a Supplier; 

 subject to Regulations 40 and 41, before making any extension to a 
contract or variation of the scope of a contract. 

39.6 If the final expenditure under a contract exceeds the budgeted sum by 10% 
or more, the service director, in consultation with the Chief Finance Officer, 
must prepare and submit a report to the appropriate portfolio holder and to 
the chairman of Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

39.7 To ensure value for money and competition, contracts for an indefinite or 
rolling term must be terminated at the end of ten years in any event and a 
new contract procured. 

 

40. EXTENSIONS TO CONTRACTS 

40.1 An extension to a contract is an additional period at the end of the contract, 
during which the works or the services to be carried out are a repetition of the 
works or services under the original contract.  Contracts for supplies must not 
be extended. 

40.2 Unless a contract specifically includes an option to extend its term, or the 
extension falls within the parameters of a modification under CPR 41, that 
contract may not be extended.  The contract will cease to exist at the end of 
its term. 

40.3 If a contract specifically includes an option to extend its term and: 

 the OJEU notice or other advertisements for the contract stated that 
an extension contract may be awarded; and 

 the estimated value of the contract in the OJEU notice or other 
advertisements took account of the potential extended contract; and 

Tudalen 134



   37 

 the extension represents good value for money for the Council, 

then the service director may make a decision to award the extension 
contract if the value of the extension is below £500,000 per annum.  If the 
value of the extension is between £500,000 per annum and £1m per annum 
or is £1m or more per annum, the decision to award the extension contract 
must be made by the portfolio holder or Cabinet respectively. 

Once the extension has expired, that contract will cease to exist. 

40.4 If the contract is above the EU threshold then the extension should be 
approved by the Head of Legal & Committee Services in consultation with the 
Head of Procurement.  

40.5  All extensions must be evidenced in writing in accordance with the contract in 
consultation with the Procurement Service.  

 

41. MODIFICATION OR VARIATION OF CONTRACTS DURING THEIR TERM 

41.1 Provided that a budget has been allocated for the expenditure, value for 
money can be demonstrated and authority has been obtained from the 
appropriate decision maker, contracts and Framework Agreements may be 
modified or varied without a new procurement procedure in accordance with 
the following provisions: 

 
41.1.1 for contracts and Framework Agreements within the scope of the EU 
Regulations, in accordance with the terms of the relevant EU Regulations; 
and 
 
41.1.2 for contracts and Framework Agreements falling outside of the scope 
of the EU Regulations, in the following cases: 
  

 
41.1.2.1 where the change in value is relatively small - under 10% of the 

contract value for services & supplies or under 15% of the contract 
value for works and does not alter the overall nature of the contract 
(NB the contract value to be used is the updated value if the 
contract contains an indexation clause.  Where several successive 
modifications are made the change value shall be cumulative); or 

 
41.1.2.2 where the modifications, irrespective of their monetary value, have 

been provided for in the initial procurement documents in clear, 
precise and unequivocal review clauses, which may include price 
revision clauses or options, provided that such clauses: 

 
(i) state the scope and nature of possible modifications or options 

as well as the conditions under which they may be used, and 
 

(ii) do not provide for modifications or options that would alter the 
overall nature of the contract or the Framework Agreement; or 

 

Tudalen 135



   38 

41.1.2.3    where additional works, services or supplies are necessary 
from the existing contractor (and the contract does not provide a 
mechanism for this) and a change in contractor cannot be made for 
economic or technical reasons such as interchangeability or 
interoperability with existing equipment, services or installations 
procured under the initial procurement; and where changing the 
contractor would cause significant inconvenience or duplication of 
costs, provided that the price increase does not exceed 50%; or 

 
41.1.2.4 where there is a need for a modification (and the contract 

does not provide a mechanism) due to unforeseen circumstances, 
the change does not alter the overall nature of contract and the price 
increase is not greater than 50%; or 

 
41.1.2.5 where a new contractor replaces the one to which the 

Council had initially awarded the contract as a consequence of an 
unequivocal review clause or option or following a corporate 
restructuring, insolvency or merger, and the new contractor still 
meets the original selection criteria. This exemption is only available 
where there is no other substantial modification to the contract; or 

 
41.1.2.6 otherwise where the modification is not substantial and is 

only made following consultation with Legal Services. 
 

412 All modifications must be evidenced in writing in accordance with the contract 
in consultation with Legal Services. 
 

 
 

Tudalen 136



   39 

 

Part 8 

Exceptions to Contract Procedure Rules 

 

42.1 An exception to Contract Procedure Rules is a permission to let a contract 
without complying with one or more of the Contract Procedure Rules.  An 
exception to Contract Procedure Rules may be granted subject to conditions. 
Authority to award a contract will be required in addition to the 
exception to Contract Procedure Rules. 

42.2 Only the Director of Resources, or his authorised deputy, in consultation with 
the Procurement Service, are delegated by Cabinet to grant an exception to 
these Contract Procedure Rules.  Applications for exceptions must follow the 
process set out by the Procurement Service, be made in writing and signed 
by the service director, and must include the exception that is requested and 
the justification for the exception.  Exceptions to Contract Procedure Rules 
will never be given retrospectively and exceptions for extensions are unlikely 
to be granted if there is less than six months left on the contract and so must 
be submitted well in advance of the decision needing to be made 

42.3 The Procurement Service will keep a register of all exceptions to Contract 
Procedure Rules.  

42.4 An application for an exception to Contract Procedure Rules, to allow a 
contract to be let without genuine competition will not be granted without a 
cogent reason.  A lack of time caused by inadequate forward planning is not 
a cogent reason and will not permit an exception to Contract Procedure 
Rules.  If an application to let a contract without genuine competition is 
granted, the service director responsible for the contract must demonstrate 
that the price obtained is not in excess of the market price and that the 
contract represents best value for money. 

42.5 An exception to Contract Procedure Rules is not required in the following 
circumstances: 

 placing an order under an existing corporate contract or Framework 
Agreement; 

 as part of a partnering contract that contemplates a series of contracts 
with a single supplier, provided the entire series has been duly 
authorised as appropriate for its value; 

 legislation requires the Council to let a contract differently from these 
Contract Procedure Rules; 

 placing an order under an arrangement, of which the Council is an 
affiliate, which has gone through an EU compliant competitive 
process; or 

 following completion of a quotation procedure, some or all of the 
quotations exceed £25,000, provided all quotations are below 
£30,000. 

Tudalen 137



   40 

ANNEX 1 

 

LIGHT TOUCH REGIME SERVICES 

 

Schedule 3 Services (PCR 2015) 
(Light Touch Regime for contracts exceeding £625,050 in total) 

 

Overarching Description Areas included 

Health, social and related services * Supply services of domestic help personnel 
* Supply services of nursing personnel 
* Supply services of medical personnel 
* Private households with employed persons 
* Manpower services for households, Agency 
staff services for households, Clerical staff 
services for households, Temporary staff for 
households, Home-help services and 
Domestic services 
Social Care 
Nursing Care 

Administrative social, educational, 
healthcare and cultural services 

* Administration, defence and social security 
services 
* Education and training services 
* Exhibition, fair and congress organisation 
services 
* Seminar organisation services 
* Event services 
* Cultural event organisation services 
* Festival organisation services 
* Party organisation services 
* Fashion shows organisation services 
* Fair and exhibition organisation services 

Compulsory social security services  

Benefit services  

Other community, social and 
personal services including services 
furnished by trade unions, political 
organisations, youth associations 
and other membership organisation 
services 

 

Religious services  

Hotel and restaurant services * Catering services for private households 
* Meals-on-wheels services 
* Meal delivery services 
* Catering services 
* Catering services for transport enterprises 
* Catering services for other enterprises or 
institutions 
* School catering services 

Tudalen 138



   41 

* Canteen services 
* Canteen and other restricted-clientele 
cafeteria services 
* Canteen management services 
* School meal services 

Legal services (to extent not 
excluded by reg: 10(1)(d) 

 

Other administrative services and 
government services 

 

Provision of services to the 
community 

 

Provision of related services, public 
security and rescue services to the 
extent not excluded by regulation 
10(1)(h) 

 

Investigation and security services * Investigation and security services 
* Security services 
* Alarm-monitoring services 
* Guard services 
* Surveillance services 
* Tracing system services 
* Absconder-tracing services 
* Patrol services 
* Identification badge release services 
* Investigation services and detective agency 
services 
* Graphology services 
* Waste analysis services 

International services * Services provided by extra-territorial 
organisations and bodies 
* Services specific to international 
organisations and bodies 

Postal services * Postal and telecommunications services 
* Post and courier services 
* Postal services 
* Postal services related to newspapers and 
periodicals 
* Postal services related to letters 
* Postal services related to parcels 
* Post office counter services 
* Mailbox rental 
* Post-restante services 
* Internal office mail and messenger services 

Miscellaneous services * Tyre-remoulding services 
* Blacksmith services 

 

 

 

Tudalen 139



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



CYD-BWYLLGOR ERW
 

8 CHWEFROR 2019

RHAGLEN WAITH AWDIT MEWNOL 2018-19
Y Pwrpas:    

Cyflwyno rhaglen waith Awdit Mewnol ar gyfer 2018-19 i’r Cyd-Bwyllgor

YR ARGYMHELLION / PENDERFYNIADAU ALLWEDDOL SYDD EU HANGEN:

I’r Cyd-Bwyllgor gymeradwyo’r rhaglen ar gyfer 2018-19

Y RHESYMAU: 

Cyfrifoldeb Statudol

Awdur yr Adroddiad:

Jo Hendy

Swydd:

Pennaeth Awdit Mewnol ERW

Rhif Ffon 01437 776581

E: bost 
Joanne.hendy@pembrokeshire.gov.uk

Tudalen 141

Eitem Rhif  7.3



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
ERW JOINT COMMITTEE

8TH FEBRUARY 2019

INTERNAL AUDIT WORK PROGRAMME FOR 2018-19

BRIEF SUMMARY OF PURPOSE OF REPORT

The Internal Audit work programme for 2018-19.

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? YES

Tudalen 142



IMPLICATIONS

Policy, Crime & 
Disorder and 
Equalities

Legal Finance Risk Management Issues Staffing Implications

NONE NONE YES YES NONE

1. Finance

Joint Committee consideration and approval of the Internal Audit work programme for 
2018-19, namely the financial issues included.

2. Risk Management

Joint Committee consideration and approval of the Internal Audit work programme for 2018-
19, namely the risk management issues included.

CONSULTATIONS

N/A

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:
THERE ARE NONE

Tudalen 143



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



JOINT COMMITTEE

Report of: ERW Head of Internal Audit

Date: 08 February 2019
_________________________________________________________

Internal Audit Work Programme for 2018-19

The Internal Audit work programme for 2018-19 has been prepared in accordance 
with the requirements of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.
The following Internal Audit work programme has been agreed with the Lead Chief 
Executive, the Interim Managing Director and the Section 151 Officer. 

 Follow-up of Previous Internal Audit Recommendations

 Follow-up of Annual Governance Statement (AGS) Significant 
Governance Issues and Priorities for Improvement

 Corporate Governance

o Governance Arrangements
o Structure & Service Level Agreements
o Financial Stability of Consortium

 Business Planning

o Development of the Business Plan
o Alignment of Financial Planning
o Measuring and Monitoring the achievement of the Business Plan

 Compliance with ESTYN Action Plan

 Invoice Processing

o Budgetary Control
o Correct accounting treatment of the purchase of Supplies & Services 

 Grant Schedules & Returns from Authorities 

o Local Authority compliance with grant schedules & terms and 
conditions

o Submission of financial and non-financial data to the Consortia/Welsh 
Government

RECOMMENDATION:

The Joint Committee considers and approves the Internal Audit work programme for 
2018-19.

Background Documents:

None.

Tudalen 145



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



CYD-BWYLLGOR ERW 
8 CHWEFROR 2019

COFNOD RISG
Y Pwrpas:    

I ddiweddaru’r Cyd-Bwyllgor ar y risgiau systemig sy’n gwynebu Consortiwn ERW, a’i 
Awdurdodau Lleol, ar hyn o bryd

YR ARGYMHELLION / PENDERFYNIADAU ALLWEDDOL SYDD EU HANGEN:
1. I’r Cyd-Bwyllgor dderbyn yr adroddiad
2. I’r Cyd-Bwyllgor nodi bod y leflau goddefiant wedi eu hychwanegu, efl cytunwyd ar 

12.10.18
3. I’r Cyd-Bwyllgor gymeradwyo’r argymhelliad i ddileu’r risg re: Llety’r Tim Canolog

Y RHESYMAU: 
Prosesau Rheoli Risk Effeithiol
Anghenion Llywodraethol

Awdur yr Adroddiad:

Geraint Rees

Swydd:

RG Dros Dro

Rhif Ffon 01267 24 5640

E: bost : 
geraint.rees@erw.org.uk

Tudalen 147

Eitem Rhif  8



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
ERW JOINT COMMITTEE

8TH FEBRUARY 2019

RISK REGISTER

BRIEF SUMMARY OF PURPOSE OF REPORT

The Risk Register has been updated since the previous Joint Committee, following advice 
from the region’s Section 151 Officer and feedback from the ERW Executive Board.

The overall Risk profile has decreased since the previous meeting, with most risks being 
scored equally to the previous report, and a few scores decreasing.

Following the previous Joint Committee meeting, risks have been categorised accordingly, 
with each category carrying its own Tolerance Level. 

Some risks have been re-categorised following advice from the region’s Section 151 Officer 

The report recommends that the risk around Central Team Accommodation be removed from 
the register, as it has been mitigated.

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? YES

Tudalen 148



IMPLICATIONS
Policy, Crime & 
Disorder and 
Equalities

Legal Finance Risk Management Issues Staffing Implications

NONE NONE YES YES NONE

1. Finance

The Risk Register has a dedicated section where it discussed financial risks within ERW

2. Risk Management

The Risk Register is the primary mechanism for capturing and reporting on Risks within 
the ERW Governance structure.

CONSULTATIONS

N/A

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:
THERE ARE NONE

Tudalen 149



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Tudalen 151



Corporate 
Risk Register  

(Threats)

2018-19

 February 2019

Tudalen 152



2

Introduction
ERW’s Corporate Risk Register contains the strategic business risks (threats) to the 
achievement of the ERW’s Vision and Aims as outlined within the ERW Business 
Plan.
ERW’s Vision: “Improving Learning Together”
ERW’s Objectives:

 Improve the quality of leadership and its impact on outcomes
 Improve the quality of teaching and learning experiences and its impact on 

outcomes
 Reduce the impact of poverty on attainment, support vulnerable learners and 

ensure all learners reach their potential
 Deliver high quality and bespoke support, challenge, and intervention to 

schools
 Communicate effectively with all stakeholders

Corporate business risks (threats) are scored against the risk (threats) evaluation 
matrix shown on page 4, using the probability and impact criteria shown on pages 5 
and 6.
The Corporate Risk Register is a live document which is subject to regular review by 
the ERW Managing Director. New business risks identified or escalated via Local 
Authority risk registers are captured as proposed business risks and considered for 
inclusion on the Corporate Risk Register by the Lead Chief Executive.  The updated 
Corporate Risk Register is then formally reviewed by the ERW Executive Board. The 
Corporate Risk Register is reviewed regularly by the ERW Joint Committee.
Business risks are scored at inherent level (before any control measures are 
applied) and at residual level (after control measures have been applied). 
Although control measures are applied, they may not be sufficient to reduce the 
residual score if external factors (outside of officer control) still have a high influence 
on the probability of the risk occurring or the impact should it occur, e.g. Review and 
Reform Programme.   The heat map on page 7 shows the highest residual risks on 
the Corporate Risk Register.
Each risk has its own table showing the inherent and residual risk score along 
with the tolerance for the risk. Tolerance levels and responsible officers 
should ultimately be decided by the Joint Committee, who will be advised by 
the ERW Central Team.

To assist with the monitoring of changes to the Corporate Risk Register between 
reviews, the risk score table for each risk includes a movement column which shows 
if the residual risk has increased, decreased, or stayed the same.Where there 
is no arrow icon, this process will commence from the report presented to the next 
Joint Committee. 

Tudalen 153



3

The Corporate Risk Register for 2018-19 contains 17 business risks (threats), each 
of which is indexed at page 8 and 9, and shown in detail on pages 10 to 21.  

Risks are categorised under one of the four following groupings, with each 
grouping requiring an agreed tolerance level. 

1. Financial Risks -  Tolerance Level 6

2. Infrastructure Risks – Tolerance Level 8

3. People and Knowledge Risks – Tolerance Level 9

4. Governance and Compliance – Tolerance Level 4

Every risk is explained in three steps:

1. Event 

2. Consequence 

3. Impact

Tudalen 154



4

Risk Evaluation Matrix

Threats
Very High Low

(4)
Medium

(8)
High
(12)

High
(16)

High Low
(3)

Medium
(6)

Medium
(9)

High
(12)

Medium Low
(2)

Low
(4)

Medium
(6)

Medium
(8)Pr

ob
ab

ili
ty

 

Low Low
(1)

Low
(2)

Low
(3)

Low
(4)

Low Medium High Very High

Impact

Tudalen 155



5

Impact assessment criteria 
(Review the risk against the following criteria, chose the one that best describes the impact and rate accordingly from 1 – 4)

Rating Descripti
on

Financial
Capital / 
Revenue

Political Service / Operations

4 Very High  >40% to 
<100% budget

 Political intervention 
required. 

 Catastrophic fall in service quality and statutory 
service standards are not met.

 Long term interruption to service provision.
 Report from regulator or inspectorate requiring major 

project for corrective action.

3 High >15% to <40% 
budget

 Major adverse political 
reaction. 

 Major impact to service quality, statutory service 
standards are not met, long term disruption to 
operations, multiple partnerships affected. 

 Report of breach to regulator with immediate 
correction to be implemented.

2 Medium >5 % to < 15 
% budget

 Significant adverse 
regional political reaction. 

 Significant fall in service quality, major partnership 
relationships strained, serious disruption to statutory 
service standards. 

 Reportable incident to regulator(s).
1 Low < 5%  budget  Minor adverse political 

reaction and complaints 
which are quickly 
remedied.

 Minor impact to service quality, minor statutory 
service standards are not met.

< = Less than  
> =More than 

T
udalen 156



6

Probability assessment criteria 
(Select one of the ratings from the definitions below) 

Annual Frequency ProbabilityRating 
Description Definition Description Definition

4 Very High More than once in 
last  12 months

Very High >85 %  chance of 
occurrence

3 High Once in last 2 years High >45% to <85 % chance of 
occurrence 

2 Medium Once in 3 years up 
to 10 years

Medium >15% to < 45 % chance 
of occurrence

1 Low Once in 10 years  Low <15 % chance of 
occurrence

< = Less than  
> =More than 

T
udalen 157



7

Corporate Business Risks

The heat map below summarises the highest residual risks contained on the 
Corporate Risk Register.

Ve
ry

 H
ig

h 
Pr

ob
ab

ili
ty

12

Cuts to School Budgets

16

H
ig

h 
Pr

ob
ab

ili
ty

12

Estyn Action Plan

High
Impact

Very High
Impact

Tudalen 158



8

Index and Summary of Residual Business Risk 
Scores

Central
No. Risk

Pr
ob

ab
ili

ty

Im
pa

ct

R
es

id
ua

l 
R

is
k

Movement Page

1.1 Powys Estyn 
Monitoring result in 
follow up

1 4 4    11

1.2 Ceredigion Estyn 
Monitoring result in 
follow up

1 4 4    12

1.3 Pembrokeshire Estyn 
Monitoring result in 
follow up

2 4 8    13

1.4 Carmarthenshire Estyn 
Monitoring result in 
follow up

2 4 8    14

1.5 Swansea Estyn 
Monitoring result in 
follow up

1 4 4    15

1.6 Neath Port Talbot Estyn 
Monitoring result in 
follow up

1 4 4    16

2 Failure to comply with 
Estyn Action Plan

3 4 12  17

3 Failure to deliver 
Business Plan

3 3 9    18

4 ERW Governance 2 4 8    19

5 ERW Central Team 
Accommodation 

1 3 3    21

6 Data Protection 2 4 8    22
7 ERW found not to 

provide Value for 
Money

2 4 8    23

8 LA Failure to comply 
with Grant Regulations

2 4 8    24

Tudalen 159



9

Financial
No. Risk

Pr
ob

ab
ili

ty

Im
pa

ct

R
es

id
ua

l 
R

is
k

Movement Page

1 Timeliness of Welsh 
Government Funding

2 3 6    25

2 Cuts to School Budgets 4 3 12  26
3 Delivery of National 

Mission
3 3 9    27

4 WG Grant Compliance 2 4 8  28

Tudalen 160



10

Contextualisation

ERW (Education through Regional Working) is one of 4 regional education consortia 
in Wales. It is an alliance of six local authorities - Carmarthenshire, Ceredigion, 
Pembrokeshire and Powys, the County Borough of Neath Port Talbot and the City 
and County of Swansea. The purpose of ERW is to deliver a single, consistent and 
integrated professional school improvement service for children and young people 
across the South-West and Mid-Wales region.

ERW works closely with Welsh Government and with the other three regional 
consortia to deliver national priorities and policies in Wales, such as literacy, 
numeracy and digital competence, and improving learner outcomes. 
The regional education consortia were formally established following the publication 
of the National Model for School Improvement by Welsh Government in 2014. The 
National Model is based on a vision of regional school improvement consortia 
working with and on behalf of local authorities to lead, orchestrate and co-ordinate 
the improvement in the performance of schools and education of young people. This 
would be achieved by allowing local authorities to work collaboratively to share good 
practice, knowledge and skills, build capacity and increase opportunities for 
constructive challenge and targeted support. 
ERW works to communicate, broker and support the development of high performing 
school networks in order to identify the challenges and establish improvement 
pathways that lead to success. It seeks to ensure that every school is a good school 
offering high standards of teaching and good leadership resulting in all learners 
achieving their maximum potential. This can only be achieved by building school 
capacity through support, challenge and intervention so that they become self-
improving, resilient organisations which continually improve outcomes for learners. 

Our Objectives: 

1. Developing a high-quality education profession

2. Inspirational Leaders working collaboratively to raise standards

3. Strong and inclusive schools committed to excellence, equity and well-  
being

4. Robust assessment, evaluation and accountability arrangements supporting 
a self-improving system

Tudalen 161



11

Central Risks

1.1 Estyn Monitoring activity results in follow up for Powys 
(Governance and Compliance)

Description of Risk

Estyn visits result in Powys being placed in follow up / special measures or requiring further 
attention.

Background 
Powys was subject to an Estyn improvement conference in 2016 and 2017 primarily 
because the Authority had too many secondary schools in Estyn follow up. The Authority’s 
performance on key indicators and rankings has improved since then. The number of 
schools in follow up has significantly reduced. There remain challenges in the secondary 
sector in relation to resilience of governance, leadership and organisation in some schools, 
which require long term continued vigilance and maintenance. 

Objectives at Risk: All

Risk Control Measures

The risk is currently within the tolerance levels set by Joint Committee and requires no 
further action to mitigate.

Risk Scores:

Risk Stage Probability Impact Risk Score Movement

 (a) (b) (a) X (b) 

Inherent 2 4 8  

Residual 1 4 4   

Tolerance   4

Risk Owner

Ian Budd (Powys)

Tudalen 162



12

1.2 Estyn Monitoring activity results in follow up for Ceredigion 
(Governance and Compliance)

Description of Risk

Estyn visits result in Ceredigion being placed in follow up / special measures or requiring 
further attention.

Background

Objectives at Risk : All

Risk Control Measures 

Consolidation of existing strengths in processes and procedures deemed to be successful in 
the previous Estyn inspection. Many are still relevant in the new Estyn Local Authority 
Education Service Inspection Framework.

Continue work to improve quality, resilience and impact of senior and middle leadership in 
schools, particularly where recruitment has been difficult in order to improve intra and inter 
school variation.

Continue to provide high quality curriculum and leadership support for schools, in particular 
in core subject areas in specific secondary schools.

Risk Scores

Risk Stage Probability Impact Risk Score Movement

 (a) (b) (a) X (b) 

Inherent 1 4 4  

Residual 1 4 4    

Tolerance   4

Risk Owner

Meinir Ebbsworth (Ceredigion)

Tudalen 163



13

1.3 Estyn Monitoring activity results in follow up for Pembrokeshire 
(Governance and Compliance)

Description of Risk

Estyn visits result in Pembrokeshire being placed in follow up / special measures or 
requiring further attention.

Background

Pembrokeshire has had two improvement conferences undertaken by Estyn. It is 
unlikely that there will be an inspection until 12 months after last conference.

Objectives at Risk : All

Risk Control Measures 
Consolidation of existing strengths in processes and procedures deemed to be 
appropriate at improvement conferences.
Continue work to improve quality and resilience in senior and middle leadership in 
secondary schools, particularly where recruitment has been difficult, in order to 
improve outcomes. 
Continue to provide high quality curriculum and leadership support for schools

Risk Scores

Risk Stage Probability Impact Risk Score Movement

 (a) (b) (a) X (b) 

Inherent 3 4 12  

Residual 2 4 8   

Tolerance   4

Risk Owner

Kate Evan Hughes (Pembrokeshire)

Tudalen 164



14

1.4 Estyn Monitoring activity results in follow up for Carmarthenshire 
(Governance and Compliance)

Description of Risk

Estyn visits result in Carmarthenshire being placed in follow up / special measures or 
requiring further attention.

Background

Objectives at Risk : All

Risk Control Measures 
 A regular review of core services, to determine whether outcomes are being achieved 

and where potential issues may be arising. 
 Effective business function evaluation and monitoring in place as part of regular 

Directorate Team meetings with overview of risk register, financial planning, outcomes 
measurement etc. 

 Effective and constructive partnership working with schools, corporate Council 
Services, the regional Consortium and other partners who contribute to delivering 
school improvement and education services.

 Robust and honest self-evaluation, incorporating the views of a range of stakeholders 
and partners, leading to clear Business Plans identifying successes and 
challenges/areas to develop.

 Service and Business Plan development put in place in order to ensure most effective 
use of resources across services and with partners in order to achieve excellent 
outcomes for our children and young people. 

 Ensure that there is clarity in terms of vision and staff role and remit in their work 
towards achieving this vision. 

 Effective Performance reporting in place throughout the directorate. 
 Effective appointments and support and training provided to provide a high quality, 

skilled team of Senior Managers and officers.

Risk Scores

Risk Stage Probability Impact Risk Score Movement

 (a) (b) (a) X (b) 

Inherent 3 4 12  

Residual 2 4 8   

Tolerance   4

Risk Owner
Gareth Morgans (Carmarthenshire)

Tudalen 165



15

1.5 Estyn Monitoring activity results in follow up for Swansea 
(Governance and Compliance)

Description of Risk

Estyn visits result in Swansea being placed in follow up / special measures or 
requiring further attention. 

Background

Objectives at Risk : All

Risk Control Measures 
 The local authority benefits from strong leadership at all levels, strong 

partnership with schools and other key agencies and has a good track record 
of delivering strong outcomes for children and young people. 

 Self-evaluation processes are robust and clear priorities are identified in 
operational plans. Areas of underperformance are identified as early as 
possible and support and challenge put in place to secure improvements.  

 Existing monitoring processes will be further developed to ensure that key 
strategic priorities, eg foundation phase, wellbeing post 16 provision, school 
leadership, are addressed. 

 Through our ERW partnership, the local authority will continue to secure 
good standards and overall progress of learners, including specifically raising 
standards in primary schools and provision for pupils in key stage 4. 

Risk Scores

Risk Stage Probability Impact Risk Score Movement

 (a) (b) (a) X (b) 

Inherent 2 4 8  

Residual 1 4 4   

Tolerance   4

Risk Owner

Nick Williams (Swansea)

Tudalen 166



16

1.6 Estyn Monitoring activity results in follow up for Neath Port Talbot 
(Governance and Compliance)

Description of Risk

Estyn visits result in Neath Port Talbot being placed in follow up / special measures or 
requiring further attention.

Background

 NPT was inspected by Estyn in December 2017 and judged to be good in all 
inspection areas. NPT will now focus on delivering progress against the four 
recommendations made. 

Objectives at Risk : All
Risk Control Measures 

 The local authority benefits from strong leadership at all levels, strong partnership 
with schools and other key agencies and has a long, secure track record of 
delivering strong outcomes for children and young people. 

 Business planning processes have been modified to account for the four 
recommendations and progress will be scrutinised by elected members on a regular 
basis.

 Self-evaluation processes have been revised to secure improvement and to better 
inform planning processes. These will continue to be developed in order to identify 
aspects of underperformance as early as possible.  

 Existing monitoring processes will be further developed to ensure that key strategic 
priorities, eg children’s school readiness, post 16 transition, school leadership, are 
addressed. 

 Action has been taken to address the safeguarding issue identified during the 
inspection and Estyn is satisfied with the progress made in relation to this area.

 Through our ERW partnership, the local authority will continue to secure good 
standards and overall progress of learners, including specifically raising standards in 
primary schools and provision for pupils in key stage 4.

Risk Scores

Risk Stage Probability Impact Risk Score Movement

 (a) (b) (a) X (b) 

Inherent 2 4 8  

Residual 1 4 4   

Tolerance   4

Risk Owner
Aled Evans (Neath Port Talbot)

Tudalen 167



17

2. Failure to comply with Estyn Action Plan (Governance and 
Compliance)

Description of Risk

Inspection/ Visit of Region finds less than adequate progress on any recommendation thus 
resulting in further follow up activity for ERW.

Background

This risk had been identified during the last 24 months and the mitigating actions did not 
successfully reduce the likelihood of the risk. Therefore, ERW has a judgement of limited 
progress (Nov 2017) against Recommendation 1 (improvement in Schools Causing 
Concern, most notably secondaries), from its June 2016 inspection.

The risk has now been compounded by slow progress in making decisions to progress the 
Review and Reform Programme, which is cited in the 2017 Estyn Report as cause for 
possible governance improvements which could in turn impact ERW’s ability to respond to 
recommendations.

Objectives at Risk : All

Risk Control Measures 

 ERW Secondary Support Team working alongside Secondary Schools in difficulty, 
early feedback on this work is very positive.

 Schools Performance Team now meets regularly with each Principal Challenge 
Adviser individually to discuss early warning signs for schools, increasing chances of 
prevention.

 Progress in the ERW Review and Reform Programme should help mitigate this risk

Risk Scores

Risk Stage Probability Impact Risk Score Movement

 (a) (b) (a) X (b) 

Inherent 4 4 16  

Residual 3 4 12 

Tolerance   4

Risk Owner
ERW Managing Director, Lead Director and Lead Chief Executive

Tudalen 168



18

3. Failure to deliver Business Plan (Governance and Compliance)

Description of Risk

Delivery of Business Plan fails to meet the satisfaction of Welsh 
Government/WAO/Estyn.

Background

2018-19 Business Plan Approved by Welsh Government. Delays in clearance / 
delivery of funding have increased the difficulty of implication due to reduced 
timescales. 2019-20 Business Plan work will be commencing in due course, with a 
view to creating a process that fully engages key stakeholders for co-construction. 

Objectives at Risk : All

Risk Control Measures

 Effective planning by Central Team, Lead Director and Lead Chief Executive.
 Ongoing dialogue with Welsh Government and other monitoring bodies

Risk Scores

Risk Stage Probability Impact Risk Score Movement

 (a) (b) (a) X (b) 

Inherent 3 3 9  

Residual 3 3 9 

Tolerance   4

Risk Owner
Managing Director, Lead Director 

Tudalen 169



19

4. ERW Governance (Governance and Compliance)

Description of Risk

Organisational Design, Governance or Legal footing of ERW found to be ineffective at 
securing consistent improvement across all LAs by Estyn / WAO / WG / Self Evaluation, This 
then resulting in action by the inspectorate, or clawback of funds from WG. 

Background

Estyn follow up report note that the governance structure has hindered progress. December 
2017

Challenge and Review meetings with Cabinet Secretary for Education have increased in 
frequency – meetings took place in December, February, and April. 

Following an invitation from the Chair of the Joint Committee when WG raised concerns 
about financial delegation to Local Authorities and governance, WG are conducting a review 
of ERW funding arrangements. This has now been expanded into a review of all regions.

Objectives at Risk: All

Risk Control Measures
 Undertaking Review and Reform Programme – formal decision pending Feb 2019 

meeting of Joint Committee
 Meetings of Chief Execs in September – discussions progressing. Further meetings 

held in run up to Feb 2019 Joint Committee
 Geraint Rees appointed to assist 

Risk Scores

Risk Stage Probability Impact Risk Score Movement

 (a) (b) (a) X (b) 

Inherent 3 4 12  

Residual 2 4 8 

Tolerance   4

Risk Owner

Tudalen 170



20

Lead Chief Exec, Section 151 Officer, Monitoring Officer, Lead Director, Managing 
Director

Tudalen 171



21
Tudalen 172



22

5. ERW Central Team Accommodation   (Infrastructure Risk)

Description of Risk

ERW’s accommodation fails to safely house all Central Team staff, and presents 
health and safety issues. This in turn could have a detrimental effect on the service, 
and on the wellbeing of ERW staff. 

Background

As of the last Joint Committee, Lead Officers were tasked to mitigate any Health and 
Safety issues that may arise at the ERW Central Team’s current accommodation. 
The remaining risk around procurement of DDA compliant furniture/seating for staff 
has been mitigated.

Objectives at Risk: All

Risk Control Measures

 Audit of specialist furniture/seating requirements has been undertaken, 
and staff requiring specialist furniture have received the relevant items.

 Local Authorities to be contacted to source any spare equipment they 
can provide. Equipment Provided. 

Risk Scores

Risk Stage Probability Impact Risk Score Movement

 (a) (b) (a) X (b) 

Inherent 2 3 6  

Residual 1 3 3 

Tolerance   8

Risk Owner
Executive Board, Pembrokeshire County Council Chief Executive

RECOMMENDATION: That this risk be removed from the ERW Risk Register.

Tudalen 173



23

6. Data Protection (Governance and Compliance)

Description of Risk

ERW fails to comply with the Data Protection Act 2018. 

Background

Currently ERW does not have a designated Data Protection Officer which is a 
requirement of General Data Protection Regulations as of May 2018.

Objectives at Risk: All

Risk Control Measures

ERW has taken pro-active steps to prepare staff for GDPR, including awareness 
seminars at ERW Central Team Training. However, the absence of a dedicated DPO 
remains a concern.

Some of this risk is mitigated by the Local Authorities employing their own DPOs for 
schools respectively.

Executive Board 21.9.18 agreed an interim measure of the Managing Director being 
named DPO, with a view of appointing a Business and Finance Manager for ERW 
and naming them DPO once appointed and sufficiently trained. 

Risk Stage Probability Impact Risk Score Movement

 (a) (b) (a) X (b) 

Inherent 3 4 12  

Residual 2 4 8 

Tolerance   4

Risk Owner

Managing Director, Lead Chief Executive, Lead Director

Tudalen 174



24

7. ERW is judged to not provide Value for Money  (Governance and 
Compliance)

Description of Risk

Failure to ensure value for money in future years results in action from Estyn, reputational 
damage, or a reduction in grant funding.

Background

In ERW’s 2017 Estyn Report, it is stated:

“Senior leaders understand that the current organisational design constrains ERW’s ability to 
deliver value for money”

“ERW is also judged to make “satisfactory” progress only when addressing:

Recommendation 4: Refine the framework for assessing value for money so that all relevant 
costs across the six authorities are taken into account fully when set against outcome.”
 
Objectives at Risk: All

Risk Control Measures

 Comprehensive VFM Framework in place.
 In house monitoring of effectiveness; support in any identified areas of concern.
 VFM monitoring and recommendations from Internal Audit undertaken.
 Annual Governance Statement
 Proposed financial efficiencies in the new ERW Model.

Risk Scores

Risk Stage Probability Impact Risk Score Movement

 (a) (b) (a) X (b) 

Inherent 3 4 12 

Residual 2 4 8  

Tolerance   6

Risk Owner
Managing Director 

Tudalen 175



25

8. Local Authority failure to comply with Grant Regulations (Governance 
and Compliance)

Description of Risk

Individual LAs fail to comply with Grant Regulations and limited assurance given 
from other LA's to PCC, resulting in clawback of funding, 

Objectives at Risk: All

Risk Control Measures

Clear agreed financial guidance and procedures. 
 Correspondence from Section 151 Officer and Internal Audit to all LA's.
 Assurance for PCC from each LA.
 Improved communication and understanding of roles, responsibilities and 

risks.
 Training and termly finance officers meeting.

Risk Scores

Risk Stage Probability Impact Risk Score Movement

 (a) (b) (a) X (b) 

Inherent 3 4 12  

Residual 2 4 8  

Tolerance   6

Risk Owner
LA Section 151 Officers, Head of Internal Audit, 

Tudalen 176



26

Financial Risks

1. Timeliness of WG Funding (Financial Risk)

Description of Risk

WG Funding may not be timely resulting in underspend or an inability to spend at the 
end of the financial year. 

Background

Financial forward planning with contingency arrangements so that essential 
implementation is not hindered. 

Due to a significant dependence on grants and the use of ERW’s reserves, timely 
receipt of funding is a key cash flow issue. 

Other regions report that bi-monthly payments for 18-19 financial year have been on 
time. The issue surrounding receiving money from Welsh Government is now ERW’s 
ability to meet grant terms and conditions, which is represented in other risks within 
the register

Objectives at Risk: All

Risk Control Measures

 A new bi-monthly payment profile has been established with Welsh 
Government

 Financial forward planning with contingency arrangements so that essential 
implementation is not hindered. 

 Constant communication with WG to improve expectation.
 New Regional Consortia School Improvement Grant

Risk Scores

Risk Stage Probability Impact Risk Score Movement

 (a) (b) (a) X (b) 

Inherent 3 3 9  

Residual 2 3 6  

Tolerance   6

Risk Owner
Section 151 Officer, Lead Banker Authority

Tudalen 177



27

2. Real Term Cuts to school budgets (Financial Risk)

Description of Risk

Further cuts to school services and reductions of quantum in Welsh Government funding, 
which in turn have an effect on service capacity, and therefore outcomes in schools. 

Background

Financial pressures in each LA leading to cuts affecting school services. This would then 
have a further impact on capacity and willingness of schools to engage in the self-improving 
system

The EIG, which is now an element of the Regional Consortia School Improvement Grant, 
has seen an 11% cut for the 18-19 financial year. 

Local Government 19-20 budget and the Teachers Pay Award also present significant risks. 
Other risks that were noted by the ERW Headteacher Representative Board were the rise in 
teacher pensions, as well as the permanence of the new Professional Learning Funding. 

Objectives at Risk: All

Risk Control Measures

Further work with HT board to ensure clarity around expectations of HT to collaborate and 
the remuneration.

Maximising of delegated funding to schools wherever possible. The new funding stream for 
schools dedicated to Professional Learning is aimed at reducing the impact of this risk. 

Risk Scores

Risk Stage Probability Impact Risk Score Movement

 (a) (b) (a) X (b) 

Inherent 4 4 16  

Residual 4 3 12 

Tolerance   6

Risk Owner
Managing Director, Lead Director, All 6 LA Directors, Section 151 Officer, Lead Chief 
Executive. 

Tudalen 178



28

3. ERW unable to deliver National Mission (Financial Risk)

Description of Risk

ERW fails to deliver Welsh Government’s National Mission. Subsequently, WG could 
tie funding conditions to this delivery, risking grant clawback. 

Background

Currently, there are many issues that are caused by a lack of capacity to manage the 
business side of ERW.

Many of the roles have evolved with the growth of ERW with staff undertaking more 
than one role.

Staff insecurity is heightened at present as ERW, increasing the risk of insufficient 
capacity to deliver the National Mission.

It should be noted that elements of the National Mission fall outside ERW’s 
responsibility, and this risk is directed at the elements that fall inside ERW’s scope of 
responsibility.

Objectives at Risk: All

Risk Control Measures 

 ERW Review and Reform Programme

Risk Scores

Risk Stage Probability Impact Risk Score Movement

 (a) (b) (a) X (b) 

Inherent 3 3 9  

Residual 3 3 9
Tolerance   6

Risk Owner
Managing Director, 6 LA Directors, Joint Committee

Tudalen 179



29

4. Failure to comply with Grant Conditions from WG (Financial Risk)

Description of Risk

ERW fails to comply with Welsh Government Grant Conditions, resulting in the withholding 
or clawback of funding, and adversely affecting the region’s School Improvement service. 

Background

Due to the heavy reliance on grant funding, ERW’s compliance with grant conditions is key. 

The region has received two letters from WG outlining the concerns that ERW is not using its 
"Regional Grants" within the spirit of the terms and conditions. 
 
Following an invitation from the Chair of the Joint Committee when WG raised concerns 
about financial delegation to Local Authorities and governance, WG are conducting a review 
of ERW funding arrangements. This has now been extended to all 4 consortia.

ERW had received a revised Grant Offer Letter for the Regional Consortia School 
Improvement Grant which contained additional conditions which were to be met before 
funding is released for the remaining 7/12ths of funding – urgent actions were required for 
this funding to be released. The funding was subsequently released.

Objectives at Risk: All

Risk Control Measures

 Central Team and Senior Challenge Advisers commissioned to provide additional 
Business Plan Details for 2018-19

 Ongoing dialogue with Welsh Government
 Business Plan for 2019-2020 to be co-constructed in early 2019

Risk Scores

Risk Stage Probability Impact Risk Score Movement

 (a) (b) (a) X (b) 

Inherent 4 4 16 

Residual 2 4 8 

Tolerance   6

Risk Owner
Lead Director, Managing Director, Lead Chief Executive, Section 151 Officer

Tudalen 180



30
Tudalen 181



31

ERW JOINT COMMITTEE 
   AGENDA ITEM NO 

    8.2.19

Supporting / Additional information from ERW Executive Board

Supporting / Additional Information from ERW Advisory Board

Tudalen 182



CYD-BWYLLGOR ERW 
8 CHWEFROR 2019

SWYDDOGAETHIAU ARWEINIOL / CLG
Y Pwrpas:    

I gadarnhau dosbarthiant presennol swyddogaethau a CLG Awdurdodau Arweiniol.

YR ARGYMHELLION / PENDERFYNIADAU ALLWEDDOL SYDD EU HANGEN:
1. Nodi’r swyddogaethau o’r Awdurdodau Arweiniol, fel nodwyd yng Nghytundeb 

Cyfreithiol 2014 (Tabl 1 – colofn A)

2. Cadarnhau’r dyraniad presennol o swyddogaethau Awdurdodau Arweiniol, lle bu 
newidiadau (Tabl 1 – colofn B), yn enwedig:
 Contractau a Chaffael – Cyngor Sir Benfro
 Adnoddau Dynol – Cyngor Sir Benfro

3. Cadarnhau’r dyraniad presennol o swyddogaethau ychwanegol sydd o dan amodau 
CLG (Tabl 2 – Colofn B)

Y RHESYMAU: 
1. Y Cydbwyllgor sy’n gyfrifol am apwyntio’r Awdurdod Arweiniol am bob un o’r 

swyddogaethau arweiniol.

2. Ers cytundeb 2014, gwelwyd newid mewn rhai swyddogaethau Awdurdodau Arweiniol, 
heb benderfyniadau cyfatebol gan y Cyd-Bwyllgor i gymeradwyo’r newidiadau yma’n 
swyddogol.

3. Mae rhai swyddogaethau ychwanegol wedi esblygu, gan arwain at CLG rhwng ERW a 
rhoi Awdurdodau Lleol, heb benderfyniadau cyfatebol gan y CydBwyllgor i’w 
cymeradwyo.

Awdur yr Adroddiad:

Elin Prysor

Swydd:

Sywddog Monitro ERW

Rhif Ffon

E: bost

Tudalen 183

Eitem Rhif  9



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

ERW JOINT COMMITTEE

8TH FEBRUARY 2019

LEAD FUNCTIONS/SLAS
BRIEF SUMMARY OF PURPOSE OF REPORT

 To confirm and regularise the current lead functions
 To regularise changes in  functions of lead authorities
 To regularise the current distribution of additional functions subject to SLAs between 

ERW and respective Authorities.

The current arrangements are set out in Appendix 1.
1) Functions of the Lead Authorities, as set out in the 2014 Legal Agreement are shown in 

Table 1 –column A.
The Communications function was originally held by Swansea City & County Council. 
This subsequently changed to Carmarthenshire County council. The function is 
currently vacant.

 
2) The current allocation of Lead Authority functions are shown in Table 1-column B.

Changes include:
 Contracts and Procurement –from Powys County Council to Pembrokeshire County 

Council;
 Human Resources from Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council and 

Pembrokeshire County Council.

3) Confirm the current allocation of additional functions subject to SLA arrangements 
(Table 2-Column B). These include :
 Scrutiny-Swansea
 Internal Audit- Pembrokeshire County Council
 ICT- Pembrokeshire County council

The proposals are intended to reflect and regularise the current arrangements.
The proposals are not intended to affect the ability of any authority to submit expressions of 
interest in respect of changes in lead or additional functions, and/or subsequent changes in 
lead functions/SLAs.

 ATTACHED Appendix 1-Table 1 & 2

Tudalen 184



IMPLICATIONS

Policy, Crime & 
Disorder and 
Equalities

Legal Finance Risk Management Issues Staffing Implications

NONE YES YES YES NONE

1. Legal 
That the current arrangements will not reflect the Legal Agreement.
That there will be no authorisation for subsequent lead function changes and/or granting of 
SLAs currently in existence.

2. Finance
There are financial implications to relevant authorities if SLAs are revoked

3. Risk Management
To reflect the status quo

CONSULTATIONS

N/A

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:
THERE ARE NONE

Tudalen 185



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Appendix 1

Table 2 
Additional Functions/ 
Roles 

Column A Column B SLA 
Y/N 

Scrutiny n/a Swansea County Council Y 
Internal Audit n/a Pembrokeshire County Council Y
ICT n/a Pembrokeshire County Council Y

 

Table 1
Lead Functions Column A 

Lead Authority Legal 
Agreement 2014

Column B  
Lead Authority  current 
allocations
08/02/2019

SLA 
(Y/N)

Management of 
Central Team 

Pembrokeshire County Council  Pembrokeshire County Council Y

Administration of Joint 
Committee & 
Executive board

Carmarthenshire County Council Carmarthenshire County 
Council 

Y 

Legal Services Ceredigion County Council Ceredigion County Council N 
Monitoring Officer 
Services 

Ceredigion County Council Ceredigion County Council N

Contracts & 
Procurement 

Powys County Council Pembrokeshire County 
Council 

Y 

Human Resources Neath Port Talbot Council Pembrokeshire County 
Council 

Y 

Finance 
S151

Pembrokeshire County Council  
Pembrokeshire County Council

Pembrokeshire County Council  
Pembrokeshire County Council

Y 
N

Communications Swansea County Council Vacant Y 

Tudalen 187



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



CYD-BWYLLGOR ERW 
8 CHWEFROR 2019

CYNNIG AR ADOLYGU AC ADNEWYDDU ERW

Y Pwrpas:    
I gyflwyno i’r Cydbwyllgor y cynnig ar gyfer swyddogaeth a strwythur ERW am y dyfodol

YR ARGYMHELLION / PENDERFYNIADAU ALLWEDDOL SYDD EU HANGEN:

I’r Cyd-Bwyllgor gytuno’r cynnig

Y RHESYMAU: 

Er mwyn i’r broses o Adolygu ac Adnewyddu ERW fynd ymlaen

Awdur yr Adroddiad:

Geraint Rees

Swydd:

RG Dros Dro

Rhif Ffon 01267 24 5640

E: bost
Geraint.rees@erw.org.uk

Tudalen 189

Eitem Rhif  10



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
ERW JOINT COMMITTEE

8TH FEBRUARY 2019

ERW REVIEW AND REFORM PROPOSALS

BRIEF SUMMARY OF PURPOSE OF REPORT

As a result of extensive discussions with various stakeholders, the attached report discusses 
the proposal for the future model of ERW. 

Further financial information is available in the 2019-2020 Budget item pertaining to the 
financial model that is tied to this proposal. 

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? YES

Tudalen 190



IMPLICATIONS

Policy, Crime & 
Disorder and 
Equalities

Legal Finance Risk Management Issues Staffing Implications

NONE NONE NONE NONE YES

1. Staffing Implications

The proposals outline staffing structures for the new version of ERW

CONSULTATIONS

N/A

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:
THERE ARE NONE

Tudalen 191



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



1

Fersiwn 29/1/2019

Consortiwm ERW

Cadarnhau gweledigaeth ar gyfer y 
gwasanaeth gwella ysgolion rhanbarthol 

Ionawr 2019

Dyddiad awduro:   Ionawr 2019

Awdur yr Adroddiad:  Geraint Rees

Dyddiad y cyfarfod i ystyried yr adroddiad: Cyd-bwyllgor, Chwefror 2019

CYNNWYS

1.0 Diben yr adroddiad

2.0 Cefndir

3.0 Nodau ERW

4.0 Y Bartneriaeth Leol/Ranbarthol ar gyfer Gwella Ysgolion mewn 
ffordd effeithiol: y model cyflwyno

5.0 Strwythur Staffio 

6.0 Model Atebolrwydd a Llywodraethu

7.0 Model Ariannol

Tudalen 193



2

1.0 Diben yr adroddiad

Diben yr adroddiad hwn yw cynnig rhesymeg glir a strwythur arfaethedig ar gyfer 
partneriaeth ranbarthol wedi'i diwygio i gyflwyno gwaith gwella ysgolion ar draws 
ERW.  Trafodwyd yn helaeth gydag arweinwyr adrannau addysg y 6 awdurdod ac 
ymgysylltwyd yn eang â'r gymuned penaethiaid ar draws y rhanbarth.    Bwriedir i ERW 
ar ei newydd wedd ddarparu eglurder am rolau rhwng y consortiwm rhanbarthol, yr 
awdurdodau lleol, cydweithio ar draws 2 awdurdod lleol neu fwy ac ysgolion eu hunain.  

Mae'n rhaid i bartneriaeth ERW aeddfed gyflwyno model effeithiol o system sy'n 
hunanwella - sef system lle mae pob rhan ohoni'n deall beth sy’n cynrychioli 
rhagoriaeth, yn gallu adnabod ei chryfderau a'i gwendidau ei hun yn effeithiol, ac yn 
gallu rhannu ei chryfderau'n hyderus gan chwilio heb ofn am yr atebion i'r gwendidau.   
Dylai'r egwyddorion hyn fod yn berthnasol i ysgolion, i grwpiau o ysgolion ac i 
awdurdodau lleol.

Dylid tybio bod penderfyniadau a wneir ar ôl ystyried yr adroddiad hwn yn gamau 
pwysig tuag at greu system o'r fath - gyda ffocws clir ar hunanwella drwy gydweithio 
ym meysydd cynllunio'r cwricwlwm, dysgu proffesiynol a datblygu arweinyddiaeth 
ynghyd â dwysáu gwaith rhwng awdurdodau i ategu'r nodau hyn a darparu cymorth a 
her fwy cyson i ysgolion ar y daith honno.  

Ni ddylid gweld gweithrediad argymhellion y ddogfen hon fel diwedd y daith 
rhanbarthol.  Dylid disgwyl adolygiad blynyddol o bwrpasedd y corff rhanbarthol.   Ar 
ben hyn, argymhellir gwerthusiad llawn allanol bob 5 mlynedd o bwrpasedd y sefyldiad, 
er mwyn i’r cyd-bwyllgor allu ystyried camau nesaf i’r rhanbarth. 

2.0 Cefndir

Mae diddordeb rhyngwladol sylweddol yn yr hyn sy'n digwydd yng Nghymru wrth iddi 
fynd ati i ddiwygio'i system addysg ysgolion yn ei chyfanrwydd.    Nod Cenhadaeth ein 
Cenedl ar gyfer addysg yng Nghymru yw datblygu:

 Cwricwlwm newydd ar gyfer pob dysgwr yng Nghymru
 Proffesiwn addysg o safon uchel
 Arweinwyr sy’n ysbrydoli ac sy’n cydweithio i godi safonau
 Ysgolion cryf a chynhwysol sydd wedi ymrwymo i sicrhau rhagoriaeth, tegwch a lles
 Trefniadau asesu, gwerthuso ac atebolrwydd cadarn i ategu system hunanwella

Mae angen anorfod am wasanaeth rhanbarthol effeithiol.   Mae graddfa cenhadaeth ein 
cenedl yn mynnu lefelau nas gwelwyd mo'u tebyg o'r blaen o ran paratoi'r cwricwlwm 
newydd, dysgu proffesiynol ar gyfer athrawon a datblygiad arweinyddiaeth ar gyfer 
arweinwyr y presennol a'r dyfodol.  Mae'r bont sydd ei hangen rhwng ein prifysgolion 
a'n hysgolion yn hanfodol, er mwyn sicrhau bod partneriaeth ym maes addysg yng 
Nghymru sydd wedi'i cholli'n cael ei hailadeiladu ar fyrder.   Mae pob athro ac athrawes 
ar draws y rhanbarth yn haeddu cael cymorth wrth baratoi ar gyfer y cwricwlwm 
newydd, ac mae gan arweinwyr ysgol (gan gynnwys llywodraethwyr) hawl i wybod y 
caiff eu hysgolion gymorth a her sy'n gyson ag ysgolion eraill mewn amgylchiadau 
tebyg, a hynny gan ddefnyddio'r dulliau gorau posibl.   Ar hyn o bryd, nid yw ERW 
mewn sefyllfa dda i gefnogi'r gwaith diwygio, ond bydd ERW ar ei newydd wedd yn 
gallu cyflawni'r rhwymedigaethau hyn a chwarae rhan llawnach wrth ddatblygu addysg 
ar draws Gorllewin a Chanolbarth Cymru.   Gellir cyflawni hyn mewn modd effeithiol ac 
effeithlon tra'n rhyddhau mwy o arian i ysgolion.  

Tudalen 194



3

Mae'r dull gweithredu rhanbarthol sydd ar waith ar draws ERW yn doredig ar hyn o 
bryd. Mae angen ail-greu perthnasau, diffinio cwmpas a diben ar gyfer y sefydliad, 
diffinio strwythurau staffio canolog clir, ac adnabod modelau ariannol, atebolrwydd a 
llywodraethu cydlynol.     Mae angen rhoi strwythurau a diwylliannau gweithio yn eu lle 
i ategu'r gwaith o gyflwyno Cenhadaeth ein Cenedl yn ein holl ysgolion neu bydd 
dysgwyr ac athrawon yn rhanbarth ERW o dan anfantais wrth iddynt weithio i gyflwyno 
cwricwlwm diwygiedig.    

Yn gonfensiynol mae gwasanaethau gwella ysgolion yn darparu swyddogaethau megis:

- Y rôl o fonitro a chasglu hysbysrwydd er mwyn sicrhau y rhoddir cymorth a her briodol 
i ysgolion sydd wedyn yn atebol am eu perfformiad eu hunain.

- Cefnogi creu capasiti ymysg staff ysgol drwy hwyluso dysgu proffesiynol a datblygu 
arweinyddiaeth effeithiol.

- Creu gwybodaeth sefydliadol ar draws y system i ategu cydweithrediadau ar draws 
ysgolion eu hunain, Awdurdodau Lleol, Addysg Uwch,  Llywodraeth Cymru a 
phartneriaid eraill er mwyn atgyfnerthu ysgolion.

- Brocera cymorth i'w ddarparu i unigolion neu sefydliadau pan fydd eu perfformiad yn 
peri pryder.

O'n sefyllfa bresennol, dylem gynllunio system wahanol.  Yn y system honno, bydd 
ysgolion yn cymryd mwy o gyfrifoldeb am eu perfformiad eu hunain a pherfformiad ei 
gilydd, a dylid darparu'r adnoddau a'r cymorth iddynt er mwyn iddynt gyflawni hynny.    
Ar draws Cymru (ac o fewn ERW) mae enghreifftiau rhagorol lle mae ysgolion yn 
cefnogi ei gilydd i ddatrys anawsterau, gan rannu capasiti ac arfer effeithiol er budd 
dysgwyr y tu hwnt i glwydi eu hysgolion eu hunain.    Dylai ERW ar ei newydd wedd 
wreiddio uchelgais o'r fath yn ei genhadaeth, yng nghyd-destun partneriaeth gliriach 
rhwng y lleol a'r rhanbarthol.  

3.0 Nodau ERW

Partneriaeth, cydweithredu, ymddiriedaeth ac atebolrwydd a rennir fydd nodweddion 
allweddol system addysg Cymru'r dyfodol.   Bydd athrawon yn methu os mai ceisio 
datblygu'r cwricwlwm newydd ar wahân a wnânt. Mae'n rhaid i ni hyrwyddo unedau 
cydweithredol sy'n gallu rhannu o fewn ac ar draws unedau o'r fath ac mae'n bwysig 
bod awdurdodau lleol yn modelu ymddygiad o'r fath.   

Er mwyn cyflawni'r nodau hynny awgrymir bod ERW yn gosod nodau uchelgeisiol iddo 
ef ei hun fel a ganlyn:

Partneriaeth ranbarthol yw ERW sydd wedi'i chreu i hyrwyddo rhagoriaeth ym 
mhob ysgol drwy system hunanwella.  Cyflawnir hyn drwy gynllunio cydweithredol 
ar gyfer y cwricwlwm newydd a darparu dysgu proffesiynol a chyfleoedd 
arweinyddiaeth sy'n gallu datblygu pob un fel unigolion, dysgwyr, dinasyddion a 
chyfranwyr.

Tudalen 195



4

Mae'n rhaid i bartneriaeth ERW ymdrechu i gael ei chydnabod fel partneriaeth o 
ragoriaeth,  a arweinir gan arbenigwyr lefel uchel yn rhanbarthol, sy'n gallu darparu 
arweinyddiaeth a chymorth ar gyfer grwpiau lleol, grwpiau hwb a grwpiau isranbarthol.  

O ran cyflwyno, y prif gonglfeini fydd gweld ysgolion yn gweithio mewn clystyrau, 
dulliau cydlynu effeithiol i awdurdodau lleol a Hybiau a sicrwydd ansawdd ar draws y 
rhanbarth.

Dylai staff ERW allu gweithio ar draws y grwpiau isranbarthol a chyda sefydliadau 
cenedlaethol a rhanbarthol eraill a Sefydliadau Addysg Uwch gan ddod â'r dysgu 
rhyngwladol gorau i'n rhanbarth er mwyn dylanwadu'n gadarnhaol ar ein hathrawon 
a'n harweinwyr drwy ddarparu arweinyddiaeth effeithiol i ddysgu proffesiynol.  Bydd 
yn bwysig sicrhau cysondeb mynediad i ddysgu proffesiynol o safon uchel a chyfleoedd i 
ddatblygu'r cwricwlwm newydd, yn ogystal â chysondeb o ran cymorth a her i ysgolion 
a chymorth effeithiol i ysgolion sy'n destun pryder.  

Beth a olygir wrth system hunanwella?  

System hunanwella yw system lle mae gan arweinwyr ac athrawon ysgol y sgiliau, y 
capasiti a'r crebwyll i ddysgu'n barhaus a gwella'u harfer fel bod pob plentyn yn 
cyflawni ei botensial a'i fod yn barod am fywyd mewn byd cynyddol gymhleth. 

Dros y blynyddoedd diwethaf mae ysgolion wedi dod yn well am rannu eu harfer gorau 
er budd pob dysgwr. Yn ein system hunanwella mae angen i bob gweithiwr proffesiynol 
a sefydliad ddod yn ymwybodol o'i gryfderau a'i feysydd gwella ei hun, a chyda'r 
wybodaeth hon dylai chwilio am gymorth er gwella'u hunain a chynnig cymorth i eraill 
wella.  

Dylai ERW ddisgwyl yn rhesymol bod pob rhan o'r system addysg yn dod yn 
gyfranogwyr yn y model hwn, fel bod cryfderau'n cael eu rhannu ar draws y system, a 
bod modd mynd i'r afael â meysydd i'w gwella drwy ymgysylltiad a chymorth 
cymheiriaid.    Drwy gyflawni hyn byddwn yn sicrhau bod ein gweithwyr proffesiynol 
addysg yn gallu ffynnu mewn amgylchedd cefnogol a chydweithredol i godi safonau a 
sicrhau bod pob person ifanc yn gallu cyflawni ei botensial.

4.0  MAE RHAN 4 YN DDRAFFT CYNNAR SYDD YN DESTUN GWAITH PELLACH AR Y 
CYD RHWNG STAFF ERW, Y 6 AWDURDOD AC ARWEINWYR YSGOLION

Gweithio Rhanbarthol:  Gwaith cydweithredol

Nodau arfaethedig ERW fydd:  Partneriaeth ranbarthol yw ERW sydd wedi'i chreu i 
hyrwyddo rhagoriaeth ym mhob ysgol drwy system hunanwella.  Cyflawnir hyn 
drwy gynllunio cydweithredol ar gyfer y cwricwlwm newydd a darparu dysgu 
proffesiynol a chyfleoedd arweinyddiaeth sy'n gallu datblygu pob un fel unigolion, 
dysgwyr, dinasyddion a chyfranwyr.

Tudalen 196



5

Er mwyn gweireddu’r nodau hyn, mae’n hanfodol fod dealltwriaeth eglur o 
gyfrifoldebau a gwaith pob rhan o’r bartneriaeth.   Mae’r tabl isod sydd yn seiliedig ar 
drafodaeth gychwynnol am bwrpas y bartheriaeth rhanbarthol yn cynnig crynodeb o 
rolau ysgolion, yr Awdurdodau Lleol a’r rhanbarth, o ran gwireddu Cenhadaeth ein 
Cenedl.  Bydd angen cadw cyd-bwysedd rhwng yr hyn y gellir ei wneud ar y cyd a 
chyfrifoldeb statudol yr Awdurdodau Lleol, a disgwyliadau dydd i ddydd ysgolion.  

Yn y pendraw, mae system hunanwella yn golygu fod angen i ysgolion a grwpiau o 
ysgolion feddu ar yr adnoddau a’r capasiti i weithredu transwidiad y cwricwlwm.  

TABL DRAFFT – I'W DDATBLYGU'N BELLACH AR Y CYD AG YMARFERWYR 
RHANBARTHOL, AWDURDODAU LLEOL AC YSGOLION

Cynllunio i gyflwyno cwricwlwm newydd, darparu dysgu proffesiynol a 
datblygu arweinyddiaeth ysbrydoledig

Bydd y Rhanbarth yn: Bydd yr Awdurdodau 
Lleol yn:

Bydd Ysgolion yn:

 Mynd ati i 
ymgysylltu â 
Llywodraeth 

Cymru, y 
rhanbarthau eraill, 
sefydliadau addysg 

uwch a'r 
awdurdodau lleol i 

ddatblygu a chyfuno 
gwybodaeth am y 

daith ddiwygio 
genedlaethol, ac 

yna'n cyfleu 
hynny'n eglur i bob 

partner.

 Sicrhau bod pob 
gweithiwr 

proffesiynol 
wrthi'n cymryd 

rhan mewn 
diwygio addysgol, 

a hynny trwy 
ymgysylltu 
pendant ag 

ysgolion, 
awdurdodau 

eraill a'r 
rhanbarth. Bydd 
hefyd yn sicrhau 
bod y gwaith o 

ddatblygu'r 
cwricwlwm yn 

cael ei osod mewn 
cyd-destun lleol a 
chenedlaethol gan 
alluogi ysgolion i 
ddeall gofynion 
addysg bellach, 
addysg uwch a'r 

byd gwaith.

 Ymgysylltu ag 
ysgolion eraill a 

phartneriaid 
allweddol i alluogi eu 

staff i fod yn 
gyfranogwyr 

gweithgar mewn 
diwygio addysgol. 
Byddant hefyd yn 
arwain y gwaith o 

ddatblygu a 
gweithredu'r 

cwricwlwm er mwyn 
cyflawni pedwar 
diben diwygio'r 

cwricwlwm.

 Bod yn onest ac yn 
agored wrth 

 Cefnogi diwylliant 
o hunanarfarnu 

 Bod yn onest ac yn 
agored yn eu 

Tudalen 197



6

hunanarfarnu fel 
bod yna eglurder 

ynghylch cryfderau 
a gwendidau.

gonest ar gyfer 
gwelliant, gan 

ddefnyddio 
gwybodaeth leol i 

gynorthwyo 
ysgolion i ddod yn 
bartneriaid llawn 

mewn system 
hunanwella.

hunanarfarniadau, ac 
yn gweithredu ar y 

canfyddiadau hynny, 
er mwyn sicrhau 

gwelliant a bod yn 
glir o ran lle y gallant 
ddarparu cymorth a'i 

gael.

 Gweithio gyda 
phartneriaid 
allweddol i 
ddatblygu'r 

cwricwlwm, gan 
gyfathrebu'n glir y 
naratif sy'n dod i'r 

amlwg, gan 
gynnwys cerrig 

milltir y cwricwlwm 
newydd.

 Sicrhau bod staff 
awdurdodau lleol 

a staff 
rhanbarthol yn 

cydweithio'n 
effeithiol er mwyn 

sicrhau bod 
ysgolion yn cael 

eu cefnogi'n 
briodol i gyflawni 
eu cerrig milltir 

mewn perthynas 
â'r cwricwlwm 
newydd.  Bydd 

hefyd yn 
comisiynu 
cymorth i 

ysgolion yn ôl y 
gofyn ac mewn 

cytundeb ag 
uwch-arweinwyr 

ysgolion.

• Ymrwymo i gyflawni 
cerrig milltir wrth iddynt 

baratoi ar gyfer 
gweithredu'r cwricwlwm 
newydd ac yn ymrwymo i 
waith clwstwr er mwyn 

sicrhau parhad a dilyniant 
wrth gyflwyno'r cwricwlwm.

 Sicrhau bod yna 
gynnig amrywiol a 

hygyrch i bob 
ymarferydd yn y 

rhanbarth i 
ddatblygu ei sgiliau 

addysgu ac 
arweinyddiaeth. 

Bydd hyn yn cefnogi 
gwelliant parhaus 

mewn ysgolion 
ynghyd â'r gallu i 
arwain, a hynny'n 

seiliedig ar 
egwyddorion y 

system hunanwella 

 Datblygu gallu yn 
eu sefydliadau eu 
hunain er mwyn 

hwyluso gwelliant 
parhaus, modelu 
egwyddorion y 

system 
hunanwella a 
sefydliadau 

dysgu.

• Ymrwymo i ddysgu 
proffesiynol gan 

ddefnyddio'r Safonau 
Addysgu ac Arweinyddiaeth 

Proffesiynol a'r Model 
Ysgolion fel Sefydliadau sy'n 

Dysgu i wella ansawdd y 
ddarpariaeth ac i ddatblygu 

gallu at y dyfodol.

Tudalen 198



7

yn ogystal â 
datblygu ysgolion 

fel sefydliadau sy'n 
dysgu.

 Ymgysylltu â'r 
sector Addysg Uwch 

ac eraill er mwyn 
hwyluso'r gwaith o 

gynhyrchu a rhannu 
ymchwil addysg i 

lywio arfer a 
chynhyrchu dulliau 

sy'n galluogi 
athrawon a 
gweithwyr 

proffesiynol gwella 
ysgolion i fod yn 

bartneriaid mewn 
ymchwil.

 Sicrhau bod 
ymchwil 

berthnasol yn 
llywio dulliau 

gwella ysgolion 
yn lleol ac yn 

rhanbarthol, ac yn 
sicrhau bod 
ymarferwyr 

gwella ysgolion 
lleol yn cael yr 

holl wybodaeth 
am ymchwil.

• Ymrwymo i 
ddatblygu gallu'r ysgol fel un 

sy'n defnyddio ymchwil ac 
fel partner mewn ymchwil.

 Hwyluso'r gwaith o 
ddatblygu'r 

cwricwlwm newydd 
a chyfleoedd dysgu 

ac arwain 
proffesiynol fel eu 

bod yn ymgorffori'r 
egwyddor o 

ysgolion cynhwysol 
sydd wedi 

ymrwymo i les pob 
dysgwr.

 Datblygu ac yn 
cydlynu 

gwasanaethau 
lleol i gefnogi 

ysgolion gyda'u 
huchelgais i fod 
yn gefnogwyr 
cynhwysol ac 
effeithiol o les 

dysgwyr.

 Ymrwymo i 
ddatblygu'r 

cwricwlwm newydd 
a chyfleoedd dysgu 
proffesiynol, fel eu 
bod yn ymgorffori 

egwyddorion 
ysgolion cynhwysol 

sydd wedi ymrwymo 
i les pob dysgwr ac 

aelod o staff.

 Hyrwyddo ac yn 
creu strwythurau ar 

gyfer ymgysylltu 
effeithiol â 

chyfoedion a 
rhannu arfer 

effeithiol drwyddi 
draw.

 Hyrwyddo 
egwyddorion 
ymgysylltu â 

chyfoedion ac yn 
mynd ati i annog y 

gwaith o rannu 
arfer effeithiol 
drwyddi draw. 
Bydd hefyd yn 

ymrwymo i 
broses adolygu 

cyfoedion 
CCAC/CLlLC.

 Cymryd rhan mewn 
gweithgareddau 

ymgysylltu â 
chyfoedion ac yn 

hwyluso'r gwaith o 
rannu arfer effeithiol 

drwyddi draw.

Tudalen 199



8

 Darparu cymorth 
penodol er mwyn 
datblygu Meysydd 

Dysgu a Phrofiad yn 
ogystal â 

Datganiadau o'r 
Hyn sy'n Bwysig, a 

hynny mewn 
clystyrau ac ar gyfer 

ysgolion unigol. 
Bydd yn gwneud 

hyn trwy 
drafodaeth ag 

awdurdodau lleol ac 
uwch-arweinwyr 

ysgolion. Bydd 
hefyd yn cefnogi'r 

gwaith o 
asesu/cymedroli 
disgyblion mewn 

perthynas â'r 
cwricwlwm 

newydd.

 Cefnogi'r agenda i 
ddiwygio'r 

cwricwlwm ac yn 
dwyn y 

consortiwm a'r 
ysgolion i gyfrif 

am ei gweithredu.
Bydd hefyd yn 

adrodd i aelodau 
etholedig ar y 

gwaith o 
ddiwygio a 

gweithredu'r 
cwricwlwm, ac yn 
hwyluso'r broses 

o graffu ar 
gynnydd 

disgyblion.

Adrodd i gyrff llywodraethu 
ar y gwaith o ddiwygio a 

gweithredu'r cwricwlwm, ac 
yn hwyluso'r broses o graffu 

ar gynnydd disgyblion.

 Hwyluso'r broses o 
nodi a rhannu arfer 

effeithiol.

 Hwyluso'r broses 
o nodi a rhannu 
arfer effeithiol.

 Hwyluso'r broses o 
nodi a rhannu arfer 

effeithiol.

Gweithgaredd Craidd a chomisiynu ychwanegol

Mae prif waith ERW o ran paratoi at y cwricwlwm newydd, adeiladu capasiti 
proffesiynol a datblygu arweinyddion ysgolion ar draws y rhanbarth yn mynd i fynd 
rhagddo yn ddyddiol o fewn partneriaeth gydlynnus y chwech awdurdod.   Dylai’r 
cynllun busnes amlinellu sut y cyflawnir hyn fel partneriaeth er mwyn diogelu 
cydraddoldeb mynediad a chefnogaeth ar draws y rhanbarth.  

Bydd cyfnodau hefyd pan gall y bartneriaeth ddarparu gwasanaethau penodol 
ychwanegol i ddiwallu anghenion ysgolion neu awdurdodau.  Tra bydd ERW yn cynnal 
staff canolog cyfyngedig, bydd natur y system hunan-wella ac ymrwymiad pawb i’r 
bartneriaeth yn gallu sicrhau fod staff y corff rhanbarthol, yr awdurdodau lleol ac, yn 
fwyaf allweddol, staff ysgolion ar gael i’w comisiynu yn y dyfodol i gynnig gwasanaethau 
ychwanegol.  Gellir hefyd caffael gwasanaethau gan bartneriaid eraill, pan fydd angen.  

Awgrymir y dylai’r model ariannol blynyddol gynnwys swm wedi ei gadw a fydd ar gael 
i weithredu’n ychwanegol at waith arferol y rhanbarth, yn cynnig diogelwch i’r ALlau 
fod modd ymateb yn amserol i anghenion annisgwyl.    Dylai tim canolog ERW a’r 
cyfarwyddwyr trwy eu hymwneud proffesiynol  adnabod anghenion sy’n codi, ac o fewn 

Tudalen 200



9

yr adnoddau sydd ar gael awgrymu datrysiadau fel bo’r angen.    Dylai’r ALlau gytuno yn 
ystod y cylch cynllunio busnes beth fydd yr adnodd wrth gefn, a dylid sicrhau cytundeb 
ffurfiol am y broses o ofyn am gefnogaeth a rhyddhau’r adnoddau i’w sicrhau.    

Cysylltiadau ag Addysg Uwch

Mae 3 Sefydliad Addysg Uwch yn y rhanbarth, ac mae gan bob un ohonynt ddiddordeb 
brwd ym maes addysg ysgolion.    ERW ddylai fod yn arwain y gad wrth ymgysylltu â'r 
SAUau hyn fel y dônt yn bartneriaid rhagweithiol wrth godi cyfalaf proffesiynol 
sefydliadol ac unigol mewn ysgolion, drwy ddarparu cyfleoedd ymchwil, dysgu 
proffesiynol ac achredu (lle y bo'n briodol).   Mae'r gwaith ar droed ar hyn o bryd, a 
dylai droi'n faes gwaith blaenoriaeth i ERW ar ei newydd wedd.  Gallai'r SAUau hynny 
hefyd droi'n bartneriaid yn y prosesau gwerthuso a gwella ar gyfer ysgolion yn ogystal â 
bod yn bartneriaid dysgu proffesiynol ar gyfer y rhanbarth.  

5.0          Strwythur Staffio

Mae'r strwythurau staffio a amlinellir isod yn darparu sail gadarn ar gyfer Gwasanaeth 
Gwella Ysgolion sy'n gydlynol, yn effeithlon ac yn effeithiol.   Diben yr holl swyddi 
rhanbarthol fydd sicrhau'r deilliannau gorau i ddysgwyr drwy gynllunio effeithiol ar 
gyfer y cwricwlwm newydd, dysgu proffesiynol a datblygu arweinyddiaeth ar gyfer staff 
ysgolion, a hynny yng nghyd-destun system sy'n hunanwella.  Bydd y rhan fwyaf o'r 
swyddi gwella ysgolion yn rhai lleol, gyda'r gwaith cyflwyno'n digwydd fwyfwy ar 
draws awdurdodau.    Bydd sicrhau systemau rheoli perfformiad effeithiol yn allweddol 
i’r trefniant rhanbarthol.  

Staff a Gyflogir yn Rhanbarthol 

O dan arweinyddiaeth Rheolwr-gyfarwyddwr, gall cyfeiriad strategol gael ei ddarparu 
gan Dîm Strategol Rhanbarthol a gyflogir yn ganolog.    

Dylai'r uwch dîm gynnwys 5 unigolyn i weithio gyda'r Rheolwr-gyfarwyddwr - dylai 3 
ohonynt ddod â phrofiad o arweinyddiaeth hynod lwyddiannus, naill ail ym maes 
prifathrawiaeth neu uwch swyddi awdurdod lleol/gwella ysgolion rhanbarthol yn y 
meysydd canlynol:

 Arweinydd Addysg Gynradd (secondiad o 3 blynedd neu'n barhaol ar Soulbury)
 Arweinydd Addysg Uwchradd (secondiad o 3 blynedd neu'n barhaol ar Soulbury)
 Arweinydd Ysgolion Arbennig ac Addysg mewn Lleoliadau Amgen (swydd ran-amser, 

secondiad 3 blynedd neu'n barhaol ar Soulbury)

Byddant yn gallu darparu arweinyddiaeth arbenigol ar draws y rhanbarth a chefnogi 
prosesau’n ymwneud ag atebolrwydd, gan feithrin y system hunanwella, sicrhau 
cynllunio busnes rhanbarthol effeithiol, cadw trosolwg ar brosiectau, alinio dulliau 
gweithredu, rhyngwyneb gyda phartneriaid arwyddocaol, ymgysylltu â'r proffesiwn, a 
chyfrifoldebau strategol eraill y mae angen eu cadarnhau cyn cyflwyno'r model.  

Tudalen 201



10

Yn ogystal â'r 3 arweinydd sector, dylai fod dau arweinydd arbenigol, y naill i arwain ar 
Ddysgu Proffesiynol ac Arweinyddiaeth ar draws y rhanbarth a'r llall i arwain ar 
Ddiwygio'r Cwricwlwm ac Arloesedd.  

 Arweinydd Dysgu Proffesiynol gyda thîm a fydd yn cynnwys
 Pennaeth Arweinyddiaeth, cymorth ar gyfer arweinyddiaeth ac 
 Arweinydd Addysg Gychwynnol Athrawon, Ymchwil Addysg a Sefydlu
 At hynny, bydd disgwyl i'r timau a amlinellir isod ar gyfer cymorth uwchradd, cymorth 

pwnc ac arweinwyr y Meysydd Dysgu a Phrofiad (MDPh) weithio gyda'r Arweinydd 
Dysgu Proffesiynol i sefydlu cynnig dysgu proffesiynol llawn ar draws y rhanbarth, gan 
weithio gydag athrawon ac ysgolion hynod effeithiol i ategu twf y system hunanwella. 

 Arweinydd Diwygio'r Cwricwlwm ac Arloesi (swydd barhaol Soulbury) a fydd yn 
goruchwylio tîm a fydd yn cynnwys tîm arbenigol Uwchradd ar draws y Meysydd Dysgu 
a Phrofiad ac arweinwyr pwnc craidd a MDPh presennol a fydd yn gweithio ar draws y 
rhanbarth gydag ysgolion i ddatblygu'r cwricwlwm newydd. Mae angen cymorth 
unigryw mewn 3 maes oherwydd graddfa'r newid a ragwelir i'w priod barthau, a'r 
angen am ymgysylltiad parhaus ar lefel genedlaethol i sicrhau'r cynnydd gorau ar gyfer 
y diwygiadau.  Y meysydd hyn yw'r Gymraeg, dysgu digidol a lles a chynhwysiant 
disgyblion.   Cynigir y dylid sefydlu swydd strategol ym mhob un o'r parthau hynny.  

 Arweinydd y Gymraeg (swydd barhaol Soulbury)
 Arweinydd Dysgu a Systemau Digidol (swydd barhaol Soulbury)
 Arweinydd Iechyd a Lles (swydd barhaol Soulbury)

Yn ystod cyfnod y diwygio, cynigir y dylid cyflogi Rheolwr-gyfarwyddwr Cynorthwyol ar 
gontract o 2 flynedd, er mwyn sicrhau cyfnod trosiannol didrafferth i'r ffyrdd newydd o 
weithio.  

Bydd y trawsweithio  rhwng Diwygio'r Cwricwlwm a Dysgu Proffesiynol yn sylweddol, a 
bydd angen i'r tîm cyfan weithio'n gyfannol i ddarparu cymorth hynod effeithiol.   Bydd 
gofyn i dimau allweddol weithio ar draws y rhanbarth i sicrhau cydblethiad o'r fath.

Argymhellir bod ERW yn ailddiffinio gwaith ei dimau presennol wrth fynd ati 
gyda'r dull gweithredu newydd.

Arbenigwyr Pwnc Uwchradd

Dylai ysgolion a'u hawdurdodau lleol barhau i elwa ar waith tîm Arweinwyr Dysgu 
Arbenigwyr Pwnc Uwchradd - sydd ar gael ar hyn o bryd i ddarparu cymorth i ysgolion 
ym meysydd Saesneg, Cymraeg, Mathemateg, Gwyddoniaeth ac ansawdd ôl-16.  Gall 
awdurdodau lleol ofyn am weithgarwch ganddynt yn ôl yr angen a gellid datblygu'r 
model i ganiatáu comisiynu ychwanegol os bydd pwysau gormodol o ran capasiti.   Mae 

Tudalen 202



11

ymatebion penaethiaid ym mhob awdurdod wedi bod yn frwd ynghylch y gwerth a 
ychwanegir gan aelodau'r tîm presennol, ac yn y rhan fwyaf o awdurdodau ERW, y tîm 
sy'n darparu'r unig ddarpariaeth arbenigol ar gyfer y cwricwlwm uwchradd.   

Dylid rhoi ystyriaeth ychwanegol nawr i ehangu tîm y cwricwlwm uwchradd 
rhanbarthol i rychwantu'r meysydd canlynol i gynorthwyo dysgu proffesiynol a 
chynllunio'r cwricwlwm ar gyfer 2022. 

Dyniaethau      

Technoleg

Ieithoedd Tramor Modern

Y Celfyddydau Mynegiannol

Dylai hyn ddarparu cwmpas cyflawn ar gyfer Dysgu Proffesiynol ar gyfer y cwricwlwm 
sy'n dod i'r amlwg a phob agwedd ar y modelau atebolrwydd presennol.    Dylai'r tîm 
arbenigol uwchradd ddarparu cymorth parhaus ar draws y rhanbarth ac at hynny dylai 
gysylltu â CBAC, Cymwysterau Cymru a Llywodraeth Cymru mewn ymateb i newidiadau 
i fanylebau arholiadau neu fodelau asesu yn ogystal â datblygu sgiliau arweinwyr canol 
o ran eu rolau wrth godi safonau.  Dylai cefnogi Ymgynghorwyr Her i gynnull clystyrau 
priodol o ysgolion i rannu arloesedd cwricwlaidd hefyd fod yn un swyddogaeth 
werthfawr i'r tîm.         

Y Tîm Cymorth Uwchradd (Y grŵp o benaethiaid y cyfeirir atynt weithiau fel 'Y 
Tîm Ysgolion sy'n Peri Pryder’)

Ar hyn o bryd mae ERW yn defnyddio 12 arweinydd ysgol hynod brofiadol mewn 
ymateb i geisiadau awdurdodau lleol i gefnogi ysgolion sy'n peri pryder.   Mae adborth 
cadarnhaol sylweddol am waith y tîm hwn, ac mae seiliau cadarn dros ei gynnal a 
thyfu'r model er mwyn gallu cynnwys mwy o arweinwyr ysgol a fydd ar gael i ddarparu 
cymorth dros y blynyddoedd sydd i ddod.   Dylid ystyried y rhain naill ai'n secondiadau 
neu'n gontractau dyddiol, gan ddarparu'r hyblygrwydd i'w defnyddio yn ôl y galw.    
Dylid cadw swydd fwy sylweddol i gydlynu ac arwain y gwaith - ond gan weithio i'r 
Arweinydd Strategol dros Addysg Uwch.  Ar lefel isranbarthol gellid ystyried cynnull 
timau tebyg i wasanaethu ar draws y sectorau Cynradd neu Arbennig, oni bai bod 
awdurdodau lleol am ystyried comisiynu trefniant tebyg i'r trefniant uwchradd 
presennol.   

Arweinwyr Dysgu'r Clwstwr :  Symud tuag at arweinwyr arbenigol i’r Meysydd 
Dysgu a Phrofiad (meysydd y cwricwlwm newydd)

Mae pryder nad yw'r model Arweinwyr Dysgu'r Clwstwr wedi'i ddatblygu'n ddigonol ac 
nid oes gan awdurdodau lleol nac ysgolion hyder ynddo'n gyson.    Mae enghreifftiau 
neilltuol o waith llwyddiannus ar gael, ond ar hyn o bryd ni thybir bod hynny'n ddigon 
helaeth ei gwmpas i gyfiawnhau gwariant o oddeutu £2.5m y flwyddyn.    Mae’r project 
hwn yn cael ei gynnal trwy secondiadau, a cynigir fod y secondiadau hynny, wrth iddyn 
nhw orffen, yn cael eu dirwyn i ben gan ERW.  

Tudalen 203



12

Wrth symud ymlaen cynigir y dylid canolbwyntio'n hytrach ar symud tuag at fodel sy'n 
gallu cefnogi trosglwyddiad llawn at gwricwlwm sydd wedi'i seilio ar y 4 diben a'r 6 
Maes Dysgu a Phrofiad newydd.  Dylid lleoli tîm ar draws rhanbarth sydd yna'n gallu 
gweithio mewn partneriaeth â phob awdurdod lleol i gynorthwyo datblygu, gweithredu 
a sianelu adnoddau ar gyfer y cwricwlwm newydd.   Awgrymir y gall ERW symud at un 
o ddau fodel posib yn y maes hwn.  

Opsiwn 1 ar gyfer Meysydd Dysgu a Phrofiad: Cynigir y dylid secondio neu benodi 3 
pherson i bob un o'r 6 MDPh (gydag un ohonynt yn arwain a 2 y bydd angen iddynt allu 
gweithio mewn lleoliadau Cymraeg a Saesneg eu cyfrwng).    Byddai'r 18 (yn lle 56 
Arweinydd Dysgu) yn golygu rhyddhau adnodd i ysgolion i'w galluogi i allu 
ymgysylltu'n effeithiol ar draws y 6 MDPh a datblygu dull gweithredu o'r gwreiddiau i 
fyny tuag at y cwricwlwm newydd.    Drwy fod â 18 arbenigwr MDPh, byddai cyllid ar 
gael i sicrhau bod ysgolion a/neu athrawon unigol yn gallu darparu arweinyddiaeth 
MDPh ar lefel fwy lleol - i helpu adeiladu'r system hunanwella.  Byddai'r arbenigwyr 
MDPh yn gweithio gyda'i gilydd i sicrhau bod rhagoriaeth yn cael ei ledu ar draws y 
rhanbarth cyfan, ac i helpu osgoi dyblygu gwaith.  

Opsiwn 2 ar gyfer Meysydd Dysgu a Phrofiad:  Yn lle apwyntio 3 arweinydd MDaPh ar 
gyfer pob un o’r 6 Maes (fel opsiwn 1), penodi 2 yn unig.  Gellid wedyn defnyddio’r 
cyllid fyddai wedi ei neulltio i’r trydydd penodiad i sicrhau cyfraniad 4 neu 5 ysgol i’r 
gwaith, ar ddiwrnod yr wythnos o fewn pob MDaPh.  Gall gwaith rhain gael ei gydlynu 
gan y 2 llawn amser. Gallai hyn fod o gymorth wrth sicrhau ansawdd rhainy a benodir, 
ond yn allweddol gall danlinellu ein hymrwymiad i’r system hunan-wella.  Yn 
ychwanegol, gall leihau’r risg ariannol i’r rhanbarth, os bydd angen newid dull gweithio 
i’r dyfodol, gan hefyd wreiddio ffordd o weithio yn y Meysydd Dysgu a Phrofiad.   Os yn 
ystod y flwyddyn gyntaf y daw’n amlwg fod 2 unigolyn i bob Maes Dysgu a Phrofiad yn 
methu cynnig digon o gapasiti i’r gwaith sydd ei angen, gallwn symud at drydydd 
penodiad yn yr ail flwyddyn.  Mae tair blynedd gyda ni o hyd nes gweithrediad llawn y 
cwricwlwm newydd.  

Pa bynnag opsiwn a fabwysiadir, byddai'n hanfodol alinio â'r tîm Ymgynghorwyr Her er 
mwyn sicrhau eu gweithrediad effeithiol yn lleol, ynghyd ag alinio'u gwaith yn 
rhanbarthol i sicrhau bod y cwricwlwm newydd yn cael ei rychwantu'n llawn ar draws y 
rhanbarth.   

Ymgynghorwyr Her (gydag enw newydd)

Cynigir ein bod yn gweithio gyda'r tri rhanbarth arall i ail-alinio gwaith Ymgynghorwyr 
Her.   Gellid eu hailddiffinio, ond byddai'n fuddiol bod yn rhan o newid cenedlaethol, er 
mwyn cynorthwyo'r Fframwaith Gwerthuso a Gwella cenedlaethol sy'n dod i'r amlwg.  

Fel corff, maent yn hanfodol i sicrhau dulliau gweithredu effeithiol tuag at wella 
ysgolion.   Mewn model rhanbarthol/hwb/lleol cymysg, byddent yn allweddol i sicrhau 
bod gan y rhanbarth yr wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am anghenion penodol ysgolion a bod 
cymorth priodol yn cael ei frocera neu ei gomisiynu. Felly, parheir i gyflogi 
Ymgynghorwyr Her yn lleol, a'u defnyddio ar draws ffiniau, gyda hyfforddiant 

Tudalen 204



13

rhanbarthol ac arfer da'n cael ei rannu'n effeithiol ar draws y rhanbarth.   Maen nhw, 
ynghyd â'u Huwch Ymgynghorwyr Her, yn dod yn allweddol o ran sicrhau cysondeb a 
defnydd effeithiol o arbenigedd rhanbarthol, a thrwy symud tuag at ddefnydd o hybiau, 
gallai fod cyfle i wreiddio dulliau gweithredu rhanbarthol mwy cyson a helpu i ledu 
arfer effeithiol, creu perthnasau cadarnhau rhwng awdurdodau a chreu capasiti'n 
hwylusach gyda'r tîm Ymgynghorwyr Her.    

Yn y system newydd, bydd gennym 4 math o ymarferwyr sy'n chwarae rôl allweddol ym 
maes gwella ysgolion, ac mae angen i'w cydweithrediad fod yn sylweddol 

 –

Uwch dîm rhanbarthol ERW               ⇔                                  Yr Ymgynghorwyr Her 

⇳                                                    ⇳

Timau awdurdodau lleol                     ⇔                            Timau MDPh Cynradd ac Uwchradd 

Yn yr un modd, os bydd awdurdod lleol yn adleoli staff i gefnogi gwaith gwella ysgolion, 
bydd eu cydweithrediad ar draws y rhanbarth yn hanfodol i sicrhau'r deilliannau mwyaf 
effeithiol.  

Sicrwydd Ansawdd a Chysondeb ar draws y rhanbarth

Fel gyda'r holl arferion gwaith eraill yn y model hwn, bydd prosesau sicrwydd ansawdd 
cytunedig yn hanfodol.  Mae gan athrawon yr hawl i ddisgwyl cymorth cyson ar gyfer eu 
teithiau proffesiynol eu hunain a theithiau gwella eu hysgolion.   Mae gan ysgolion yr 
hawl i ddisgwyl osgoi'r gwastraff a geir drwy ddyblygu gwasanaethau ynghyd â 
dirprwyo cyllid i'r eithaf.  

Dylai fod gan bob grŵp isranbarthol (neu hwb) dîm cytunedig o swyddogion a 
Phenaethiaid sy'n gwasanaethu fel grŵp monitro ar gyfer eu hisranbarth.   Ar sail 
gylchol, dylent fod yn gyfranogwyr wrth hunanwerthuso ac ymgymryd â gwaith adolygu 
cymheiriaid yn eu hawdurdodau/hybiau, gan ddarparu adborth am ansawdd ac 
effeithlonrwydd y gwasanaethau a gynigir.   At hynny, ar sail gylchol, dylai Hwb 1 agor 
ei hun i graffu o'r fath gan Hwb 3, Hwb 3 i graffu gan Hwb 2 a Hwb 2 gan Hwb 1 - neu 
drefniant tebyg, fel bod modd bwrw golwg allanol ac fel nad yw gwerthusiadau'n 
sbarduno tensiynau diangen rhwng Rheolwr-gyfarwyddwr ERW a'r Cyfarwyddwyr ym 
mhob awdurdod.   Mae ymagwedd gydsyniadol tuag at dwf yn hanfodol os yw ERW i 
ffynnu a dod yn hoelen wyth ar gyfer arfer gwella ysgolion effeithiol, creu capasiti a dod 
yn rhanbarthol sy’n le rhagorol i fod yn athro neu'n arweinydd ynddo.   Yn ychwanegol 
bydd angen hwyluso gweithio a monitro ar draws hybiau.   Mae angen gwereiddio 
cydweithio i lefel newydd os yw ERW i lewyrchu.  

Tudalen 205



14

6.0         Model Atebolrwydd a Llywodraethu

Mae gan Gymru raglen uchelgeisiol i feithrin arweinwyr sy'n:

 Ddysgwyr uchelgeisiol, galluog sy’n barod i ddysgu drwy gydol eu hoes
 Cyfranwyr mentrus, creadigol sy’n barod i chwarae eu rhan yn llawn yn eu bywyd a’u 

gwaith 
 Dinasyddion egwyddorol, gwybodus yng Nghymru a’r byd
 Unigolion iach, hyderus sy’n barod i fyw bywyd gan wireddu eu dyheadau fel aelodau 

gwerthfawr o gymdeithas.

Bydd cyflwyno agenda mor uchelgeisiol yn mynnu cydweithio mwy effeithiol ar draws y 
rhanbarth – rhwng ysgolion ac ysgolion, cyd-gynllunio gwasanaethau'n effeithiol ar 
draws awdurdodau a chydag asiantaethau allanol, a gwasanaeth gwella ysgolion 
effeithiol ar draws awdurdodau.  Dylai dull llywodraethu system o'r fath ategu 
athroniaeth gwella ysgolion a'r goblygiadau ehangach ar gyfer cyfrifoldebau 
llywodraeth leol.   

Dylai Cynllun Busnes cytunedig ffurfio'r sail ar gyfer gweithgareddau ERW, ac mewn 
gwirionedd, Cynllun Busnes sydd wedi cael sêl bendith y cydbwyllgor fydd y ddogfen 
gomisiynu ar gyfer gweithgareddau yn y flwyddyn sydd i ddod.   Dylid dal staff ERW a 
thimau awdurdodau lleol yn atebol am gyflwyno'r cynllun cytunedig ar draws y 
rhanbarth.  

Dylai fod atebolrwydd clir ar gyfer pob haen o'r system, gyda'r haen uchaf (Cyd-
bwyllgor) yn cymryd cyfrifoldeb cyfreithiol dros y gwasanaeth rhanbarthol a'i gyllidebu 
a'i gynllunio, ac yn sicrhau uniondeb gwaith rhwng awdurdodau - yn y bôn, adlewyrchu 
rôl bresennol y Cyd-bwyllgor.    Wrth lynu wrth drafodaethau blaenorol, dylid ystyried 
troi'r Cyd-bwyllgor yn fwy o ffocws ar gyfer gwaith aelodau cabinet dros addysg yn 
hytrach nag arweinwyr cynghorau.   At hynny, mae'r Cyd-bwyllgor wedi treulio cryn 
dipyn o'i amser yn y blynyddoedd diwethaf yn trafod rhai materion gweithredol y 
byddai'n fwy addas eu trafod ar lefelau eraill.    Ni ddylai hyn fynnu newidiadau 
sylweddol i'r model llywodraethu - o ran agendâu, y byddai'r effaith yn cael ei theimlo 
ynghyd â hyder y Cyd-bwyllgor bod materion yn cael eu dadansoddi a'u hystyried yn 
llawn cyn dod gerbron y Cyd-bwyllgor.   

Dylai'r Rheolwr-gyfarwyddwr newydd a'r uwch dîm weithio gyda'r Cyfarwyddwyr 
Addysg, drwy'r byrddau sy'n bodoli eisoes i sicrhau bod cynlluniau wedi'u halinio'n 
effeithiol, bod hunanwerthuso gonest yn parhau a bod partneriaeth effeithiol ar draws y 
rhanbarth.  Mae eglurder ynghylch perthnasau'n hanfodol – gan gynnwys rôl glir ar 
gyfer y Prif Weithredwr arweiniol ar ran y gymuned Prif Weithredwyr. Dylai osgoi 
gwrthdaro parhaus fod yn flaenoriaeth ar unwaith i bawb dan sylw, a gallai fod o 
gymorth petai aelod o'r grŵp Prif Weithredwyr yn ymuno â chyfarfodydd rheolaidd y 
grŵp Rheolwr-gyfarwyddwr/Cyfarwyddwyr yn ystod y cyfnod trosiannol ac i'r 
Rheolwr-gyfarwyddwr newydd adrodd yn uniongyrchol i Brif Weithredwr. 

Tudalen 206



15

Dylai'r Rheolwr-gyfarwyddwr a'r Cyfarwyddwyr barhau i adrodd i'r Bwrdd 
Ymgynghorol a bwrdd penaethiaid, a fydd yn craffu ar y swyddogaeth gwella ysgolion, 
ansawdd cynlluniau ac ansawdd y gwaith a gyflwynir i ysgolion, fel sy'n ddisgwyliedig 
ar hyn o bryd.  

Yn ogystal â'r strwythurau llywodraethu presennol, cynigir y dylid sefydlu'r 
grwpiau newydd er mwyn sicrhau bod ffocws ar swyddogaethau allweddol ERW 
ac i gefnogi cysondeb ansawdd ar draws y rhanbarth:

Er mwyn helpu i lywio a chefnogi gwaith gwella ysgolion dylai fod golwg clir, dwy 
ffordd, rhwng defnyddwyr dyddiol gwasanaethau gwella ysgolion (athrawon ac 
arweinwyr ysgolion ac awdurdodau lleol) a'r rhai hynny sy'n darparu rolau 
arweinyddiaeth strategol yn y themâu allweddol a fydd yn creu cylch gwaith ERW ar ei 
newydd wedd.  Gallai hyn weithio ar ddwy lefel wahanol - yn ogystal â'u cyfraniad 
presennol drwy grŵp ymgynghorol penaethiaid ERW a'r Bwrdd Gweithredol.   

Cynigir 2 lefel weithredol o lywodraethu proffesiynol/partneriaeth, sydd wedi'u 
cynllunio i sicrhau dulliau cyflwyno effeithiol a gostwng lefelau gwrthdaro:

Grŵp 1 – Cefnogi'r Arbenigwyr Strategol

Cynigir bod y rhai hynny sy'n arwain ar y themâu strategol rhanbarthol yn cael Grŵp 
Cymorth Gweithredol o 6 pherson yr un, sy'n cynnwys 3 athro (2 bennaeth ac athro 
arbenigol), 2 Uwch Ymgynghorydd Her (neu brofiadol iawn) ac 1 Cyfarwyddwr 
Addysg/Prif Swyddog.   Dylai'r grwpiau hyn weithio ochr yn ochr ag arweinwyr ERW 
ym meysydd y cwricwlwm newydd, dysgu proffesiynol, arweinyddiaeth, y Gymraeg, 
Lles a Chynhwysiant a Dysgu Ddigidol er mwyn llunio'r dulliau gweithredu mwyaf 
effeithiol a gwybodus tuag at feysydd gwaith thematig allweddol ar draws y rhanbarth, 
gan gynnwys gwerthuso effeithiolrwydd y gwaith ar lefelau rhanbarthol, 
isranbarthol/lleol ac ar lefel ysgol yn barhaus.   Ar gyfer y rhai hynny sy'n cael eu 
rhyddhau o'r ysgol, dylid neilltuo un neu ddau ddiwrnod fesul hanner tymor i 
gyllidebau eu hysgolion er mwyn sicrhau eu bod yn gallu cyfrannu'n llawn at y ddeialog 
a'r broses gynllunio.   

Grŵp 2 – Sicrhau cydraddoldeb a chysondeb ar draws y rhanbarth

Cynigir y dylid sefydlu grŵp Swyddogion a Phenaethiaid ble bynnag y sefydlir 
gweithgarwch isranbarthol.    Dylai penaethiaid o'r bartneriaeth isranbarthol honno 
ffurfio rhan o fwrdd isranbarthol sy'n gallu helpu i adnabod gofynion comisiynu, cefnogi 
prosesau sicrwydd ansawdd o amgylch cymorth i ysgolion a'r cynnig 
DP/Arweinyddiaeth, dal ALlau i gyfrif, ffocysu ar osgoi'r gwastraff a geir drwy ddyblygu 
gwasanaethau a gwthio i sicrhau cysondeb cymorth ar draws y rhanbarth, a helpu i 
gynhyrchu'r diwylliant o ymddiriedaeth sydd ei angen er mwyn gwreiddio'r system 
hunanwella.   Gallent hefyd gynorthwyo gyda'r gwaith adolygu cymheiriaid mewn 
hybiau ar draws y rhanbarth, a ddylai fod yn rhan hanfodol o waith Sicrwydd Ansawdd 
a Gwerth am Arian y bartneriaeth ranbarthol, yn unol â'r model adolygu hybiau a 
nodwyd yn flaenorol.

Tudalen 207



16

7.0                  Model Ariannol 

Nid yw'r model ariannol presennol yn gweithio ac mae'n peri tensiynau parhaus.    Felly, 
mae angen rhoi model ariannol yn ei le sy'n gallu darparu gwasanaeth canolog sicr ac 
annog pobl ragorol i ymrwymo i ERW, galluogi i grantiau gael eu dirprwyo a darparu 
lefelau uwch o gyllid i gyrraedd ysgolion fel ein prif bartneriaid.  

Derbynnir cyllid gwerth mwy na £70m y flwyddyn gan Lywodraeth Cymru i'w 
ddosbarthu gan ERW – a chaiff y mwyafrif helaeth ohono ei ddirprwyo i ysgolion ac 
awdurdodau lleol.    Fodd bynnag, yn y flwyddyn ariannol bresennol, arweiniodd ystod y 
gweithgareddau a gefnogwyd gan ERW - gan gynnwys y rhwydwaith Arweinwyr Dysgu 
helaeth - at wario oddeutu £4.7m ar staffio yn y rhanbarth  (yn gweithio'n bennaf ar 
lefel leol ar draws clystyrau o ysgolion).  

Mae'r modelu ariannol ar gyfer argymhellion ERW ar ei newydd wedd yn dangos y 
gallai gyflawni ei rwymedigaethau cytunedig gydag oddeutu £1.3m yn fwy ar gael i’w 
ddirprwyo trwy ERW i ysgolion/awdurdodau lleol i gyflawni nodau’r grantiau.  

  

Er y gallai’r blaenoriaethau a nodwyd ar gyfer rôl ERW yn y dyfodol sicrhau cymorth yr 
awdurdodau partner ac alinio'n dda gyda blaenoriaethau cenedlaethol (ac felly gyda 
ffrydiau grant tebygol), mae angen cydbwyso'r ddibyniaeth bresennol (sydd bron yn 
ddibyniaeth lwyr) ar gyllid grant yn erbyn yr angen am sicrwydd a chynaliadwyedd ar 
gyfer y sefydliad.   

O ystyried y gellid cyflawni'r model gweithredol diwygiedig tra hefyd yn sicrhau 
arbedion o oddeutu £1.3m oddi ar y gwariant presennol, cynigir y dylai uwch 
swyddogion cyllid o'r 6 awdurdod lleol weithio gyda'i gilydd ym mis Ionawr i gytuno ar 
fodel ategol dichonol i sicrhau bod ERW yn gallu cadw ei ran yn y fargen yn y 
bartneriaeth leol/ranbarthol - a hynny ar sail cyfraniadau tryloyw a chytbwys y gellir eu 
harchwilio rhwng cyllid craidd a chyllid grant, ac eglurder yn y dosbarthiad grant drwy 
bob awdurdod lleol i sicrhau'r deilliannau gorau i ddysgwyr.  

29/1/2019

Tudalen 208



CYD-BWYLLGOR ERW 
8 CHWEFROR 2019

CYLLIDEB 2019-2020
Y Pwrpas: 
I ddarparu diweddariad i’r Cyd-Bwyllgor ar sefyllfa ariannol ERW am 2019-20

YR ARGYMHELLION / PENDERFYNIADAU ALLWEDDOL SYDD EU HANGEN:
a) I’r Cydbwyllgor gymeradwyo mewn egwyddor Cyllideb y Tim Canolog am 2019-2020, y 

Cyfraniad Awdurdodau Lleol a’r sail am eu cyfrfio, a’r fformiwlai dyrannu cyllid, yn amodol 
ar waith pellach yn cael ei wneud gan y Swyddogion Adran 151, a chytundeb bod y cyllid 
sy’n cael ei ryddhau o’r strwythur diwygiedig (Annex 3) yn gallu cael ei ddefnyddio gan yr 
awdurdodau yn lle’r hyn roedd yn cael ei ariannu can eu cyllidebau craidd, er mwyn 
cyflawni blaenoriaethau’r Genhadaeth Cenedlaethol (sy’n cydymffurfio gyda amodau a 
thelerau’r grant).

b) I’r Cydbwyllgor penderfynu os oes angen trefniant wrth gefn sydd yn fwy na’r adran 
“Ysgolion Sy’n Peri Gofid” sydd eisoes yn y cyllideb ddrafft. Hefyd, os oes ei angen, 
penderfynu ar naill ai ei gynnwys yng Nghyllideb y Tim Canolog (gan nodi fod ei gynnwys 
am gynyddu’r cyfraniad Awdurdod Lleol am 2019-20), neu ei ariannu o grantiau, os yw’r 
gwaith yn cyraedd amodau grant perthnasol.

c) I’r Rheolwr Gyfarwyddwr  parhau gyda’r gweithredu o’r strwythur newydd, yn amodol ar y 
gwaith pellach nodwyd yn a) uchod ac yn d) isod, gyda’r amcan o sirchau ei fod wedi 
cwbljau erbyn diwedd Tymor yr Haf.

d) I’r amodau a thelerau cyflogaeth staff parhaol ERW gynnwys cymal sy’n nodi ei fod yn 
angenrheidiol iddynt dderbyn cyflogaeth amgen addas gan yr awdurdodau sy’n aelodau o 
ERW cyn fod terfyniad/diswyddiad o gontractau yn cael ei weithredu, pe bai terfyn ar 
ariannu ERW a’r strwythur ddarfod (amodol ar gytundeb gan Penaethiaid AD).

Y RHESYMAU: 
I dderbyn cymradwyaeth gan y Cyd-Bwyllgor

Awdur yr Adroddiad:

Jon Haswell

Swydd:

Swyddog 151 

Rhif Ffon 01437 775839

E: bost~
Jonathan.haswell@pembrokeshire.gov.uk

Tudalen 209

Eitem Rhif  11



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
ERW JOINT COMMITTEE

8TH FEBRUARY 2019

BUDGET REPORT 2019-20
BRIEF SUMMARY OF PURPOSE OF REPORT

To provide the ERW Joint Committee with a financial update on the following:
 
 2018-19 and 2019-20 Central Team Budget

 Local Authority Contributions

 2019-20 Progression

 2019-20 Grants 

 2019-20 Grant Funded Budget 

 Risks

 Reserves

 Recommendations

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? YES 

Tudalen 210



IMPLICATIONS

Policy, Crime & 
Disorder and 
Equalities

Legal Finance Risk Management Issues Staffing Implications

NONE NONE YES YES YES

FINANCE

The decisions regarding the 2019-2020 budget will inform future financial decisions

RISK MANAGEMENT ISSUES

There are risks that will need to managed as part of the proposals/actions contained in the paper. 
Moving forward they will need to be noted in the ERW Risk Register

STAFFING IMPLICATIONS

The paper contains funding information on potential staffing structures.

CONSULTATIONS
N/A

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:
THERE ARE NONE

Tudalen 211



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 

2019-20 Budget  
 
 
  

8 February 2019 

 
ERW S151 Officer 

 
 

Tudalen 213



2 
 

1. Introduction 
 
This report provides the Joint Committee with a summary of the predicted financial 
position of ERW as at 31 March 2019 and consideration of the budget and funding 
position of 2019-20.  
 

2. 2019-20 Structure  
 
The Acting Managing Director and Education Directors along with ERW Finance have 
been working closely to look at the needs of ERW from April 2019.  The Financial 
implications are shown at Annex 1 (subject to formal consultation) and have formed 
the basis of this report.  

 

3. 2018-19 and 2019-20 Central Team Budgets 
 

The Central Team revenue budget projects an outturn of £45k net expenditure for 
2018-19 as shown in the table below. The budget for 2019-20 has been drafted with 
the following changes  
 

 All Tier 1 and 2 staff are now classed as ‘Central Team’ and are therefore shown 
within the core budget for ERW (See Annex 1 for staffing structure breakdown 
subject to consultation).  

 

 The following roles are proposed to be core funded and not covered by grant 
funding –  

 
a) MD  
b) 50% AMD role 
c) 20% of the Tier 2 ‘Areas of Specialism’ – excluding the Schools Causing 

Concern role which is to be fully core funded.  
d) 90% of the Office Organisation staffing (10% admin charged to grants) 

 

 A proportion of the ‘Rent and Accommodation’ and ‘Service Level Agreements’ 
have been apportioned to grant.  
 

 The Schools Causing Concern estimated budget has been moved from grant to 
core funded. This is an area that is no longer specifically funded by WG but 
something that as a region we see as essential to the School Improvement 
Service.  

 
The budget below requires a contribution from Local Authorities of £1,040,000 for 
2019-20, a transitional year, and then an expected contribution from 2020-21 
onwards of £1,000,000, at 2019-20 prices. 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 214



3 
 

Core Budgeted Expenditure 

2018-19 
Projected 
Outturn at        

March 2019     
£000's 

2019-20 
Budget  

Core 
Funded  

Grant 
Funded  

          

Staffing Costs         

Salaries, Secondments, Specialists (Annex one Tier 1 & 2) 497 1,461 678 783 

Travel, Subsistence 7 45 7 38 

Training and Development  - 45 18 27 

IT Hardware & Mobiles 1 9 5 4 

Recruitment costs  - 10 10 - 

  505 1,570 718 852 

          

Development and Running Costs         

Rent and Accommodation 61 63 26 37 

Stationary, Telephone, Photocopying  11 11 11 - 

Translation 10 15 15 - 

Software, Marketing, R&E, 32 33 33 - 

Service Level Agreements  110 179 108 71 

External Audit  14 14 14 - 

Refund to Welsh Government  7       

Schools Causing Concern  - 75 75 - 

  245 390 282 108 

          

One off Existing Commitments          

Secondment costs to end of contract - 14 7 7 

Fixed terms to end of contract - 47 37 10 

  - 61 44 17 

          

Total Estimated Expenditure  750 2,021 1,044 977 

Core Budgeted Income      

          

Local Authority Contributions 250 1,040 1,040 - 

Other Income 4 4 4 - 

Grant Funding Administration 451 977 - 977 

          

Total Estimated Income  705 2,021 1,044 977 

          

Core Net Expenditure 45 0 0 0 

Appropriation from Reserve (45) 0 0 0 

 
At the Joint Committee workshop held on 7 January 2019, Members requested the consideration of a 
contingency. This has not been incorporated into the above figures and will need to be considered 
carefully as its inclusion will increase the Local Authority contributions. An alternative option would 
be to fund a contingency from grant should the activity meet relevant grant conditions.  

Tudalen 215



4 
 

Local Authority Contributions  
 

The table below provides a breakdown of the contribution for 2019-20, which is based 
on January 2018 PLASC data pupil numbers.  
 
At the meeting of S151 Officers on 21 January 2019, alternative options for calculating 
the Local Authority Contributions were requested. The table on the following page 
provides an indication of the effect of the different options available.  
 

Local Authority  Contribution 2019-20 

Powys  139,612 

Ceredigion 77,753 

Pembrokeshire 140,763 

Carmarthenshire 221,219 

Swansea 290,842 

Neath Port Talbot 169,811 

    

Total Contribution 1,040,000 

 
At a meeting with Welsh Government on 25 January 2019, they committed to 
providing £500,000 additional “Review and Reform” funding for the transitional 
2019-20 year (subject to Ministerial approval), on the understanding that all six Local 
Authorities will contribute and there is a sustainable funding methodology for the 
future approved by the Joint Committee.  
 
This £500,000 additional funding will reduce the Local Authority contributions for 
2019-20, as shown in the table below.  
 

Local Authority  Revised Contribution 2019-20  

Powys  72,491 

Ceredigion 40,372 

Pembrokeshire 73,089 

Carmarthenshire 114,864 

Swansea 151,014 

Neath Port Talbot 88,171 

    

Total Contribution 540,000 

 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 216



5 
 

4. 2019-20 Progression  
 
We have agreed with Welsh Government that from April 2019 ERW will  

1) Ensure we have a consistent regional approach to the delegations of funds 
including the foundation phase allocations.  

2) Ensure we have put in place all staff and other resources to commence and 
complete the Grant Conditions and ERW Business Plan, along with 
confirmation of appointments in relation to centrally employed (ERW) staff.  

 
In order to achieve these requirements ERW have worked closely with the acting 
Managing Director and the Education Directors in several areas.  
 
Distribution Funding Formulas  
 
The following distribution formulas have been set up based on January 2018 PLASC 
data –  

a) Distribution based on pupil numbers  
b) Distribution based on teacher numbers  
c) Distribution based on number of schools  
d) Distribution based on 50% pupils and 50% schools 
e) Distribution based on 50% pupils, 25% schools and 25% teachers 
f) Distribution based on FSM pupil numbers 

 
Education Directors were also given the table below as an example of how much 
each Local Authority would receive based on the above formulas if the value was 
£1,000,000. 
 
The purpose of this was to  
 

a) Ensure we have a consistent regional approach to the distribution of funds. 
b) Speed up the governance and approval of the distribution of funds as they 

come into ERW.  
 

Powys Ceredigion Pembs Carms Swansea NPT Total

Pupil  Numbers 134,241.96 74,762.64 135,349.78 212,710.35 279,655.79 163,279.48 1,000,000.00

School Numbers 197,033.90 97,457.63 133,474.58 237,288.14 201,271.19 133,474.58 1,000,000.00

Teacher Numbers 152,500.34 83,758.09 129,494.42 216,558.75 259,815.40 157,872.99 1,000,000.00

50% Pupils / 50% Schools 165,637.93 86,110.13 134,412.18 224,999.24 240,463.49 148,377.03 1,000,000.00

50% Pupils / 25% 

Schools / 25% Teachers 154,504.54 82,685.25 133,417.14 219,816.90 255,099.54 154,476.63 1,000,000.00

FSM 88,341.04 50,847.46 123,266.56 207,498.72 317,925.01 212,121.21 1,000,000.00  
 
Foundation Phase Distribution  
 
Work was undertaken to agree a funding formula for foundation phase to ensure we 
have a consistent regional approach to the delegation of foundation phase funds.  

 
The Education Directors were presented with 3 different options:– 

Tudalen 217



6 
 

£900 per nursery & reception pupil and £500 per key Stage 1 pupil. 
£800 per nursery & reception pupil and £400 per key Stage 1 pupil. 
£700 per nursery & reception pupil and £300 per key Stage 1 pupil. 

 
The Education Directors agreed on the second proposal at £800 and £400. The effect 
of this is as follows based on January PLASC 2018 data:–  
 

LA

Total number of 

Pupils Nursery and 

Reception classes 

Total number of 

Pupils in key 

stage 1 classes 

Total 

number of 

Pupils per 

PLASC 2018

Total Foundation 

Phase paying out £800 

& £400

Carmarthenshire 4002 4138 8140 £4,856,800

Swansea 5885 5600 11485 £6,948,000

NPT 3370 3151 6521 £3,956,400

Powys 1785 2633 4418 £2,481,200

Pembrokeshire 2637 2742 5379 £3,206,400

Ceredigion 1223 1395 2618 £1,536,400

Total 18902 19659 38561 £22,985,200  
 
Non Maintained Settings / Specialist Advisory Support  
The Non Maintained Settings were also reviewed, and a regional approach to the 
allocation is detailed below (based on 2018-19 data).  

 Visiting one setting per day / 4 hours a visit (term time only)  

 Afternoons free for planning etc  

 10 visits a year required per setting to comply with requirements of 10% 
support.  

 FTE at a Soulbury 13 salary scale.  
 

2018-19 Data Pembs Powys Ceredigion Carms 

# of Non Maintained Settings 21 49 21 36

# of Settings x 10 visits a year each = total visits required 210 490 210 360

(1 FTE = 190 visits)  # of FTEs required 1.11 2.58 1.11 1.89

Costings £ £ £ £

Cost to employee Advisory Specialist Support for whole year (Soulbury 13) at FTE above 71,489.92 166,809.82 71,489.92 122,554.15

(as would have to employee for whole year not just term time)

Plus travelling costs (£100 per setting) 2,100.00 4,900.00 2,100.00 3,600.00

Estimated costings for supplying 10% support to each Non Maintained Setting 73,589.92 171,709.82 73,589.92 126,154.15  
 
Foundation Phase Training Officers 
 
The need for ‘Foundation Phase Training Officers’ was also reviewed and it was 
concluded that prior to the Education Improvement Grant there was a specific grant 
for Foundation Phase and within this grant there was a specific requirement for a 
Training Officer.  
 

Tudalen 218



7 
 

Following the consolidation of the original 11 grants into the Education 
Improvement Grant and now the Regional Consortia School Improvement Grant the 
Foundation Phase requirements have been relinquished.  
 
The guidance from Welsh Government was that there is no formal requirement for a 
Training Officer in the Terms and Conditions of the grants but that the funding we 
receive is flexible so it is at the discretion of ERW to determine if they require the 
need for training officers.  
 
The Education Directors agreed that should they wish to fund Foundation Phase 
Training Officers, this would be done separately outside this exercise so that each 
Local Authority could assess its own needs.  
 

5. 2019-20 Grants  
 

We have not yet had formal confirmation of grant allocation for 2019-20, therefore 
we have based the budget on 2018-19 financial year grants with adjustments for 
known changes.  
 

  
2018-19 
£000's 

2019-20 
£000's 

RCSIG      

Curriculum and Assessment  919 799 

Developing the Profession 41,271 36,436 

Leadership 529 529 

Supporting Self Improving System 616 568 

Strong Inclusive Controls - - 

Others 249 62 

Estimated RCSIG  43,584 38,394 

      

PDG     

PDG 23,292 23,292 

LAC PDG 1,100 1,100 

PDG Coordinator  100 100 

Estimated PDG 24,492 24,492 

      

Others     

EWC 506 506 

Academic year grants bought 
forward 1,575 - 

Estimated Others 2,081 506 

      

Total Grant Income Expected 70,157 63,392 

 
 
 
 

Tudalen 219



8 
 

6. 2019-20 Grant Funded Budget  
 

Based on the information above, a draft grant budget has been produced for 2019-20. 
At present we have budgeted for the committed cost of all secondments and fixed 
term employees until the end of their contract / term (see Annex 2). If any of the staff 
currently employed via a secondment / fixed term contract move into positions within 
the new structure from April 2019 then that cost will decrease, increasing the 
remaining balance for distribution.  
 
The budget on Annex 3 shows the following options– 
 

1) Based on all recruitments finalised and appointments ready for 1 April 2019 
start – thus leaving a balance of £324,000 to be reviewed by ERW jointly with 
Local Authorities on distribution.   

2) Based on all Tier 1 and 2 recruitments finalised and appointments ready for 1 
April 2019 start, but Tier 3 not starting until 1 September 2019 – thus leaving 
a balance of £1,142,000 to be reviewed by ERW jointly with Local Authorities 
on distribution.   

3) Based on all Tier 1 and 2 recruitments finalised and appointments ready for 1 
April 2019 start, but Tier 3 phased start – thus leaving a balance of £886,000 
to be reviewed by ERW jointly with Local Authorities on distribution.   

4) A typical year after the transitional year – thus leaving a balance of £1,541,000 
to be reviewed by ERW jointly with Local Authorities on distribution. 

 
 

7. Risks 
 
The outcome of the ERW Review and Reform Programme will determine the nature 
and level of financial risks for the future. Whatever the future structure is, we must 
ensure that value for money is obtained from all aspects of ERW.  
 
 

8. Reserves  
 

Balance 31 March 2017 442 100 -136 406

2017-18 To Revenue -60 -156 -216

Balance 31 March 2018 382 100 -292 190

2018-19 To Revenue -45 -45

Balance 31 March 2019 337 100 -292 145

Useable Reserves 
Earmarked Joint 

Committee  

Reserves £000's

General Working 

Reserve £000's

Pensions 

Reserve 

£000's

Total 

Reserves 

£000's

 

Tudalen 220



9 
 

 
Whilst the level of reserves have reduced considerably, the draft Central Team 
budget for 2019-20 does not require any contribution from reserves. It should be 
noted however that any movement on the Pension Reserve for 2018-19 could 
reduce the overall reserve balance further.  
 

9. Recommendations  
 
 
a) The Joint Committee approves in principle the Central Team Budget for 2019-20, 

the Local Authority Contributions and the basis for their calculation, and the 
distribution funding formulas, subject to further work being carried out by the 
S151 Officers and agreement being reached that the funds released from the re-
organised structure (Annex 3) can be used by the authorities to replace what was 
previously funded by their own core authority budgets, to achieve the priorities 
of the national mission (in compliance with grant terms and conditions).  
 

b) The Joint Committee determine whether they require a contingency over and 
above the “Schools Causing Concern” provision already provided in the draft 
budget and if so, whether to include it in the Central Team Budget for 2019-20 
(noting that its inclusion will increase the Local Authority contributions for 2019-
20) or fund from grant should the activity meet relevant grant conditions. 

 
c) The Managing Director proceeds with the implementation of the new structure, 

subject to the further work in (a) above and (d) below, with a view to ensuring its 
completion by the end of the Summer Term.  

 
d) The employment terms and conditions for permanent ERW staff include a clause 

that they are required to accept suitable alternative employment of the member 
authorities before termination/redundancy of contracts are implemented 
should ERW funding be discontinued and the structure no longer be in place 
(subject to confirmation by Heads of HR). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Tudalen 221



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Annex 3

Structure start 

April 2019

Tier 3 start in 

September 

2019

Tier 3 phased 

start date *

Typical 

year 2020 

onwards

Income £000'S £000'S £000'S £000'S

Grant Income 2018-19 -70,157 -70,157 -70,157 -70,157

2017-18 Academic Grants Remove 1,575 1,575 1,575 1,575

Remove grants which are not expected in 2019-20 5,190 5,190 5,190 5,190

Expected Grant Funding 2019-20 -63,392 -63,392 -63,392 -63,392

Foundation Phase to LA (agreed with Directors) 22,985 22,985 22,985 22,985

Advisory Specialist Support (agreed with Directors) 445 445 445 445

Residual element distributed to LA (previously EIG) 9,215 9,215 9,215 9,215

PDG direct to schools 23,292 23,292 23,292 23,292

LAC element distributed on a cluster basis via LAs 1,025 1,025 1,025 1,025

Residual grant available -6,430 -6,430 -6,430 -6,430

Expenditure £000's £000's £000's £000's

Central / Core costs paid out of grant

Salaries, Secondments, Specialists (Annex 1 Tier 1 & 2) 783 783 783 783

Travel, Subsistence 38 38 38 38

Training and Development 27 27 27 27

IT Hardware & Mobiles 4 4 4 4

Rent and Accommodation 37 37 37 37

Service Level Agreements 71 71 71 71

Secondments to end of term 7 7 7 0

Fixed Terms to end of contract 10 10 10 0

977 977 977 960

Tier 3 roles (see Annex 1)

Secondary Curriculum Leads 874 510 697 874

Primary AOLES 1,013 591 652 1,013

Travelling Tier 3 80 48 56 82

IT Hardware & Mobiles Tier 3 12 12 12 12

1,979 1,161 1,417 1,981

Current commitments to end of contract (Annex 2)

Secondments ** 811 811 811 0

Fixed Term Employees ** 391 391 391 0

1,202 1,202 1,202 0

Other costs 

Professional Learning (project costs estimated) 1,848 1,848 1,848 1,848

Office Costs (Translation, photocopying, stationary estimated) 100 100 100 100

1,948 1,948 1,948 1,948

ERW Costs 6,106 5,288 5,544 4,889

Balance remaining for distribution  ** -324 -1,142 -886 -1,541

* Secondary Curriculum Leads - 4 leads start April 19, of 9 remaining 5 start in July 19 and 4 start in September 19

Primary AOLES - 6 leads start July 19 remaining 12 start September 19

** If any of the staff under the 'current commitments to end of contract' move into the core structure from April 2019 then 

that cost will decrease, increasing the balance remaining for distribution. 

Tudalen 223



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Document is Restricted

Tudalen 225

Eitem Rhif  14
Yn rhinwedd  paragraff(s) 15 o Rhan 4 o Atodlen 12A% o ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972 fel y'i diwygiwyd gan 
Orchymyn Llywodraeth Leol (Mynediad at Wybodaeth) (Amrywio) (Cymru) 2007



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Document is Restricted

Tudalen 229

Yn rhinwedd  paragraff(s) 15 o Rhan 4 o Atodlen 12A% o ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972 fel y'i diwygiwyd gan 
Orchymyn Llywodraeth Leol (Mynediad at Wybodaeth) (Amrywio) (Cymru) 2007



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Document is Restricted

Tudalen 235

Eitem Rhif  15
Yn rhinwedd  paragraff(s) 13, 15 o Rhan 4 o Atodlen 12A% o ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972 fel y'i diwygiwyd gan 
Orchymyn Llywodraeth Leol (Mynediad at Wybodaeth) (Amrywio) (Cymru) 2007



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Document is Restricted

Tudalen 239

Yn rhinwedd  paragraff(s) 13, 15 o Rhan 4 o Atodlen 12A% o ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972 fel y'i diwygiwyd gan 
Orchymyn Llywodraeth Leol (Mynediad at Wybodaeth) (Amrywio) (Cymru) 2007



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Document is Restricted

Tudalen 241

Yn rhinwedd  paragraff(s) 13, 15 o Rhan 4 o Atodlen 12A% o ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972 fel y'i diwygiwyd gan 
Orchymyn Llywodraeth Leol (Mynediad at Wybodaeth) (Amrywio) (Cymru) 2007



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol


	Agenda
	3 LOFNODI FEL COFNOD CYWIR COFNODION CYFARFOD Y PWYLLGOR AR Y CYD A GYNHALWYD AR Y 12 HYDREF 2018
	5 DIWEDDARIAD GAN Y PRIF WEITHREDWR ARWEINIOL A LOG PENDERFYNIADAU
	LOG PENDERFYNIADAU

	6 GOHEBIAETH
	ERW Craffu Llythyr Cadeirydd

	7.1 ADRODDIAD MONITRO CYLLID
	Atodiad 1
	Atodiad 2
	Adroddiad

	7.2 RHEOLIADAU ARIANNOL A RHEOLAU GWEITHDREFNAU CONTRACT
	Rheoliadu Ariannol
	Rheolau Gweithrdrefnau Contract

	7.3 RHAGLEN WAITH AWDIT MEWNOL 2018-19
	Adroddiad

	8 COFRESTRE RISG
	Adroddiad

	9 SWYDDOGAETHIAU ARWEINIOL / CLG
	Adroddiad

	10 CYNNIG AR ADOLYGU AC ADNEWYDDU ERW
	Adroddiad

	11 CYLLIDEB 2019-2020
	Adroddiad
	Ychwanegiad 3

	14 CYNNIG AR ADOLYGU AC ADNEWYDDU ERW
	Adroddiad

	15 GWYBODAETH ARIANNOL A STAFFIO
	Ychwanegiad 1
	Ychwanegiad 2


